
 

Page 1 of 2 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, APRIL 13, 2022 

5:30 PM AT CEDAR FALLS COMMUNITY CENTER, 528 MAIN STREET 

 

 
 
Call to Order and Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Planning and Zoning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes of March 23, 2022 

Public Comments 

New Business 

2. Cedar Falls Bicycle Plan 
Presented for Public Review: March 23, 2022 
Recommendation: Approval 
P&Z Action: Discuss and make recommendation to City Council 

3. Wild Horse Ridge Fifth Addition Final Plat (Case #FP22-001) 
Location:  South of 12th Street and West of Union Road 
Applicant:  Midwest Development Co. (Owner) and CGA consultants (Engineer) 
Previous Discussion:  None 
Recommendation: Introduction and discussion 
P&Z Action: Discuss and continue to the next meeting 

4. Minor Plat for The Cove at Spruce Hills (Case #MP22-001) 
Location: North of Greenhill Road and east of Spruce Hills Drive and Prairie Parkway 
Applicant: Brian Wingert (Developer); The Cove at Spruce Hills LLC (Owner);  
Snyder & Associates (Engineer)  
Recommendation: Approval  
P&Z Action: Discuss and consider making a recommendation to City Council 

Old Business 

5. RP Site Plan Review – The Cove at Spruce Hills (Case #SP21-013) 
Location: North of Greenhill Road and east of Spruce Hills Drive and Prairie Parkway 
Applicant: Brian Wingert (Developer); The Cove at Spruce Hills LLC (Owner);  
Snyder & Associates (Engineer)  
Previous discussion: March 9, 2022  
Recommendation:  Approval  
P&Z Action: Discuss and make recommendation to City Council 

6. Amendment of RP Master Plan for Autumn Ridge Development (DEFERRED) 
Location: South of W. 1st Street and West of Union Road 
Applicant: BKND, Inc., Owner; CGA Engineering, Engineer 
Previous discussion: November 24, 2020, March 9, 2022 
Recommendation: Defer discussion to the next P&Z meeting 
P&Z Action: None 

7. Preliminary Plat for Autumn Ridge 9th and 11th Additions (PP20-004)(DEFERRED) 
Location: South of W. 1st Street and West of Union Road 
Applicant: BKND, Inc., Owner; CGA Engineering, Engineer 

1



 

Page 2 of 2 

Previous discussion: November 24, 2020, March 9, 2022 
Recommendation: Defer discussion to the next P&Z meeting 
P&Z Action: None 

Commission Updates 

Adjournment 

Reminders: 

* April 27 and May 11 - Planning & Zoning Commission Meetings 
* April 18 and May 2 - City Council Meetings 

2



 1 

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission 
Regular Meeting 
March 23, 2022 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 

MINUTES 
 

The Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission met in regular session on March 23, 2022 at 5:30 
p.m. at the Community Center. The following Commission members were present: Crisman, Hartley, 
Holst, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Moser and Saul. Grybovych was absent. Karen Howard, Community 
Services Manager, Thomas Weintraut, Planner III, Chris Sevy, Planner I, and Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil 
Engineer II, were also present.  
 
1.) Chair Leeper noted the Minutes from the March 9, 2022 regular meeting are presented. Ms. 

Lynch made a motion to approve the Minutes as presented. Ms. Saul seconded the motion. 
The motion was approved unanimously with 8 ayes (Crisman, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Leeper, 
Lynch, Moser and Saul), and 0 nays.  

 
2.) The first item of business was a presentation regarding the Cedar Falls Bicycle Plan Update. 

Andrew Shroll, 930 Newman Avenue, Chair of the Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory 
Committee, spoke on behalf of the committee regarding the updated Bicycle Network Plan. 
The plan is the result of substantial work by the City, the committee and public input. As a 
committee, the mission is to improve the quality of life through safe biking and walking. The 
more connected biking and walking are physically, the more connected the community 
becomes. Continuity of the network and intersection improvements are two of the biggest 
ways to improve safety and remove barriers to entry for riders of various skill levels. The goal 
is also to further increase community participation in utilizing this resource. The committee 
hopes that this network is viewed as fitting well with city planning for bikeability and walkability 
as well as broader plans, such as the Black Hawk County MPO Pedestrian Master Plan. 

 
 Ms. Howard stated that this is actually the next item on the agenda and Mr. Sevy will provide 

background information. He thanked the Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee for all the 
work that was put into this Plan Update. He explained why the plan is being updated, 
explaining the pride for the bike network, the relevance of the plan, regular review of the bike 
network and Council referral in 2019. Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II discussed previous 
iterations of the plan and the 2045 MPO Bikeway Plan. He discussed what will be discussed 
for the proposed 2022 plan update. 

 
 Mr. Sevy discussed the parameters of the project, including: 

 BPAC prioritizing commuting utility of bike network 
 no widening of streets or rights-of-way would be considered 
 design options for the most common street width  
 putting in bike lanes instead of currently existing on-street parking 
 sidewalks were not considered bike infrastructure for the purposes of this plan 
 multi-use trails are generally only placed along street frontages with limited 

driveways and/or cross-streets 
 and, on-street facilities can be safer for bicyclists where motorists are more likely to 

see them. 
 
 Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II, discussed the design considerations and concerns, some 

of which included curb and gutter, parking lane considerations, right-of-way acquisitions and 
costs, and the costs of widening the road.  

  

3

Item 1.



 2 

 Mr. Sevy spoke to the methodology and timeline of the planning process for the update. Staff 
developed a plan map for the basis of discussion and the committee helped staff refine the 
plan map. Public feedback was sought for the developed plan map, and staff analyzed the 
data from the questionnaire responses and the refined map is being brought to the 
Commission for consideration and referral to Council.  

 
 Mr. Tolan discussed the engineering timeline and approval process. Mr. Sevy further 

explained the public outreach process, the questionnaire for public feedback that was 
submitted and responses provided. He also listed the areas of public interest from the 
questionnaire responses. Mr. Tolan explained how to read the map, discussed the different 
areas of public interest and the projects that are currently in construction for 2022. Mr. Sevy 
explained the schedule for the plan update process, and noted that this will be for discussion 
at this time and will brought to the next Planning and Zoning meeting.  

 
 Daryl Kruse, 2725 Minnetonka Drive, commented on the east/west connection between 

Hudson and Main Street on 12th and 18th Streets. Those appear to be share the road and he 
could see an opportunity to alternate to 17th and 11th Streets. He feels that a big vehicle many 
times will not see bicycles and he feels this will potentially be a safer route as it will take the 
bicycles off the main thoroughfare. 

 
 Kathy Green, 1911 Timber Drive thanked the Planning and Zoning Commission and the 

Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee for their work on the plan. She did ask if 
something can be done to trigger the lights to turn green when bicycles are present. She also 
noted concerns with distracted drivers.  

 
 Ms. Lynch thanked everyone involved for the robustness of the plan. She noted that we have 

an amazing trail system and she is looking forward to see what will come in the future. 
 
 Ms. Saul seconded that and asked about the five year plan and the new things that have been 

added. She asked why that is not on the list in the next three to four years. Mr. Tolan 
explained that the plan is developed as a whole from looking at where there may be some 
infills that are needed to incorporate some of the projects that need to be integrated in. They 
would also like to have some long term goals for when funds become available. 

 
 Ms. Moser commended the plan and commented that she appreciates the public comments 

about safety and noted her concern with the commuter travelers are going to be going faster 
than recreational users and some of the trails are out of the way from where many of them 
would need to go. Mr. Sevy explained that this was certainly part of staff’s concern as well and 
that it was something that was discussed. The limitations of street widths and type of streets 
have made this more difficult. 

 
 Ms. Crisman asked if there were concerns with current streets located in the center of town 

and whether there was any suggestion to move from 12th or 18th Street to other routes. Mr. 
Sevy explained that there has been some feedback on those routes and a desire to have more 
dedicated infrastructure. However, there would be a public process that would be involved to 
add more dedicated bike infrastructure along those routes and at this time it doesn’t seem that 
there was the will to go through that process. Ms. Howard also explained that the gridded area 
on the map is called out as a bicycle friendly area due to the general low volume of traffic 
which can make it easier and safer to ride. 

 
3.) The next item for consideration by the Commission was an amendment of the RP Master Plan 

for Autumn Ridge Development. This item has been deferred. 
 
4.) The next item on the agenda was a preliminary plat for Autumn Ridge 9th and 11th Additions. 

4

Item 1.



 3 

This item has been deferred.  
 
5.) The next item of business was an RP Site Plan Review for the Cove at Spruce Hills. This item 

has been deferred. 
 
6.)  The next item for consideration by the Commission was an MU Master Plan amendment for 

Pinnacle Prairie Development. Chair Leeper introduced the item and Mr. Weintraut provided 
background information. He explained that this item was discussed at the previous Planning 
and Zoning meeting. It is requested to change the land use from multi-family and mixed use to 
Western Home. They are proposing to build 19 two-family units on two lots on the north and 
south side of Wild Rye Way. He provided a rendering of the proposed master plan that 
showed how the homes will be laid out on the lot. He discussed the proposed elevations and 
made himself available for any questions. Staff recommends approval of the change. 

 
 Mr. Holst and Ms. Lynch abstained from the item. 
 
 Ms. Saul made a motion to approve the item. Mr. Hartley seconded the motion. The motion 

was approved with 6 ayes (Crisman, Hartley, Larson, Leeper, Moser and Saul), 2 abstentions 
(Holst and Lynch) and 0 nays. 

 
7.) The Commission then considered a zoning text amendment to add a requirement for Planning 

and Zoning review of site plans in the CD-DT. Chair Leeper introduced the item and Ms. 
Howard provided background information. She explained that some commission members 
were not on the commission when the new code was discussed, so she will be providing some 
background information again. She explained that there was concern and frustration with the 
fact that it seemed as though a great deal of projects had to come through the commission for 
approval. The idea behind the new code was to create more clear and objective standards in 
the code, making less reason to have an extra review by the Commission. She discussed the 
role of the Commission, which includes planning for the future growth of the city, making 
recommendations on legislative matters related to planning and zoning (amendments to the 
zoning code, changes to zoning map, etc.) and making recommendations on subdivision of 
land, including street extensions and proposals for parks. Review of site plans was not one of 
the official listed duties and was added to the code later for certain newer zoning and overlay 
districts.  

 
 Ms. Howard discussed potential options which include: 

1. Maintain the code as currently adopted 
2. Maintain as currently adopted, but staff provides monthly report to the Commission on 

site plans under review. 
3. Require new buildings in the UG, UG2 and Storefront frontages to be reviewed and 

approved by Planning and Zoning. 
4. Require all new buildings in the Downtown Character District to be reviewed and 

approved by Planning and Zoning 
5. Require all site plans to be reviewed by Planning and Zoning and approved by City 

Council as was previously done in the CBD Overlay. 
 

Mr. Larson feels that one of the primary objectives of the new zoning ordinance was to provide 
a clear set of rules and make it easier for developers and to potentially remove an often 
unnecessary step for the process. He suggested trying out option two to make sure there is 
some kind of a review. 
 
Ms. Crisman also likes the second option and stated that she feels a bit discouraged by how 
many things have been coming back from council that the commission has put so much work 
into. She’s not sure that adding another thing for approval is a great idea if things that have 

5

Item 1.



 4 

been worked so hard on are going to come back again. She likes the idea of staying in the 
loop and checking in on the work already done. 
 
Mr. Holst feels that the new zoning process is a lot more efficient and less subjective so it is 
easier to check things through. The only thing that will be unfortunate to lose is the chance for 
public input. He also said that Planning and Zoning is a check for staff.  
 
Mr. Leeper agreed with the comments from the Commission and stated that it is a tough place 
to be. He likes the second option and asked if there is a mechanism that would allow the 
planning and zoning commission to pull an item in for approval.  
 
Mr. Hartley feels that it would be nice to have an overview for projects, maybe in the form of a 
monthly report so that the Commission can decide if they should take a closer look. His 
concern isn’t just with the Commission not being able to see what is going to happen, but to 
give the public a chance to comment as well. 
 

 Ms. Howard stated that there needs to be a clear path created to deciding on whether a 
project needs to be considered by the Commission. After further conversation, the general 
direction from the Commission to go with a mixture of options two and three.  

 
8.) As there were no further comments, Ms. Lynch made a motion to adjourn. Ms. Moser 

seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 8 ayes (Crisman, Hartley, 
Holst, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Moser and Saul), and 0 nays. 

 
The meeting adjourned at 6:43 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Thomas A. Weintraut, AICP     Joanne Goodrich  
Acting Community Services Manager   Administrative Assistant 
 

6

Item 1.



 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Planning & Zoning Commission 

 FROM: Chris Sevy, Planner I 

  Matthew Tolan, Engineer 

 DATE: April 13, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Cedar Falls Bicycle Plan Update 
 

 
INTRODUCTION 
The Cedar Falls Bicycle Plan functions as a guiding document for infrastructure planning and is 
considered in the planning process when streets in the City are slated to be developed, 
reconstructed, or otherwise maintained. This ensures that opportunities for improving the 
network are not missed at the point when improvements make the most sense. 
 
PURPOSE 
In December of 2019, the Cedar Falls City Council requested an update to the Cedar Falls 
Bicycle Plan. Through collaboration with the Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee, the 
plan was updated and then further refined based on community input. At this time, City Staff is 
bringing forward the latest version of the plan for review by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and recommendation to the City Council.  As a goal for this update, the Bicycle and 
Pedestrian Advisory Committee chose to prioritize the daily commuting utility of the bike network 
while continuing to enhance the already excellent recreational aspects of the network. 
 
HISTORY 
The City adopted its first Bike Plan in 2009. It was developed with input from stakeholders 
throughout the community and with the help of the Iowa Bicycle Coalition and the Active 
Transportation Alliance as consultants to that project. That effort is also the origin of the Bicycle 
and Pedestrian Advisory Committee as currently constituted. After a few years of improvements 
a second iteration or update to that plan was made in 2015. That update was specifically to 
consider changes or additions to the plan map. Similarly, this update in 2022 is focused solely 
on the plan map. 
 
PROCESS 
The following is an outline of the process Staff and the Committee went through to produce this 
latest version of the plan map (events stated in chronological order): 

1. Staff determined the limits and parameters of the project. The following understandings 

were the basis for all discussions: 

a. No widening of streets or rights-of-way would be considered. 

7

Item 2.



 
 

b. Staff provided the Committee an array of design options for our most common 

street widths which provided guidance on what type of bicycle infrastructure would 

fit on any stretch they wanted to discuss.  

c. Putting in bike lanes instead of currently existing on-street parking can be 

considered. However, prior to such a change, it would require a public process 

involving notification of adjacent property owners and a vote/approval by City 

Council. The Bike-Ped Committee would be responsible for conducting the public 

process along the street route where it is proposed on the plan. 

d. While bikes are allowed on sidewalks in most parts of the City, sidewalks were not 

considered bike infrastructure for the purposes of this plan. For reference, 

sidewalks are less than six feet wide. 

e. Multi-use trails are six to ten feet wide and for safety reasons are generally only 

placed along street frontages with limited driveways and/or cross-streets. Multi-

use trails through parks and greenway corridors have few interruptions from traffic 

and are highly valued in the community, but may not be in convenient locations for 

people commuting to work or school by bicycle.  

f. Along streets where more driveways and/or cross-streets are present, on-street 

facilities tend to be safer for bicyclists and pedestrians where motorists are more 

likely to see them. 

 

2. Plan Map Version #1: As a starting point for discussion, staff presented an initial 

proposed plan map to the Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee. This map 

conservatively represented what staff determined to be the most likely to be built out 

based on parameters previously outlined. 

3. The Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee provided their analysis and proposed 

changes to the map. 

4. Considerations were also discussed in the Committee regarding how to present the 

maps for public input. Different map scenarios were discussed but the Committee settled 

on using a single map as a basis for public outreach. 

5. Plan Map Version #2: The map was refined and changed based on Committee input. 

The version intended for public review/input was presented to the Committee for their 

vote to move forward. 

6. A public outreach questionnaire was created and refined through internal staff 

discussions and discussions with the Committee. 

7. Public outreach events were advertised (channel 15, fliers, posters, WCF Courier, social 

media) and held at the Farmer’s Market and the Public Library. The questionnaire was 

open for three weeks and garnered 430 responses. 

8. Staff synthesized and analyzed the data from questionnaire responses and identified the 

most prominent requests and recommendations provided by respondents. 

9. Plan Map Version #3: In response to public input, staff refined the map with several 

routes and notes that were reflective of all input and feedback received up to that point. 

This map was presented to the Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee on February 

8

Item 2.



 
 

1, 2022, where they voted unanimously to recommend that the plan map be brought 

forward for consideration and adoption. 

As illustrated by this process, the current proposed map is the culmination of a large body of 
work and input from a significant number of people. 
 
Details of this presentation and public meeting have been published through various mediums to 
encourage public awareness and attendance in these final steps in the process. 
 
READING THE PLAN MAP 
Attached is the proposed plan map for review. All solid lines indicate what is currently built out 
and dashed lines indicate proposed or future routes yet to be built or added. For routes, here is 
what each color means: 

 Red = Trail 

 Blue = Bike Lane 

 Light Green = Shared Lane (marked with painted “sharrows” or “Share the Road” signs) 

 Dark Green = Paved Shoulder 

RECOMMENDATION 
The Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee (with a vote of 7-0) recommends approval of 
this Bicycle Plan Map Update and Staff brings it forward for the Planning and Zoning 
Commission to discuss and make a formal recommendation to City Council. Staff also 
recommends approval. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Introduction 
and 
Discussion 
3/23/2022 
 

Andrew Shroll, 930 Newman Avenue, Chair of the Bicycle and Pedestrian 
Advisory Committee, spoke on behalf of the committee regarding the updated 
Bicycle Network Plan. The plan is the result of substantial work by the City, the 
committee and public input. As a committee, the mission is to improve the quality 
of life through safe biking and walking. The more connected biking and walking 
are physically, the more connected the community becomes. Continuity of the 
network and intersection improvements are two of the biggest ways to improve 
safety and remove barriers to entry for riders of various skill levels. The goal is 
also to further increase community participation in utilizing this resource. The 
committee hopes that this network is viewed as fitting well with city planning for 
bikeability and walkability as well as broader plans, such as the Black Hawk 
County MPO Pedestrian Master Plan. 
 
Ms. Howard stated that this is actually the next item on the agenda and Mr. Sevy 
will provide background information. He thanked the Bicycle and Pedestrian 
Advisory Committee for all the work that was put into this Plan Update. He 
explained why the plan is being updated, explaining the pride for the bike 
network, the relevance of the plan, regular review of the bike network and 
Council referral in 2019. Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II discussed previous 
iterations of the plan and the 2045 MPO Bikeway Plan. He discussed what will be 
discussed for the proposed 2022 plan update. 
 
Mr. Sevy discussed the parameters of the project, including: 

 BPAC prioritizing commuting utility of bike network 

9

Item 2.



 
 

 no widening of streets or rights-of-way would be considered 

 design options for the most common street width  

 putting in bike lanes instead of currently existing on-street parking 

 sidewalks were not considered bike infrastructure for the purposes of this 
plan 

 multi-use trails are generally only placed along street frontages with 
limited driveways and/or cross-streets 

 and, on-street facilities can be safer for bicyclists where motorists are 
more likely to see them. 

 
Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II, discussed the design considerations and 
concerns, some of which included curb and gutter, parking lane considerations, 
right-of-way acquisitions and costs, and the costs of widening the road.  
  
Mr. Sevy spoke to the methodology and timeline of the planning process for the 
update. Staff developed a plan map for the basis of discussion and the 
committee helped staff refine the plan map. Public feedback was sought for the 
developed plan map, and staff analyzed the data from the questionnaire 
responses and the refined map is being brought to the Commission for 
consideration and referral to Council.  
 
Mr. Tolan discussed the engineering timeline and approval process. Mr. Sevy 
further explained the public outreach process, the questionnaire for public 
feedback that was submitted and responses provided. He also listed the areas of 
public interest from the questionnaire responses. Mr. Tolan explained how to 
read the map, discussed the different areas of public interest and the projects 
that are currently in construction for 2022. Mr. Sevy explained the schedule for 
the plan update process, and noted that this will be for discussion at this time and 
will brought to the next Planning and Zoning meeting.  
 
Daryl Kruse, 2725 Minnetonka Drive, commented on the east/west connection 
between Hudson and Main Street on 12th and 18th Streets. Those appear to be 
share the road and he could see an opportunity to alternate to 17th and 11th 
Streets. He feels that a big vehicle many times will not see bicycles and he feels 
this will potentially be a safer route as it will take the bicycles off the main 
thoroughfare. 
 
Kathy Green, 1911 Timber Drive thanked the Planning and Zoning Commission 
and the Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee for their work on the plan. 
She did ask if something can be done to trigger the lights to turn green when 
bicycles are present. She also noted concerns with distracted drivers.  
 
Ms. Lynch thanked everyone involved for the robustness of the plan. She noted 
that we have an amazing trail system and she is looking forward to see what will 
come in the future. 
 
Ms. Saul seconded that and asked about the five year plan and the new things 
that have been added. She asked why that is not on the list in the next three to 
four years. Mr. Tolan explained that the plan is developed as a whole from 

10

Item 2.



 
 

looking at where there may be some infills that are needed to incorporate some 
of the projects that need to be integrated in. They would also like to have some 
long term goals for when funds become available. 
 
Ms. Moser commended the plan and commented that she appreciates the public 
comments about safety and noted her concern with the commuter travelers are 
going to be going faster than recreational users and some of the trails are out of 
the way from where many of them would need to go. Mr. Sevy explained that this 
was certainly part of staff’s concern as well and that it was something that was 
discussed. The limitations of street widths and type of streets have made this 
more difficult. 
 
Ms. Crisman asked if there were concerns with current streets located in the 
center of town and whether there was any suggestion to move from 12th or 18th 
Street to other routes. Mr. Sevy explained that there has been some feedback on 
those routes and a desire to have more dedicated infrastructure. However, there 
would be a public process that would be involved to add more dedicated bike 
infrastructure along those routes and at this time it doesn’t seem that there was 
the will to go through that process. Ms. Howard also explained that the gridded 
area on the map is called out as a bicycle friendly area due to the general low 
volume of traffic which can make it easier and safer to ride. 

 
 
Attachment: Proposed Bicycle Plan Map 

11

Item 2.



Greenhill Rd

Ridgeway Ave Ridgeway Ave

Hudson Rd

1st St

1st St

University Ave

Lincoln St

Wa
ver

ly R
d

W Airline Hwy

Center St

Ce
nte

r S
t

Hudson Rd

1st St

Lincoln St

University Ave

Greenhill Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

Lone Tree Rd

De
ere

 Rd

18th St

Dunkerton Rd

S U
nio

n R
d

18th St

Viking Rd

Rainbow Dr

Co
lleg

e S
t

12th St

University Ave

27th St

Lev
ers

ee 
Rd

N U
nio

n R
d

Ma
in 

St

Waterloo Rd

Cedar Heights Dr

S M
ain

 St

12th St

Viking Rd

Ma
in 

St

Cedar Heights Dr

Viking Rd

Viking Rd

Cedar Heights Dr

Orchard Dr

4T75

4D17

4D18

4D19

4V14

Blueg rass C t

Blu e
gra

ss
Cir

Wild R ye Way

"!58

"!27

"!27

"!27

"!27

"!58

"!57

"!57

"!58

"!27

"!27

Fra
nkl

in 
St

Grand Blvd

5th St

Blu
ff S

t

Ch
ris

kin
 Rd Brookside Dr

Prairie View Rd

Pro
gre

ss 
Av

e

Ch
an

cel
lor

 Dr

Ann
Ave

Flynn Dr

Laverne Ln

Pa
nth

er 
LnSpringbrook Dr

Ka
ra 

Dr

Athens
Ct

E 14th
Ct

17th
St

Hacienda
Ct

Opal Ln

Bla
ck

ha
wk

Vlg

Carol Ct

RiverRidge Ln

Cherry
wood

Pl

AliceAve

Horty St

Knoke
Pl

Leg
ac

y L
n

Gra
nd

vie
w

Ct

Lo
ng

vie
w

Ct

Ka
ns

as 
St

Me
lro

se
Ct

Em
era

ld Rd

He
dg

ew
oo

d
Cir

Illin
ois

 St

Eth
an

 Ct

Cro
ss

Cre
ek 

Dr

High
St

Grant St

Union Dr

Wh
ite

Wa
y

S Forest
Rd

Jade
Rd

Floral Ct

Ind
ian

a S
t

Woodlawn
Ave

Superior
Way

Orchard
Pl

25th
St

Andover
Ct

Eagle Ridge Rd

Ba
rba

ra
Dr

Sa
ma

nth
a

Cir

Beach St

6th St

Bro
ns

on
 Ct

Es
tat

e
Dr

26th St

Meadow
Park Dr

Ch
ap

ma
n

Ct

Stanwood Dr

Ida St

Ho
we St

Co
tta

ge
Ln

Ga
llo

wa
y

Av
e

Tilton
Dr

Onawa
Dr

Hil
l C

t

Briarwood
Hills Dr

Ke
lly Ct

Ge
ne

vie
ve

Gram
Ct

Gre
ele

y S
t

A S
t

B S
t

Linda Dr

Idaho Rd

Wa
lm

art
Dr

Sunray
Dr

DruryLn

Hig
hg

ate
 Ln

Market
St

Goldenrod Way

Faithway Dr

Woodland
Dr

Lau
rie

Av
e

Rosemary Dr

Del Matro
Rd

Walters Pond Pl

Mustang Rd

Irv
ing

 St

Fer
n

Av
e

Horizon
Dr

Concord Cir

Cedar St

Blackhawk
Ln

Sta
nle

y S
t

Elm Dr

19th St

Arizona
Rd

Utah
Rd

Win
ter

ber
ry

Dr

Ke
nn

ed
y

Av
e

Seerley Blvd

Sh
irle

y S
t

Cyclone Dr

Ore
llan

a
Ave

Wi
llia

ms
on

 Av
e

Hig
hv

iew Ct

Douglas
St

Edgewood St

Elm
wo

od
Av

e

Min
ne

so
ta 

St

Bre
ntw

oo
d D

r

Meadow
View Cir

Ho
lid

ay 
Rd

Theimer
St

Evergreen
Ln Sta

rlit
e

Blv
d

Jes
sic

a L
n

Ch
ad

wic
k R

d

Shawnee
Rd

Sands
Ave

Patterson
Ln

Mathew DrHarriet Ln

Co
ne

flo
we

r
Pk

wy

Jill Dr
Mark Dr
Jodi Dr

Jen
nif

er 
Ln

He
len

 Rd

Green Ave

Shelden Ave

Alden Ave

Am
ity

 Dr

Bir
ds

all
 Dr

Tim
oth

y S
t

Redeker Dr

Sh
elle

y L
n

Meadow
Ln

Loma St

Sc
og

gin St

30th St

Sa
ble

 Ln

Tif
fan

y L
n

Greenhill
Cir

Westgate
Ave

Me
ad

ow
lar

k L
n

WestwoodDr

Linden
Ave

Chateau
Ct

Glo
ria

 St

Ka
sp

en
d P

l

S Park Rd

Cooley St

Ma
gn

oli
a D

r

12th St

LeC
lair

 St

29th St

Feather

Ridge Dr

Fieldstone
Blvd

Glen
Oaks Dr

Joy St

Rocklyn St
Westview

St
Rosewood

Dr
Cadam Ct

Maple St

Parkway
Ave

Wo
od

rid
ge

Dr

Sta
te S

t

Be
lle 

Av
e

Bertchwood

Colorado

Lantz Ave

Jay Ln

Qu
esa

da 
Ct

Granite Ridge Rd

As
hla

nd
 Av

e

Hunter Dr

Mis
so

uri
 St

Po
ssu

m R
d

Ca
rria

ge
 Ln

Tomahawk
Ln

Minnehaha
Ln

Co
rdu

roy
 Dr

Parsley Dr

Timber Cove Dr

Wembly Rd

Prairie St

McKinley St

An
dre

a D
r

Frontier Rd

Gib
so

n S
t

Cottonwood Ln

Ba
ker

 Dr
Fo

rre
st 

Rd

Pic
tur

esq
ue

Dr

Ce
ltic

 Ct

Dako
ta S

t

Bre
nto

n D
r

Winters Dr

Whitetail Dr

Fjo
rd 

Dr

Ca
lifo

rni
a S

t

Lindale Rd

Newland Dr

Ste
wa

rt L
n

Hiawatha Rd

Sw
eet

Ba
sil 

Ln

Cottage Row Ln

Ro
os

eve
lt S

t

Lo
ng

vie
w D

r

Drynan
Dr

Iris Dr

Oster Pkwy

WindingR idge Rd

Lau
rin

da
Dr

Co
lleg

e S
t

Thresher Ct

Wa
rw

ick
 Dr

Ba
rrin

gto
n

Dr

Ad
am

s S
t

Austin Way

Windsor Dr

Jac
lyn

 St

Covey Ct

Ed
die

 St

Quail Hollow Ln

Hic
ko

ry 
Ln

Ca
rey

 Dr
Gla

cie
r D

r

Bonita Blvd

Falcon Ln

Western Ave

Da
ina

 Dr

De
en

a D
r

Vin
e S

t

An
gie

 Dr

Pa
rkg

ate
 Rd

Ba
rne

tt D
r

Da
ma

sc
us

 Dr

No
rse

 Dr

Beaver Rd

Cobblestone Ct

Ca
mb

rid
ge

 Av
e

Ste
rlin

g L
n

Fandre Dr

Stratford Ct

Cre
stv

iew
 Dr

Bir
ch

 St

Ryan Dr

Oxford Ln
Coventry Ln
Yorkshire Dr

Joanne St

Ch
err

yw
oo

d D
r

Ga
s L

igh
t D

r

Pe
arl

 St

Ru
sse

ll D
r

Northview
Ln

Div
isi

on
 St

Po
cah

on
tas

 Rd

Maverick Ave

Fra
nc

is 
St

Edw
ard

s A
ve

Pleasant Dr

31st St

Hazelwood Ln

Butternut Ln

Hilton Dr

Continental Dr

Prairie Rd
Re

dw
oo

d L
n

Hil
lcr

est
 Dr

Elm St

Dr

Orc
ha

rd 
Hil

l D
r

Camden St

Concord St
Saratoga St

Montclair St

Scranton St

Columbia St

Mead o w L n

Country

Viking Plaza Dr

Co
lum

bin
e D

r

Lloyd Ln

Midway Dr

Timberledge Dr

Acorn Ln

Ma
riu

s D
r

Ap
ple

wo
od

 Ln

De
lta

 Dr

He
art

lan
d H

ills
 Dr

Paddington Dr

28th St

Viking Pl

Au
tum

n L
n

Newman Ave

Co
lum

bia Dr

Fir
esi

de
 Dr

Clair St

Tre
nto

n A
ve

Danish Dr

Hig
hla

nd

Cardinal Dr

Shocker Rd

Oa
kla

nd 
Ave

9th St
10th St

Richard Rd

He
art

hs
ide

 Dr

Beech Ave

16th St

Ce
da

r C
res

t D
r

S Ridge Dr

Ala
me

da
 St

Huntington Rd

Oh
io 

St

Ell
en

Alvarado Ave

Pa
rris

h S
t

Fo
ur 

Se
as

on
s D

r

Berry Hill Rd

Longview St

Mil
len

ium
 Dr

Ca
raw

ay 
Ln

We
dg

ew
oo

d D
r

Cordoba Ave

5th St
Blu

eb
ell 

Rd

Pro
du

ctio
n D

r

PE
 Ce

nte
r D

r

Quail Ridge Rd

Sunnyside Dr

Mc
Cla

in 
Dr

Va
lley

 Pa
rk 

Dr

Lake St

Madison St

Spruce

Technology Pkwy

Pa
nth

er 
Pk

wy

Westminster Dr

Ridgeway

Ln

Technology P k wy

Mo
rris

on
 Ln

Winter
Ridge Ln

Sp
rin

g
Va

lley
 Ln

Continental
Acc

Sapphire Rd

Me
mo

ria
l

Av
e

Oak
St

Poplar Hollow Ln

Cedar
Hill
Rd

Linden
St

Timberledge
Pl

Willow Ave

Thomas
St

Co
ron

ado
Ct

Jor
da

n S
t

RiverBluff Dr

Flying
Cloud Ln

Willow
Bend Rd

Sy
mo

ns
 Rd

Lu
ke 

St

Su
ma

c A
ve

Pin
e S

t

Higby Dr

Laurel
Cir

Co
lleg

e S
tHarvest Ln

Boxwood Dr

Wellington Dr

Fai
rvi

ew
 Dr

Ad
dis

on
 Dr

Ca
the

rin
e S

t

Ac
e P

l

Four Winds Dr

As
pe

n D
r

Valley High Dr

Balboa Ave

Primrose

Pri
nce

ton
 Av

e

Pheasant Dr

Vir
gil

 St

Vera Way

Wisconsin St

Ne
ola

 St

Venture Way

Waterbury Dr

Bergstrom Blvd

11th St

Me
rne

r A
ve

Ea
st 

St

DrDr

Dr

Fle
ur 

Dr

Ce
ntr

al A
ve

Five Seasons Blvd

Gro
ve 

St

Commerce Dr

Wi
llo

w L
n

En
ter

pri
se 

Dr

Div
isi

on
 St

Performance Dr

Savannah Park Rd

De
wit

t R
d

Big
 W

oo
ds 

Rd

Elmridge Dr

Campus St

Athens Dr

Ironwood Dr

S Court D
r

Hyacinth Dr

Pendleton Dr

Sunset Blvd

Nordic Ridge Dr

Capital Way

Quail Run Ln

De
vel

op
me

nt 
Dr

Calumett Dr

Holmes Dr

Parker St

Lak
evi

ew
  D

r

Pin Oak Dr

Brandilynn Blvd

Loren Dr

Cy
pre

ss 
Av

e

Da
llas

 Dr

Heritage Rd

Apollo St

Abraham Dr

Kn
oll

 Ri
dg

e D
r

Ea
stp

ark
 Rd

Dr

7th St

Greenhill Dr

Starview Dr

Wynnewood
Dr

19th St

Bo
uld

er 
Dr

Skyview Dr

Lake  Ridge Dr
Vic

tor
y D

r

23rd St

Tuc
so

n D
r

20th St

22nd St

21st St

Independence St

Cla
rk 

     
     

     
    D

r

Carlton Dr

17th St

E Main St

Melrose Dr

Gre
yh

ou
nd

 Dr

15th St
14th St
13th St

Green Creek Rd

Park Dr
Tim

be
r R

idg
e R

d

Ra
il W

ay

Oa
k

Wa
sh

ing
ton

 St
Crescent Dr

S M
ain

 St

No
rdi

c D
r

Briarwood Dr

Oli
ve 

St

Erik Rd

Lone Tree Rd

8th St

Fitkin Rd

2nd St

Iow
a S

t

3rd St

Lilac Ln

Fra
nkl

in 
St

Cottage Row Rd

S U
nio

n R
d

Cla
y S

t

Ro
wn

d S
t

Tre
mo

nt 
St

Wa
lnu

t S
t

4th St

Wyth Rd

Ca
tal

pa 
Ln

Sp
ruc

e L
n

Bo
x E

lde
r L

n

Ha
ckb

err
y L

n

Fo
x

Vie
w D

r

Parkway Ave | Ct

PrairieCt

Lex
ing

ton
 Bl

vd

Purple
Clover Dr

Woodland Ave
Glenwood Ave

Ga
rne

t Rd

N Ridge Cir

Zircon Ln

Normandy
Dr

W Sunshine Ln

Sonoma Dr

Sc
hre

ibe
r

St

Richmond St

Lex
ing

ton
 Dr

St

Ro
os

eve
lt S

t

6th St

5th St
4th St Ca

the
rin

e S
t

St

Pa
rk 

Dr

Minnetonka

8th St

Ell
en

 St

20th St

Brookside Dr

22nd St

Melrose Dr

Sta
te S

t

Gro
ve

 St

Au
tum

n L
n

Edgewood Dr

Bicentennial
Dr

Valley High Dr

Cardinal

Ct

Midway Dr

Ro
wn

d S
t

Valley High Dr

Carlton Dr

Greenhill DrHills Dr

Nordic Dr

Katoski Dr

De
wit

t R
d

Cy
pre

ss 
     

     
  A

ve Lake St

Western Ave

Ford Rd

Cre
sce

nt D
r

18th
St

Grand Blvd

Bri
arw

oo
d D

r

Algonquin Dr
Erik Rd

Cle
arv

iew
 Dr

Maplewood Dr

Greenwood Ave

Madison St

Irving St

Acorn Ln

Ca
mp

us
 St

Ca
mp

us
 St

Pa
nth

er
Ln

E Main StBig
 W

oo
ds

 Rd

Lo
ga

n
St

Wa
sh

ing
ton

 St

3rd St

Rd
Pra

irie
 Do

ck

Technology Pkwy

Sager Ave

Scenic Dr

Amber
Valley Rd

Arbor
Way Blvd

Autumn
Woods Dr

Oli
ve 

St

Scenic
Dr

Ne
bra

ska
 St

Par
k

Blvd

Pe
arl

 St

Cla
y S

t

St

Ca
the

rin
e S

t

Blu
ff S

t

Wa
lnu

t S
t

Tre
mo

nt 
St

Ca
me

o S
t

OakAve

Grand Blvd

OakPark Cir

Lamb e th
Rd

Peri dotRd

Winter Ridge Rd

Jam
es

Dr

Loga nS t

Dr

Ma
ryh

ill
Dr

Alexis Blv d

Ridge

Jua
nita

Ave

L ill
ipu t Ln

Westbrook Rd

Quesa daAve

Monterey Dr
Ingersoll Rd Edg

ew
ood

Dr

Valdez Dr

SOakAve

Reese Rd

Blythe Blvd

Ironwood Dr

Lark Ln

Mauker

Dr

Wood cres tDr

N C
ott

ag
e R

ow
 Rd

River RidgeRd

Sa
int

s
Dr

As
bu

ry 
Ln

Aspen Ct

Fountains Way

Da
llas Dr

Garden Ave

Ve
ral

ta 
Dr

Cle
arv

iew

Hil
lsid

e

La keshore Dr

23rd St

Ho
rs eshoeDr

Hawthorne Dr

Ro
yal

Dr

Thunder Rid ge Blvd

University Dr

Th
ym

eR
d

Cottage Grv

FastLn

Jakob Cir

Go
lde

n
Ln

Fer
nw

oo
d D

r

Maple St Park Pl
Chestnut St

Pine St

Seawar dDr

Linnwo od Dr

Sunnysid e C ir

Shooting Star Way

Prairie Pkwy

Prairie View Rd

Starb
eck Cir

Je n nings Dr

Willow Oak Dr

Post Oak Dr

Sa
ge

R d

WildF lower Ln

Pri
de

mo
re 

DrHomeway Dr

¡¢20

¡¢218

¡¢218

¡¢20

¡¢218

Cedar River

Cedar RiverAlice Wyth Lake

Fisher Lake

Big Wood Lake

Snag Creek

South
Prairie
Lake

North
Prairie
Lake

Dry
 Ru

n C
ree

k

Dry
 Ru

n C
ree

k (S
)

Dry Run Creek (SW)

Dry Run Creek (Univ)

Dry Run Creek (W)

Shirey Lake

Lake Manatt

Mullens Pond

Beaver Creek

Bullfrog Bayou

Railroad Lake

Green Creek

1st Slough

2nd Slough
3rd Slough

Rd

Nordic Dr

A shworth Dr

Donal dD r

Re
d O

ak
 Ln

Ashworth Dr

Andy Ave

Leigh LnEden Way

Lak
esh

ore
 Dr

Arbor Ridge  Rd
Maple Grove Dr

Bark w o od Dr

Arb
ors

 Dr

G reen Cre ek Rd

Whisperi ngPinesCir

Dr

Ca
llu

m C

t

Ve
ral

ta

Tec
h n

olo
gy

Pl

Cyber Ln

Pizar ro C t

K y l i e Ct

Kael Trl

L ore
n D

r

Norse Dr

Ash wor th Dr

Am el i a Dr

A lg on quin Dr

W i
ld Rose Ct

Cadillac Dr
Terrace Dr

Crossway Dr

GreenhillR d

Oregon Rd

Conv
a ir

Ln

Devlin
Cir

Latham Pl Richland Dr

Lovejoy Dr

Melendy LnStu
r gi

s D
r

SL
aw

nR
d

B ic entennial Dr

McC
l ai n

Dr

Pleasant Dr

Terrace Dr

Sun
ny

Ln

S ha
dy

Ln

Park Cir

C h
er

ry
L n

E R i dg
ew

oo
dD

r

W
Ri d

ge w
ood

Dr

Rese

rv e Dr

Ti mberDr

Utility
Pkwy

Summit

Dr

Feather RunTr l

Blu ff St

Ro
cky

Rd

Blai r Ridge Rd

Wi ld H orse Dr

S a
nd a

hlwood Cir

A utumn Ridge Rd

Bi r d
sa l

l P
ark

Dr

G e ral din e R d

Pa
r k

Dr

Lemongrass Dr

Savory
Ln

Cohen Ct

K ea g l es Xing

Pete rs Pkwy

Tierney
Trl

B ig Woods Cree

k

Castle Hill Creek

Riders Rd

Arb
ors

D r

Mandala y Dr

Library Dr

ICity of Cedar Falls, Iowa

© City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. The City of Cedar Falls does not guarantee the accuracy of the information contained on maps accessible on this site.  This information is provided for demonstration purposes only.  All warranties, express and implied, are hereby disclaimed. 2/1/2021
K:\Projects\BikePed\BikeNetwork.mxd

Trails
 
Bike Lane
Shared Lane
Trail
  
   
    
     
      
       
        

Bike Network
Preliminary Recommendation

Future Bike Lane

Future Shared Lane

Future Trail

Controlled
Intersection

Legend

Street-to-Trail
Connection

Parking-to-Trail
Connection

2-1-2022

Gridded Street
Connectivity
Network

Future Paved Shoulder
Paved Shoulder

Future Intersection
Improvements

Uphill Bike Lane
Future Uphill Lane

**Potential Future
Cedar Heights Drive
Update to Trail with
Waterloo and John
Deere Partnerships

**Potential Future
University Ave. Update
to Trail with Urban
Roadway Transition

12

Item 2.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Planning Commission 

 FROM: Michelle Pezley, Planner III 
  Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 

 DATE: April 6, 2022 

 SUBJECT: FP22-001 Wild Horse Fifth Addition Final Plat  
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
Request to approve the Wild Horse Fifth Final Plat. Case #FP22-001 
 

PETITIONER: Midwest Development Co., Owner; CGA Engineering, Engineer 
 

LOCATION: 
 

The property is located south of W. 12st Street and west of Union Road  

 

PROPOSAL 
The petitioner owns a 29.9-acre parcel that is south of W. 12 Street, west of Union Road, and 
with access from Granite Ridge Road. The petitioner proposes to subdivide 8.13 acres of the 
29.9 acres into 19 lots. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The City rezoned the entire 148-acre property from A-1, Agriculture to RP, Planned Residential 
for a maximum of 353 dwelling units in 2005.  A Preliminary Plat for this area, called 
“Copperstone” was approved in July 2005. This plat covered the entire 148-acre property and 
proposed the establishment of 242 building lots with 353 units.  The Final Plat for the Wild Horse 
Ridge First Addition was approved in September 2007.  After several alterations to the 
preliminary plat, in 2021, City approved the latest alteration to the Preliminary Plat of Wild Horse 
Ridge, which increased the density of the development from 2.43 to 2.72 units per acre for fifth –
tenth additions by adding 40 duplex lots.  The duplex lots are proposed to be within Eighth and 
Ninth additions.   
 
ANALYSIS  
The petitioner, Midwest Development Co., proposes the final plat of the Fifth Addition, 
comprised of 8.13 acres of land within the middle of the subdivision, which includes connecting 
Wild Horse Drive to Granite Ridge Road.  The property is zoned RP Planned Residential.  The 
RP zoning district permits a variety of residential uses from single-family to multi-family 
dwellings based on a master plan approved at the time of rezoning, which in this case was 
revised and approved in May of 2021.  The Fifth Addition consists of 19 residential lots, all 
intended for single-family residences.   

13

Item 3.



As originally proposed, the petitioner planned to have the Fifth Addition as 15 lots that did not 
include the connection between Wild 
Horse Drive and Granite Ridge Road 
(highlighted in yellow above).  
Engineering Division and the Public 
Safety Department encouraged the 
connection between Wild Horse Drive 
and Granite Ridge Road to increase 
the connectivity of the existing 
subdivision and eliminate a dead end 
on Granite Ridge Road. The 
preliminary plat was approved prior to 
the new code requirements of 
addressing critical infrastructure 
through a phasing plan. Planning Staff 
has no objections to the additional 4 
lots (highlighted in yellow on the right) 
and adding the intersection of Wild 
Horse Drive and Granite Ridge Road.  
The petitioner will connect to the 
existing stormwater detention.  The 
City’s maintenance and repair 
agreement with the owner/developer 
will address maintenance 
responsibilities for the stormwater 

14

Item 3.



management facilities in the subdivision to ensure proper functioning over time.  The setbacks 
shown  on the face of the plat are consistent with the proposed setbacks from the approved 
Master Plat and Preliminary subdivision.   
 
The City Code states that the final plat must be in substantial conformance with the preliminary 
plat. The proposed change does not change the density, lot size, or configuration of the lots.  
The proposed change increases safety and connection within the subdivision.  Therefore, staff 
finds that the proposed final plat is conforming with the preliminary plat and associated 
conditions.  The petitioner has met that criterion and the associated conditions.   
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, noted that the water, gas, 
and communication services are available to the site. The developer extended the utility 
services to the proposed development. The easements identified on the plat satisfy Public 
Works and CFU requirements. 
 
Cluster mailboxes will be sized and placed in the ROW according to USPS standards. All cluster 
mailboxes will be located on lower volume streets and situated to prevent undue traffic 
congestion according to the direction from the City Engineer’s office. 
 
The submitted Deed of Dedication for this final plat is consistent with the previously approved 
Deeds of Dedication from the previous additions and has addressed all the necessary 
requirements.  
 
All the utilities and internal road connections within the proposed subdivision will be dedicated to 
the public. The installed internal infrastructure is able to serve the platted lots with access to 
public streets and right-of-way. The installed utilities are available for development for the 
platted lots. The petitioner’s engineer has submitted a stormwater management plan to the City 
and it has been reviewed by the City Engineer. The City Engineer has determined that the plan 
meets the City’s subdivision requirements. The Engineering Division is awaiting either final 
completion of public improvements or establish a ‘Contract for Completion’ with the Developer 
before all documents required would be submitted for the public improvements and proceeding 
with Council Approval. 
 
City Code requires that sidewalks be installed along all streets within the subdivision.  The 
petitioner has confirmed that sidewalks, built to City standards, will be constructed along the 
frontage of all lots at the time of lot development, as per City requirements. 
 
The property is located outside of the regulated floodplain.   
 
A courtesy mailing was sent to the neighboring property owners on April 5, 2022. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Gather any comments from the Planning and Zoning Commission and public then continue the 
discussion at the next Planning and Zoning Commission meeting on April 27, 2022 with the 
following conditions.   

1) Any comments or direction specified by the Planning & Zoning Commission. 
2) Conformance to all city staff recommendations and technical requirements.  

15

Item 3.



PLANNING AND ZONING 

Discussion 
4/13/22 
 
 

  
 

Attachments:  

 

Wild Horse Ridge Fifth Addition Final Plat  

Location Map 

Deed of Dedication 

Black Hawk County Auditor Approval of Subdivision Name 

16

Item 3.



Ch
err

yw
oo

d D
r

Co
lum

bin
e D

r

W ild Horse Dr

W 12th St

Peters PkwySonoma Dr

Alexis Blvd

Rocky RidgeRd

Tierney Ter

Jakob Cir

Keagles Xing

Newland Dr

Blair Ridge Rd

Granite Ridge Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

W 12th St

R-1

R-1

RP

A-1

A-1

A-1

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission
April 13, 2022

Final Plat for Wild Horse 5th Addition 
(FP22-001)W Viking

Industrial Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University AveOrchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Hu
ds

on
Rd S M

ain
 St

Cen ter St

R ainbow Dr

Ma
in

St

E Greenhill Rd

W 12th St

W 1st St

E V i kin

gRd

Gree n h il
lR

d

W Ridgeway Ave

W Viking Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

Wa
ver

ly R
d

W 27th St

W Airline Hwy

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ver

see
Rd

E 1st St

W Dunkerton Rd

®¬57

®¬58

®¬27

£¤63

£¤218

^
Location

Map

17

Item 3.



18

Item 3.



19

Item 3.



20

Item 3.



21

Item 3.



22

Item 3.



23

Item 3.



24

Item 3.



25

Item 3.



26

Item 3.



27

Item 3.



28

Item 3.



29

Item 3.



30

Item 3.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 
 TO: Planning and Zoning Commission  

 FROM: Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD), Planner I 

  Luke Andreasen, PE, Principal Engineer 

 DATE: April 7, 2022 

SUBJECT:      The Cove at Spruce Hills Minor Plat 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Request to approve the Cove at Spruce Hills Minor Plat  
(Case # MP22-001) 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Brian Wingert (Developer); The Cove at Spruce Hills LLC (Owner);  
Snyder & Associates, INC. (Engineer)  
 

LOCATION:   
 

6.95-acre property located north of Greenhill Road and east of Spruce Hills 
Drive 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The current property owner of the tract labeled as “Tract F” of Heritage Hills Estates 2nd Addition 
subdivision proposes to develop the parcel with 30, 2-story townhomes units within six buildings 
(4 five-unit townhome buildings, 1 four-unit townhome building, and 1 six-unit townhome 
building. As per subdivision code, a tract can only be developed if the tract area is re-platted to 
create a developable parcel.  
 
The proposed project of developing the subject parcel for multi-family development was 
introduced to the Planning and Zoning Commission at their regular scheduled meeting on 9th 
March 2022 as part of the R-P Site Plan review process. At the meeting, it was presented that 
the minor plat will be forwarded for review to the Commission at a later meeting date, as the 
proposed site plan cannot be approved before approval of the minor plat. The developer 
requests the approval of the submitted minor plat to be able to develop the area for multi-family 
development. 
     
BACKGROUND 
The subject parcel was created as part of Heritage Hills Estates Second Addition subdivision in 
2014. As shown below, Tract F was reserved for multi-family development (with a density ratio 
of no more than 6.30 units per acre) as per the approved RP Site Plan for the area.  
 

31

Item 4.



 
 
The applicant requests the approval of the Cove at Spruce Hills Minor plat in order to develop 
the parcel with 30, 2-story townhome units within six separate buildings. The proposed 
development will be accessed through private streets. More details about the proposal can be 
found in the site plan staff report for the same area.  
 
ANALYSIS 
The subject property (6.95 acres in size) is located north of Greenhill Road and east of Spruce 
Hills Drive and is in RP, Planned Residential District and a portion of the property is also in the 
Highway Corridor and Greenbelt Overlay District. The proposed plat shows the new proposed 
multi-family development would meet the setback requirements of the zoning standards.   
 
The developer will be providing access from Spruce Hills Drive eastward into the parcel with the 
two private streets, Spruce Needle Lane (running west to east) and Spruce Creek Drive (north 
to south), both of which would located in a 45 foot private Ingress/Egress easement. In addition, 
the developer will be adding a 10 feet PUE (Public Utility Easement) along the ingress/egress 
easement.  
The developer will be responsible for maintaining all existing easements (from Heritage Hills 
Estates 2nd Addition final plat) as noted on the attached Minor Plat exhibit as well as the any 
new private easements (including water storm sewer, and sanitary sewer easements) to serve 
the proposed multi-family townhome development private infrastructure.  
 
City staff notes that the proposed on-site infrastructure for multi-family development will be 
private, and the developer will be responsible for providing and maintaining the private 

32

Item 4.



infrastructure. In addition, the developer will be required to install and maintain public sidewalks 
along the existing public streets (Melendy Lane, Spruce Hills Drive and Prairie Parkway). 
Because of the nature of the proposed development, it is important to note and identify the 
project improvements, easements and maintenance responsibility of the developer and future 
residents. More details about easements, improvements and maintenance responsibility can be 
found in the attached Owner’s statement document. 
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) has reviewed the Minor Plat for the Cove at Spruce Hills Plat. Water, 
electric, gas, and communications utility services are available in accordance with the service 
policies of CFU. The developer is responsible for the construction of a properly sized, privately 
owned and maintained water system from the existing 12” water main at the east end of Spruce 
Hills Drive. Included in the installation are valves, fire hydrants and water service stubs for the 
new lots.  Water main sizing and fire hydrant and valve placement locations will need to be 
modified.  This will be done as a part of the construction plan review for the building permits. 
The developer will need to make refundable investments for the installation of the electric and 
gas utilities to and throughout the addition. CFU will install the communication utility fiber system 
to serve the addition in the public Utility easement area.  
 
The plat shows both existing easements and proposed private easements which will be used to 
provide utility services to residents. It is the developer’s intention to have private drives and 
utilities for the subject property. The developer will be responsible for all installation, 
maintenance and improvements for the infrastructure. Included in the improvements are public 
sidewalks along the property boundaries abutting the public streets (including Melendy Lane, 
Spruce Hills Drive and Prairie Parkway) and the developer will be responsible for the 
infrastructure maintenance (including snow removal and any repair work). In addition, the 
developer will be responsible for constructing and maintaining sidewalks along the private 
streets to provide pedestrian connectivity to future residents of the proposed multi-family 
townhome development. More details about the easements, improvements and maintenance 
responsibilities can be found in the attached Owner’s statement document. City staff notes that 
the portion of the north-west corner of the subject parcel is in a flood-plain area, and therefore, 
any grading or construction activity in that area would require a floodplain development permit.  
 
Staff notes that the City will not be responsible for any maintenance of the private infrastructure 
or snow removal and garbage pick-up.  The sidewalks that are in the public right-of-way must 
meet city standards including ADA compliance. The landowner will be responsible for clearing 
snow and maintaining the public sidewalk adjacent to the property, which is the requirement for 
all public sidewalks throughout the city. Staff notes that the public sidewalk must be added by 
the developer prior to getting an occupancy permit for any building established in the area. 
 
The cost of the maintenance of private streets, sidewalks, garbage and snow removal will fall on 
a homeowner’s association, which will be established and stated in the Owner’s declaration of 
covenants and the deed of dedication.   
 
The city staff is working with the developer to finalize the Maintenance and Repair Agreement 
(MRA) for the property. Staff notes that the agreement will need to be finalized and approved by 
City Council before issuance of any building or SWPPP permits for development. In addition, 
staff notes the developer will also have to comply with the existing MRA of the Heritage Hills 
Second Addition, in addition to the new MRA developed for the site (the Cove at Spruce Hills 
site), as it is one of the contributing parcels for any maintenance and repair work in the common 

33

Item 4.



areas. Staff notes these items will be highlighted in the Owner’s statement document to insure 
the future residents are aware of the responsibilities.  
 
City staff is working with the applicant on the deed of dedication/owner’s statements, which 
outline number of items and responsibilities shared between future residents and define the 
maintenance responsibility of common shared areas, including the private streets. Staff notes 
that all the legal documents including the surveyor’s certificate, affidavit of ownership, final plat 
and the owner’s statement will need to be signed, stamped and submitted to city staff prior to 
the case being reviewed at the City Council Meeting. 
 
A courtesy mailing was sent to the neighboring property owners on April 6, 2022 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
City staff recommends approval of the proposed minor plat for the Cove at Spruce Hills with the 
following stipulations:  
  

1. Any comments or direction specified by the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
2. Conformance with all city staff recommendations and technical requirements. 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion 
4/13/2021 

 

 

34

Item 4.



Pinnacle Prairie Trai l

Greenhill Trail

â

â

â

Bluegrass Ct

Prairie Pkw y

Heritage Rd

Stanwood Dr

Spruce Hills Dr

Ea
stp

ark
 Rd

Melendy Ln

Ste
wa

rt L
n

Maucker Rd

Bluegrass Cir

E Greenhill Rd

Prairie Pkwy

R-2

R-2
RP

MU

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission
April 13, 2022

Minor Plat for the Cove at Spruce Hills 
(MP22-001)W Viking

Industrial Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University AveOrchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Hu
ds

on
Rd S M

ain
 St

Cen ter St

R ainbow Dr

Ma
in

St

E Greenhill Rd

W 12th St

W 1st St

E V i kin

gRd

Gree n h il
lR

d

W Ridgeway Ave

W Viking Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

Wa
ver

ly R
d

W 27th St

W Airline Hwy

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ver

see
Rd

E 1st St

W Dunkerton Rd

®¬57

®¬58

®¬27

£¤63

£¤218

^

Location
Map

35

Item 4.



C1

L1

N53°56'20"E 448.32' M

N54°00'48"E 448.32' P

L2

L3
N63°40'32"W 111.14' M
N63°36'04"W 111.14' P

N69°13'52"W 177.21' M

N69°09'24"W 177.21' P

L4

S0
°1

5'
47

"W
 3

80
.6

9'
 M

S0
0°

20
'1

5"
W

 3
80

.6
9'

 P

N89°36'59"W 596.68' M
N89°32'29W 596.69'P

L5
S0

°2
4'

04
"W

 1
29

.7
3'

 M
S0

0°
28

'3
2"

W
 1

29
.7

3'
 P

S89°37'53"E 194.04' M
S89°33'25"E 194.04' P

302,756 SF
6.95 AC

LOT 1

N
0°

15
'4

7"
E 

11
3.

80
'

N63°40'32"W 351.65'

L6

S80°23'29"W 196.24'

C2L7

L8

L9 C3 N80°23'29"E 191.14'

L1
0

L11
L12

C4

S80°23'29"W 126.08'

C5L13
L1

4

L15 C6
N80°23'29"E 126.08'

C7

L16

N63°40'32"W 132.50'

N26°19'28"E 65.00'

S63°40'32"E 468.00'

L1
7

S63°40'32"E 76.26'
L18

N63°40'32"W 86.26'

N63°40'32"W 448.00'

S63°40'32"E 448.00'

L1
9

L2
0

N63°40'32"W 270.50'

16
.2

6'

C8

N80°23'29"E 126.08'L2
1

N63°40'32"W 132.50'

59.96'
10'

L2
2

N63°40'32"W 86.84'

S63°40'32"E 81.16'
L23

L2
4

L25

L2
6

12
.5

0'
22

.5
0'

10
'L27

L2812'

10
'

L29

65.06'

65
.0

6'

10'

S1
9°

03
'4

7"
E 

85
.3

5'

N1
9°

03
'4

7"
W

 1
00

.4
5'

L30

70.44'

L3
1

31.37'

L32

L33

S59°52'57"W 149.74'N30°26'40"W
 82.83'

143.48'

N63°40'32"W 19.96'

SPRUCE HILLS DRIVE

LOT 8

PR
A

IR
IE

 P
A

R
K

W
A

Y

TRACT "A"

LOT 7

LOT 6

HERITAGE HILLS ESTATES SECOND ADDITION

(FILE NUMBER-2018-00011103)

LOT 17

TRACT "D
"

TRACT "B"

TRACT "C"

TRACT "F"

M
EL

EN
D

Y 
LA

N
E

EXISTING 10' PUE
FILE #2018-00011103

EXISTING 50' ELECTRIC EASEMENT
FILE #2018-00011103

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 3

0'
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

ET
BA

C
K 

LI
N

E
FI

LE
 #

20
18

-0
00

11
10

3

30' BUILDING SETBACK LINE

EXISTING 25' BUILDING SETBACK LINE
FILE #2018-00011103

EXISTING 25' BUILDING SETBACK LINE
FILE #2018-00011103

30' B
UILDING SETBACK LINE

EXISTING 25' BUILDING SETBACK LINE
FILE #2018-00011103

EXISTING 10' PUE
FILE #2018-00011103

EXISTING 30' SANITARY SEWER
EASEMENT FILE #2018-00011103

45' PRIVATE INGRESS/EGRESS,
PUBLIC EMERGENCY VEHICLE ACCESS,
PRIVATE STORM, SANITARY & WATER MAIN EASEMENT

45' PRIVATE INGRESS/EGRESS,
PUBLIC EMERGENCY VEHICLE ACCESS,
PRIVATE STORM, SANITARY & WATER MAIN EASEMENT

30' PRIVATE SANITARY
SEWER EASEMENT

PRIVATE WATER
MAIN EASEMENT

10' PRIVATE STORM SEWER EASEMENT

PRIVATE STORM SEWER
EASEMENT AREA

10' PRIVATE STORM
SEWER EASEMENT

10' PUE 10' PUE

10' PUE

10' PUE

10' PUE

10' PUE

BR
IA

R
W

O
O

D
 H

IL
LS

 F
O

U
R

TH
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N

 FND 5/8" REBAR

 NE CORNER
 TRACT "F"

 SE CORNER TRACT "F" &
 SE CORNER SE1/4
 SEC. 24-89-14
 FND CONC. MONUMENT

NW CORNER
TRACT "F"

NORTHERN CORNER
TRACT "F"

HERITAGE HILLS ESTATES SECOND ADDITION

30' BUILDING SETBACK LINE

GREENHILL ROAD

SW CORNER TRACT "F"

PRIVATE STORM WATER
FACILITIES EASEMENT

Owner:ANFINSON
PROPERTIES L.L.C.

Owner:ANFINSON
PROPERTIES L.L.C.

Owner: JACK S. OLESON
Owner:ANFINSON

PROPERTIES L.L.C.

Owner:HERITAGE HILLS EST

SEC ADD HOMEO

Owner: SORENSEN REAL
ESTATE PARTNERS INC.

Owner: CYNTHIA R. ZELIN
LOT 16

Owner: CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

100-YR

100-YR

100-YR100-YR

100-YR

100-YR

100-YR 100-YR

100-YR

100-YR

100-YR

100-YR

10
0-Y

R

100-YR

100 YEAR FLOOD PLAIN LINE

EXISTING 30' SANITARY SEWER
EASEMENT FILE #2018-00011103

BY
DA

TE
R

EV
IS

IO
N

M
AR

K
Sc

al
e:

Te
ch

ni
ci

an
:

T-
R

-S
:

SN
YD

ER
 & 

AS
SO

CIA
TE

S, 
INC

. 
|

C
he

ck
ed

 B
y:

En
gi

ne
er

:

D
at

e:

1"
 =

Pr
oj

ec
t N

o:
Sh

ee
t

Project No:

Sheet

27
27

 S
.W

. S
N

YD
ER

 B
LV

D
AN

KE
N

Y,
 IO

W
A 

50
02

3
51

5-
96

4-
20

20
 | 

w
w

w
.s

ny
de

r-a
ss

oc
ia

te
s.

co
m

ED
G

AJ
D

03
-0

8-
20

22

50
'

12
1.

08
80

.0
1

1 
of

 1

121.0880.01

1 of 1

TH
E 

C
O

VE
 A

T 
SP

R
U

C
E 

H
IL

LS
M

IN
O

R
 S

U
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N
 P

LA
T

C
ED

A
R

 F
A

LL
S,

 IA
    

    

    

    

T8
9N

-R
14

W
-2

4

V:
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

20
21

\1
21

.0
88

0.
01

\C
AD

D
\1

21
08

80
_F

PL
T.

dw
g 

JU
ST

IN
 S

TR
O

M
, 2

2X
34

 E
XH

IB
IT

 L
, 2

02
2/

03
/3

0,
 5

:4
5 

PM
, A

N
SI

 F
U

LL
 B

LE
ED

 D
 (3

4.
00

 X
 2

2.
00

 IN
C

H
ES

)

FEET

0 50

MINOR PLAT

PLAT DESCRIPTION
TRACT "F", HERITAGE HILLS ESTATES SECOND ADDITION, AN OFFICIAL PLAT NOW
INCLUDED IN AND FORMING A PART OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA.

OWNER & DEVELOPER
THE COVE AT SPRUCE HILLS, L.L.C.
201 WASHINGTON STREET
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, 50613.

ZONING
RP - PLANNED RESIDENTIAL

BULK REGULATIONS:
25' FRONT YARD (ALONG SPRUCE HILLS DR. & PRAIRIE PARKWAY)
30' BACKYARD (PERIMETER SETBACK ALL OTHER SIDES)

AREA
6.95 ACRES (302,756 S.F.)

Erin D. Griffin, PLS Date 

License Number 19710
My License Renewal Date is December 31, 2023

Pages or sheets covered by this seal:

ERIN D.
GRIFFIN
19710

AIOW

LI
CE

NS
ED

PR
OFESSIONAL LAND

SURVEYOR

I hereby certify that this land surveying document
was prepared and the related survey work was
performed by me or under my direct personal
supervision and that I am a duly licensed
Professional Land Surveyor under the laws of the
State of Iowa.

SHEET 1 OF 1

LEGEND

FEATURES                                         FOUND                                   SET
Section Corner
5/8" Rebar, Red Plastic Cap #12088

     (Unless Otherwise Noted)
ROW Marker
ROW Rail
Control Point
Bench Mark
Platted Distance                                            P
Measured Bearing & Distance                      M
Recorded As                                                 R
Deed Distance                                              D
Calculated Distance                                      C
Minimum Protection Elevation                    MPE
Centerline
Section Line
1/4 Section Line
1/4 1/4 Section Line
Easement Line

1/2" Rebar, Yellow Plastic Cap # 19710

INDEX LEGEND
SURVEYOR'S NAME / RETURN TO:
     ERIN GRIFFIN
     SNYDER & ASSOCIATES, INC.
     2727 SW SNYDER BOULEVARD
     ANKENY, IOWA 50023
     515-964-2020
     EGRIFFIN@SNYDER-ASSOCIATES.COM
SERVICE PROVIDED BY:
     SNYDER & ASSOCIATES, INC.
SURVEY LOCATED:
     TRACT "F"
     HERITAGE HILLS ESTATES SECOND ADDITION
     SEC. 24-89-14
REQUESTED BY:
     THE COVE AT SPRUCE HILLS, L.L.C.

AREA ABOVE RESERVED FOR RECORDER'S STAMP

THE COVE AT SPRUCE HILLS PLAT 1

LINE TABLE (PLATTED)

LINE #

L1

L2

L3

L4

LENGTH (FT)

52.51

61.13

82.46

80.57

DIRECTION

N00° 19' 10"E

N43° 14' 37"W

N54° 51' 03"W

S77° 29' 38"W

CURVE TABLE (PLATTED)

CURVE NO.

C1

Δ RADIUS

15.00'

ARC LENGTH

23.53'

TANGENT CHORD BEARING/LENGTH

S44°37'08"E 21.19'

LINE TABLE (MEASURED)

LINE #

L1

L2

L3

L4

LENGTH (FT)

52.51

61.13

82.46

80.57

DIRECTION

N00° 14' 42"E

N43° 19' 05"W

N54° 55' 31"W

S77° 25' 10"W

BOUNDARY TABLE

CURVE TABLE (MEASURED)
CURVE NO.

C1

Δ

89°52'29"

RADIUS

15.00'

ARC LENGTH

23.53'

TANGENT

14.97'

CHORD BEARING/LENGTH

N44°41'36"W 21.19'

L5 101.13 N05° 21' 02"W L5 101.13 N05° 25' 30"W

CURVE TABLE (EASEMENTS)
CURVE NO.

C2

C3

C4

C5

C6

C7

C8

Δ

10°00'00"

10°00'00"

54°04'01"

10°00'00"

10°00'00"

54°04'01"

54°04'01"

RADIUS

137.50'

127.50'

82.50'

82.50'

72.50'

72.50'

127.50'

ARC LENGTH

24.00'

22.25'

77.85'

14.40'

12.65'

68.41'

120.31'

TANGENT

12.03'

11.15'

42.10'

7.22'

6.34'

36.99'

65.06'

CHORD BEARING/LENGTH

S85°23'29"W 23.97'

N85°23'29"E 22.22'

S53°21'29"W 74.99'

S85°23'29"W 14.38'

N85°23'29"E 12.64'

N53°21'29"E 65.90'

N53°21'29"E 115.90'

LINE TABLE (EASEMENTS)

LINE #

L6

L7

L8

L9

L10

L11

L12

L13

L14

L15

L16

L17

L18

L19

L20

L21

L22

L23

L24

L25LENGTH (FT)

76.42

29.87

10.00

30.64

71.32

45.00

6.26

29.86

10.00

30.57

6.26

55.00

11.13

45.00

45.00

45.00

31.88

68.83

10.00

60.40DIRECTION

S26° 19' 28"W

N89° 35' 56"W

N00° 24' 04"E

S89° 35' 56"E

N26° 19' 28"E

N63° 40' 32"W

S26° 19' 28"W

N89° 35' 56"W

N00° 24' 04"E

S89° 35' 56"E

N26° 19' 28"E

S26° 19' 28"W

S00° 15' 47"W

N26° 19' 28"E

S26° 19' 28"W

N00° 24' 04"E

S26° 19' 28"W

S57° 07' 30"W

N26° 19' 28"E

N57° 07' 30"E

L26

L27

L28

L29

L30

L31

L32

L33

29.12

43.93

37.30

80.90

29.83

40.77

52.51

45.71

N26° 19' 28"E

N63° 40' 32"W

S63° 40' 32"E

N51° 37' 17"E

N69° 57' 47"E

S19° 03' 47"E

S38° 20' 00"E

S30° 07' 03"E

HWY 51

GREENHILL RD.

"A RESUBDIVISION OF TRACT "F", HERITAGE HILLS SECOND ADDITION, AN OFFICIAL PLAT"

36

Item 4.



 

 

OWNER’S STATEMENT AND DECLARATION OF COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS  OF 

THE COVE AT SPRUCE HILLS PLAT 1, A RESUBDIVISION OF TRACT F OF HERITAGE HILLS 

ESTATES SECOND ADDITION 

IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA 

 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

 
That The Cove at Spruce Hills, LLC, an Iowa limited liability company, including its successors and assigns 

(the “Platted Property Owner”) with its principal office in the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, 

Iowa, being desirous of setting out and platting into a single lot the land described in the attached Certificate 

of Survey by Erin D. Griffin, a Licensed Professional Land Surveyor, dated __________________, 2022, 

do by these presents designate and set apart the aforesaid premises as a subdivision of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa the same to be known as: 

 
THE COVE AT SPRUCE HILLS MINOR PLAT (the “Platted Property”) 

 
all of which is with the free consent and the desire of the Platted Property Owner. 

 
BACKGROUND 

 

1. The Cove at Spruce Hills, LLC, an Iowa limited liability company, is the owner of that certain real 

property previously described as Tract F of Heritage Hills Estates Second Addition,, Cedar Falls, Black 

Hawk County, Iowa. 

 

2. On or about the date hereof, the Platted Property Owner submitted for recording a Minor Subdivision 

Plat for The Cove at Spruce Hills Minor Plat, a resubdivision of Heritage Hills Estates Second Addition 

Tract F.  

 

3. All provisions, obligations, and responsibilities under the “Deed of Dedication of Heritage Hills Estates 

Second Addition,” and associated Maintenance and Repair Agreement (Black Hawk County File # 

2018-00011427) shall be recognized as reaffirmed and continuing and shall not be considered amended 

or rescinded by this Owner’s Statement and Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions, unless 

specifically stated herein. 

 

EASEMENTS 

 

The Platted Property Owner does hereby grant and convey a 10 feet PUE (Public Utility Easement) as 

shown on The Cove at Spruce Hills Minor Plat (attached hereto and hereinafter referred to as Exhibit A) and 

to any corporation, firm, or person furnishing utilities for the transmission and/or distribution of gas, electric, 

communication service or cable television, for the erection, laying, building, and maintenance of said 

services over, across, on and/or under the area of the PUE as shown on Exhibit A. 

 

The Platted Property Owner also does hereby grant an ingress/egress easement to the public and to any 

emergency service provider, over, across and on the ingress/egress easement as shown on Exhibit A. 

 

All existing easements of record shall be retained and shall be recognized as continuing in effect and shall 

not be considered amended or rescinded by this Owner’s Statement and Declaration of Covenants and 

Restrictions.    

 

Any and all drainage easements will be required to follow the Maintenance and Repair Agreement (MRA) 

37

Item 4.



 

for the Platted Property, attached hereto as Exhibit B, and no building structures, fence structures, 

landscaping features, private gardens or any other possible obstruction can be built in or over said drainage 

easements. The Platted Property Owner, and/or contractors working in or on the Platted Property shall be 

responsible to maintain said easements to be free and clear of any physical obstruction(s), thus allowing the 

unimpeded conveyance of storm water runoff to the stormwater detention facility as described in Exhibit B, 

on record with the City of Cedar Falls Engineer's Office. 

 

All private easements shown on Exhibit A are to the benefit and obligation of the Platted Property Owner.   

No building structures, fence structures, landscaping structures, private gardens or any other possible 

obstruction can be built in and over said private easements, as shown on Exhibit A. 

 

RESTRICTIONS 

 
Be it also known that the Platted Property Owner does hereby covenant and agree for itself and its 

successors and assigns that the Platted Property be and the same is hereby made subject to the following 

restrictions upon its use and occupancy as fully and effectively to all intents and purposes as if the same 

were contained and set forth in each deed of conveyance or mortgage that the undersigned or its successors 

in interest may hereinafter make for said  Platted Property and that such restrictions shall run with the land 

and with said Platted Property for the length of time and in all particulars hereinafter stated, to-wit: 

 

1. The Platted Property Owner plans to file a declaration of submission of property to horizontal property 

regime (the “Declaration”) as provided for in Iowa Code Chapter 499B to submit the lot to a condominium form 

of ownership.  The Declaration will provide for a condominium owners association (the “Condo Association”) 

that will be responsible for the management of the condominium regime and for the maintenance, repairs, and 

replacement of the general and limited common elements set forth in the Declaration.  

 

2. The Condo Association will be responsible to keep the Platted Property free of weeds and debris. 

 

3. No obnoxious or offensive trade or activity shall be carried on upon the Platted Property nor shall 

anything be done thereon which may be or become an annoyance or nuisance to the neighborhood. 

 
4. All approaches, driveways, and private streets in the Platted Property shall be paved with Portland 

Cement Concrete (PCC). 

 
5. No old or used buildings shall be moved upon the Platted Property for any purpose. No auxiliary 

buildings or sheds shall be allowed upon the Platted Property for any purpose. 

 

6. No radio station or short-wave operators of any kind shall operate from the Platted Property which 

shall cause interference with audio or visual reception upon any property adjoining the Platted Property. No 

exterior radio antenna shall be erected or maintained in or on the Platted Property. No satellite TV antenna 

or "Dish" may be maintained, constructed or erected on the Platted Property unless it is constructed in the 

rear yard and at least twenty feet from the property line and is shielded from the public view by shrubbery 

and landscaping. No dish larger than 24" will be allowed. 

 
7. No dwelling on the Platted Property shall be occupied until the exterior is completed and finished 

and the interior substantially completed and finished, and same inspected by the City of Cedar Falls and an 

occupancy permit issued by the City of Cedar Falls. 

 

8. No bus, semi-tractor, RV, fifth-wheel camper, trailer or truck of any kind except what is commonly 

described as a "pick-up truck" shall be kept or parked on the Platted Property for a period not to exceed 

38

Item 4.



 

twenty-four hours, after which said vehicle cannot return to said Platted Property for a period of five days, 

provided, however, that this prohibition shall not apply to such vehicles driven in said Platted Property in 

pursuit of and in conducting their usual business. 

 

9. All buildings erected on the Platted Property shall be constructed in accordance with the City Code 

of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.  

 
10. No animals, livestock, or poultry of any kind shall be raised, bred or kept on the Platted Property, 

except that in any individual residential unit constructed on the Property two dogs or cats maximum, or 

other household pets are allowed and then only if they are not kept, bred or maintained for any commercial 

purposes, such animals shall be kept under control so as not to constitute a public nuisance and must be kept 

in compliance with applicable laws and regulations of the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

Dog runs or dog kennels of any kind are prohibited. 

 
11. Any and all fencing constructed on the Platted Property shall have a minimum set back of one foot 

from the property line and must comply with all easement restrictions. Construction of any privacy fencing 

must have the support posts on the interior side of the fencing. 

 
12. No building or structure shall be erected, placed or altered on the Platted Property until the building 

plans, showing all buildings, patios, and pools, and showing the location thereof, and side yard distances, 

rear yard distances, front yard distances, driveways, and walkways, and type of construction have been 

approved in writing as to conformity and harmony of the external design and quality workmanship and 

materials by a representative of the Platted Property Owner. 

 
13. Factory-built housing or modular homes will not be allowed.  

 
14. Each person or entity who is record owner of a fee or undivided fee interest in any condominium 

unit on the Platted Property shall be a member of the Condo Association. Voting rights and membership in 

the Condo Association shall be set forth in the Declaration.   

 
One of the purposes of the Condo Association shall be to maintain the general and common elements of the 

condominium regime as provided in the Declaration. Such maintenance shall include, but not limited to, 

streets, sidewalks, handicap ramps, sanitary sewers, storm sewers, water mains and services, landscaping, 

mowing, watering, upkeep of any underground sprinkler system, snow removal, refuse pick-up, and 

maintenance of all stormwater facilities.  

 
The annual dues, and any adjustments thereof, for the Condo Association shall be as set forth in the 

Declaration and shall be sufficient to fund ongoing maintenance of the general and common elements as 

outlined in the Declaration. The Cove at Spruce Hills, LLC shall be exempt from any dues expense, except 

to the extent that The Cove at Spruce Hills, LLC owns one or more condominium units on the Platted 

Property.  

 
IMPROVEMENTS 

 

Private Improvements and Standards: 

 
1. All development on the platted property shall be constructed according to the approved Site Plan, 

attached hereto as Exhibit C.  

 

2. Spruce Needle Lane, a private street, as shown on Exhibit C, shall be brought to City grade at its 

39

Item 4.



 

intersection with Spruce Hills Drive. Said private street shall be twenty-five (25) feet in width, back of curb 

to back of curb, with approved hard surface pavement in accordance with the City of Cedar Falls Fire Code 

and as specified per Exhibit C and building construction plans.   

 

3. All private utilities shall be installed as required by the City of Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances.  

 

4. City water shall be provided to the Platted Property as required by the Municipal Water Utilities of 

the City of Cedar Falls to a privately owned water distribution system that consists of piping, valves, fittings, 

and water service lines. 

 

5. Fire hydrant(s) shall be provided as required by the Cedar Falls Public Safety Department. The fire 

hydrant(s) shall be exercised by Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) as needed at the cost of the Platted Property 

Owner or Unit Owners through the Cove at Spruce Hills Condominium Owners Association, or successors 

or assigns. 

 

6. A private storm sewer, together with the necessary manholes, catch basins, and water detention 

basins will be provided as specified by the City Engineer or designee. 

 

7. A private sanitary sewer, together with the necessary manholes and sewer service lines shall be 

installed as specified by the City Engineer or designee. 

 

8. All private sidewalks and ramps shall be constructed as specified on Exhibit C. 

 

9. All Private Improvements shall be constructed, owned, maintained, and repaired or replaced by the     

Platted Property Owner. 

 

Public Improvements and Standards: 

 

1. All public utilities shall be installed as required by City of Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances.  

 

2. Public sidewalks and ramps shall be constructed within the public ROW according to City 

standards and specifications. Said sidewalk shall be maintained by the Platted Property Owner.  
 

The Public Improvements described herein shall be installed in accordance with the specifications of the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and performed under the supervision of the City Engineer or designee. All public 

sidewalks shall be constructed prior to issuance of an occupancy permit for any dwellings on the Platted 

Property. In the event the Developer does not provide the required Public Improvements that meet City 

Specifications, as determined solely by the City Engineer, the City Engineer may give the Developer written 

notice by ordinary mail that said Public Improvements shall be so completed within thirty (30) days. In the 

event the Developer fails to comply with said notice, the City may, at the sole discretion of the City, 

complete the necessary Public Improvements and the Platted Property Owner, for itself, and for its 

successors, grantees and assigns, waives all statutory requirements of notice of time and place of hearing and 

agree that the City may install said Public Improvements and assess the total costs thereof against the Platted 

Property. 

 
SIGNED AND DATED ________________________________, 2022. 

 

 

THE COVE AT SPRUCE HILLS, LLC, an Iowa limited liability company 

 

 

40

Item 4.



 

By: _____________________________ 

 

Printed name: ______________________ 

 

Title: _____________________________ 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF _________________________________, SS: 

 

 This record was acknowledged before me on ___________________________, 2022 by 

_____________________________ as ________________________________ of The Cove at Spruce Hills, 

LLC, an Iowa limited liability company. 

 

 

STAMP       ___________________________________________ 

       Notary Public in and for said State 

 

 
 

11259890 

 
 
 

41

Item 4.



 

 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA, BLACK HAWK COUNTY: ss 
 

On this     day of   ,2022, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public 

in and for the State of Iowa, personally appeared Brian J. Wingert, Manager of The Cove at Spruce 

Hills LLC, to me known as the identical persons named in and who executed the foregoing 

instrument and acknowledged that they executed the same as their voluntary act and deed on behalf 

of The Cove at Spruce Hills LLC. 
 

 

 

Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

42

Item 4.



C1

N0°14'42"E 52.51'

N53°56'20"E 448.32'

S43°19'05"E 61.13'

S54°55'31"E 82.46'

S63°40'32"E 111.14'

S69°13'52"E 177.21'

N77°25'10"E 80.57'

S0
°1

5'
47

"W
 3

80
.6

9'

N89°36'59"W 596.68'

N
5°

25
'3

0"
W

 1
01

.1
3'

N
0°

24
'0

4"
E 

12
9.

73
'

N89°37'53"W 194.04'

302,756 SF
6.95 AC

LOT 1

30' B.S.L

30
' B

.S
.L

30' B.S.L

25' B.S.L

25
' B

.S
.L

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 1

0'
 P

.U
.E

EXISTING 10' P.U.E

30' B.S.L

50' ELECTRIC EASEMENT

30' EX SANITARY
EASEMENT

21

22
23

17

18
19

20

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11
12

13

14

15

16

25
26

2728
29

30

24

BM500

BM501

   100

   101

   102

   103

Concrete

Spruce Hill Dr.

C
on

cr
et

e

Sp
ru

ce
 H

ill 
D

r.

Concrete
Parking
Area

Concrete
Parking
Area

Building

Concrete
Flume

Sidewalk

Edge
Vegetation

Field Tile
Intake=905.87
At Ground
Elevation

Sanitary
Cleanout=907.86

Field Tile
Intake=900.79
At Ground
Elevation

911

912

914

914915

913

915

918

916
917

918
919

920
921922

917 916
914 913 912 911

90
9

90
6

911913

915

908

902

902

901

899

898

901

901

91
4

928

927
926 925 924 923

922

921

920

919
918 917 916 915

914

913

912

911

923

922

921

920

919

917

916

915914

913

912

911

90
9 90

8 90
7

90
6 90

5 90
4 90

3 90
2 90
1

900

89
9

89
8

898

899

900

901

902

897
897

896
896

895

895

894

894

89
3

89
2

89
1

893

894

895

896

897

898

899

900

901

902

903

90
4

90
5

90
6

90
7

GFE=914.70

GFE=905.10

GFE=906.60

GFE=908.10

GFE=908.70

GFE=908.30

GFE=915.15

914.49

91
4.4

4

913.98

914.71CL

914.04CL

914.78

906.39

91
1.1

1

906.85

905.42

904.07

904.61

903.55

906.46

903.60

906.08

907.04

907.80

Rim=904.81

903.09

904.14

904.95

911.57

914.09

913.63

915.11

905.84CL

915.20

Rim=909.57

907.79

-2
.0

0%

4.
89

%

905.90CL

906.58

1.00%

915.44

-2.00%

-2.00%

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●
●●●

●●
●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●●

●

●

●

914

914

915

918919

910

909

91
0

908

908
907

90
5

90
8

908

907 906 905 904 903

902

90
6

906

90
5 905

904
903

902
901
900

899

90
4

903
902
901

900

914

910 909

908
907
906

905
904

903

909

907

908

90
8

91
3 91

2 91
1 91

0 90
9 908

907

906

910 90
9

90
8

912

91
3

91
4

91
5

911

910

909

908

907

906

912
913

914

904

905

906

907

905

906

908908

907

904.43

904.97

905.04

904.58

904.59

907.34

907.56

908.01

907.20

907.01

907.13

907.31

1.00%

1.00%

1.00%

1.00%

-0
.7

0%

906.54

906.08

Rim=906.98

Rim=907.69

906.60
907.31

Rim=914.42

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●●●●●●●●●●●

●
●

●

●
●

●
●

●●●●●●

●

●
●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●
●

●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●●

●

●

●

6.
75

%

1.
50

%

6.
71

%

10
.0

0%

1.
48

%

6.
76

%

1.
51

%

3.
68

%

10
.1

1%

1.
47

%

1.
51

%

10
.0

8%

898.32

898.82

SPRUCE HILLS DRIVE

SPRUCE CREEK DRIVE

BY
DA

TE
R

EV
IS

IO
N

M
AR

K
Sc

al
e:

Te
ch

ni
ci

an
:

T-
R

-S
:

SN
YD

ER
 & 

AS
SO

CIA
TE

S, 
INC

. 
|

C
he

ck
ed

 B
y:

En
gi

ne
er

:

D
at

e:

1"
 =

Pr
oj

ec
t N

o:
Sh

ee
t

Project No:

Sheet

27
27

 S
.W

. S
N

YD
ER

 B
LV

D
AN

KE
N

Y,
 IO

W
A 

50
02

3
51

5-
96

4-
20

20
 | 

w
w

w
.s

ny
de

r-a
ss

oc
ia

te
s.

co
m

ED
C

JW
M

ED
C

09
-2

7-
21

30

12
1.

08
80

.0
1

C
50

0

121.0880.01

C500

TH
E 

C
O

VE
 A

T 
SP

R
U

C
E 

H
IL

LS
G

R
A

D
IN

G
 A

N
D

 E
R

O
SI

O
N

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

PL
A

N
C

ED
A

R
 F

A
LL

S,
 IA

R
EV

IS
ED

 A
S 

PE
R

 O
W

N
ER

R
EV

IS
ED

 A
S 

PE
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
EN

TS
  

1-
21

-2
2

 2
-8

-2
2

  

JW
M

 J
FS  

1 2  

TT
N

-R
R

W
-S

S

V:
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

20
21

\1
21

.0
88

0.
01

\C
AD

D
\S

P_
12

10
88

0_
G

R
D

.d
w

g 
JU

ST
IN

 S
TR

O
M

, G
R

AD
IN

G
 A

N
D

 E
R

O
SI

O
N

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

PL
AN

, 2
02

2/
02

/1
5,

 1
:4

4 
PM

, A
N

SI
 F

U
LL

 B
LE

ED
 D

 (3
4.

00
 X

 2
2.

00
 IN

C
H

ES
)

FEET

0 30

A. UTILITY WARNING: THE UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE BEEN LOCATED FROM FIELD
SURVEY INFORMATION AND/ OR RECORDS OBTAINED. THE SURVEYOR
MAKES NO GUARANTEE THAT THE UTILITIES SHOWN COMPRISE ALL SUCH
UTILITIES IN THE AREA, EITHER IN SERVICE OR ABANDONED. THE SURVEY
FURTHER DOES NOT WARRANT THAT THE UTILITIES SHOWN ARE IN THE
EXACT LOCATION INDICATED.

B. PROTECT EXISTING UTILITIES FROM CONSTRUCTION DAMAGE. ANY DAMAGE
THAT OCCURS SHALL BE REPAIRED BY THE CONTRACTOR TO THE OWNERS
SPECIFICATIONS WITHOUT ADDITIONAL COMPENSATION.

C. PRIOR TO GRADING, THE OWNER/ CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN A GRADING
PERMIT.

D. GRADES SHOWN ARE FINISHED GRADE AND/OR TOP OF PAVING SLAB
(GUTTER), UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

E. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE SILT FENCE AROUND ALL STORM INTAKES
AND WHERE SHOWN ON THE PLAN. SILT FENCE AROUND STORM INTAKES
SHALL BE MAINTAINED UNTIL PAVING AND SEEDING/ SODDING ARE
COMPLETE.

F. INSTALL CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE AT PRIVATE DRIVE CONNECTION.

G.  THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFICATION AND
COORDINATION OF ALL SITE UTILITIES AND IMPROVEMENTS WITH THE
ARCHITECTURAL MECHANICAL/ ELECTRICAL/ PLUMBING SYSTEMS
INCLUDING ROUTING, CRITICAL DIMENSIONS, CONNECTIONS, AND INVERT
ELEVATIONS.

H. CONTRACTOR TO STRIP AND STOCKPILE TOPSOIL FROM ALL AREAS TO BE
CUT OR FILLED. RESPREAD TO MINIMUM 6" DEPTH TO FINISH GRADES.

I. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR CLEANING DIRT AND DEBRIS FROM
NEIGHBORING STREETS, DRIVEWAYS, AND SIDEWALKS CAUSED BY
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES.

J. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE BELOW GRADE INLET PROTECTION IN ALL
STORM SEWER STRUCTURES.

K. G.F.E = GARAGE FLOOR ELEVATION.

GRADING NOTES

Post Spacing
(5'-0" max.)

Post Spacing
(5'-0" max.)

 

 

 

Variable (20'-0" for a normal 10'-0" wide ditch.)

TYPICAL SILT FENCE DITCH CHECK

Foreslope Backs
lope

1

2" min.

20" min.

ATTACHMENT TO POST

Fabric

Post

Wire or
Cable Ties

Insert 12 inches of fabric a minimum
of 6 inches deep (fabric may be
folded below the ground line).

Reduce post spacing to 5'-0" at water
concentration areas, or as required
to adequately support fence.

1

2

 

24"
36"

8'-0" Spacing

DETAILS OF SILT FENCE ON LONGITUDINAL SLOPES

1

2
Ground Line Fabric

 

See plans for spacing.

(Profile View)
TYPICAL SILT FENCE INSTALLATION ON LONGITUDINAL SLOPES

1

1

'T' Steel
Fence Post
4'-0" min.

Ground line

Fabric

Flow

SILT FENCE

200'-0" max. length per section
(600'-0" if slope is flatter than 5%)

(Plan View)
TYPICAL SILT FENCE INSTALLATION ON LONGITUDINAL SLOPES

Ground ContoursInstall parallel to
ground contour.

Install "J-hook" at each end of an
individual section of silt fence.

SILT FENCE (TYP)

SILT FENCE (TYP)

SILT FENCE (TYP)

SEDIMENT BASKET (TYP)

INLET PROTECTION (TYP)

FILTER SOCK (TYP)

FILTER SOCK (TYP)

SEDIMENT BASKET (TYP)

SEDIMENT BASKET (TYP)

100 YR FLOOD
PLAIN

SILT FENCE (TYP)

SEDIMENT BASKET (TYP)

SEDIMENT BASKET (TYP)

SEDIMENT BASKET (TYP)

SILT FENCE (TYP)

FILTER SOCK (TYP)

SILT FENCE (TYP)

SEDIMENT BASKET (TYP) FILTER SOCK (TYP)

10' WIDE EMERGENCY SPILLWAY,
TOP OF BERM @ 902.70, SPILLWAY @

901.95. 30 TON EROSION STONE 10'
WIDEx2'DEEP TO DITCH

43

Item 4.



Hydrologic Soil Group—Black Hawk County, Iowa

Natural Resources
Conservation Service

Web Soil Survey
National Cooperative Soil Survey

3/10/2022
Page 1 of 4

47
05

21
0

47
05

26
0

47
05

31
0

47
05

36
0

47
05

41
0

47
05

46
0

47
05

51
0

47
05

21
0

47
05

26
0

47
05

31
0

47
05

36
0

47
05

41
0

47
05

46
0

47
05

51
0

546020 546070 546120 546170 546220 546270 546320 546370 546420 546470

546020 546070 546120 546170 546220 546270 546320 546370 546420 546470

42°  30' 2'' N
92

° 
 2

6'
 2

4'
' W

42°  30' 2'' N

92
° 
 2

6'
 3

'' W

42°  29' 52'' N

92
° 
 2

6'
 2

4'
' W

42°  29' 52'' N

92
° 
 2

6'
 3

'' W

N

Map projection: Web Mercator   Corner coordinates: WGS84   Edge tics: UTM Zone 15N WGS84
0 100 200 400 600

Feet
0 30 60 120 180

Meters
Map Scale: 1:2,190 if printed on A landscape (11" x 8.5") sheet.

Soil Map may not be valid at this scale.

44

Item 4.



MAP LEGEND MAP INFORMATION

Area of Interest (AOI)
Area of Interest (AOI)

Soils
Soil Rating Polygons

A

A/D

B

B/D

C

C/D

D

Not rated or not available

Soil Rating Lines
A

A/D

B

B/D

C

C/D

D

Not rated or not available

Soil Rating Points
A

A/D

B

B/D

C

C/D

D

Not rated or not available

Water Features
Streams and Canals

Transportation
Rails

Interstate Highways

US Routes

Major Roads

Local Roads

Background
Aerial Photography

The soil surveys that comprise your AOI were mapped at 
1:12,000.

Warning: Soil Map may not be valid at this scale.

Enlargement of maps beyond the scale of mapping can cause 
misunderstanding of the detail of mapping and accuracy of soil 
line placement. The maps do not show the small areas of 
contrasting soils that could have been shown at a more detailed 
scale.

Please rely on the bar scale on each map sheet for map 
measurements.

Source of Map: Natural Resources Conservation Service
Web Soil Survey URL: 
Coordinate System: Web Mercator (EPSG:3857)

Maps from the Web Soil Survey are based on the Web Mercator 
projection, which preserves direction and shape but distorts 
distance and area. A projection that preserves area, such as the 
Albers equal-area conic projection, should be used if more 
accurate calculations of distance or area are required.

This product is generated from the USDA-NRCS certified data as 
of the version date(s) listed below.

Soil Survey Area: Black Hawk County, Iowa
Survey Area Data: Version 29, Sep 14, 2021

Soil map units are labeled (as space allows) for map scales 
1:50,000 or larger.

Date(s) aerial images were photographed: Nov 21, 2021—Nov 
24, 2021

The orthophoto or other base map on which the soil lines were 
compiled and digitized probably differs from the background 
imagery displayed on these maps. As a result, some minor 
shifting of map unit boundaries may be evident.

Hydrologic Soil Group—Black Hawk County, Iowa

Natural Resources
Conservation Service

Web Soil Survey
National Cooperative Soil Survey

3/10/2022
Page 2 of 4

45

Item 4.



Hydrologic Soil Group

Map unit symbol Map unit name Rating Acres in AOI Percent of AOI

377C Dinsdale silty clay loam, 
5 to 9 percent slopes

C 1.8 8.2%

426C2 Aredale loam, 5 to 9 
percent slopes, 
moderately eroded

B 1.2 5.6%

911B Colo-Ely complex, 0 to 5 
percent slopes

C/D 1.3 6.2%

4377C Dinsdale-Urban land 
complex, 5 to 9 
percent slopes

C 4.3 19.8%

4426C Aredale-Urban land 
complex, 5 to 9 
percent slopes

B 1.5 6.9%

4911B Colo-Ely-Urban land 
complex, 2 to 5 
percent slopes

C/D 11.5 53.4%

Totals for Area of Interest 21.5 100.0%

Hydrologic Soil Group—Black Hawk County, Iowa

Natural Resources
Conservation Service

Web Soil Survey
National Cooperative Soil Survey

3/10/2022
Page 3 of 4

46

Item 4.



Description

Hydrologic soil groups are based on estimates of runoff potential. Soils are 
assigned to one of four groups according to the rate of water infiltration when the 
soils are not protected by vegetation, are thoroughly wet, and receive 
precipitation from long-duration storms.

The soils in the United States are assigned to four groups (A, B, C, and D) and 
three dual classes (A/D, B/D, and C/D). The groups are defined as follows:

Group A. Soils having a high infiltration rate (low runoff potential) when 
thoroughly wet. These consist mainly of deep, well drained to excessively 
drained sands or gravelly sands. These soils have a high rate of water 
transmission.

Group B. Soils having a moderate infiltration rate when thoroughly wet. These 
consist chiefly of moderately deep or deep, moderately well drained or well 
drained soils that have moderately fine texture to moderately coarse texture. 
These soils have a moderate rate of water transmission.

Group C. Soils having a slow infiltration rate when thoroughly wet. These consist 
chiefly of soils having a layer that impedes the downward movement of water or 
soils of moderately fine texture or fine texture. These soils have a slow rate of 
water transmission.

Group D. Soils having a very slow infiltration rate (high runoff potential) when 
thoroughly wet. These consist chiefly of clays that have a high shrink-swell 
potential, soils that have a high water table, soils that have a claypan or clay 
layer at or near the surface, and soils that are shallow over nearly impervious 
material. These soils have a very slow rate of water transmission.

If a soil is assigned to a dual hydrologic group (A/D, B/D, or C/D), the first letter is 
for drained areas and the second is for undrained areas. Only the soils that in 
their natural condition are in group D are assigned to dual classes.

Rating Options

Aggregation Method: Dominant Condition

Component Percent Cutoff: None Specified 

Tie-break Rule: Higher

Hydrologic Soil Group—Black Hawk County, Iowa

Natural Resources
Conservation Service

Web Soil Survey
National Cooperative Soil Survey

3/10/2022
Page 4 of 4

47

Item 4.



Prepared  by: Erin D. Griffin, PLS Snyder  & Associates,  Inc., 2727 SW Snyder  Boulevard  Ankeny,  lowa 50023 (515) 964-2020

Return to: Erin D. Griffin, PLS Snyder  & Associates,  Inc., 2727 SW Snyder  Boulevard  Ankeny,  lowa 50023 (515) 964-2020

SURVEYOR  'S CERTIFICATE

THE COVE  AT SPRUCE  HILLS PLAT 1, AN OFFICIAL  PLAT, CEDAR  FALLS, 10WA

I CERTIFY  THAT  DURING  THE  MONTH  OF SEPTEMBER  2021 AT THE  DIRECTION  OF THE

COVE  AT  SPRUCE  HILLS,  L.L.C.,  A SURVEY  WAS  MADE,  UNDER  MY SUPERVISION,  OF THE
PARCEL  OF LAND  TO BE KNOWN  AS LOT 1, THE  COVE  AT SPRUCE  HILLS  PLAT  1, AS
SHOWN  ON THE  ATTACHED  PLAT,  AND  THE  BOUNDARY  OF WHICH  IS MORE  PARTICULARY

DESCRIBED  AS FOLLOWS:

PLAT  DESCRIPTION:

TRACT  "F"  HERITAGE  HILLS  ESTATES  SECOND  ADDITION,  AN OFFICIAL  PLAT  NOW
INCLUDED  IN AND  FORMING  A PART  OF CEDAR  FALLS,  BLACK  HAWK  COUNTY,  10WA.

IFURTHER  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  PLAT  AS SHOWN  IS A CORRECT  REPRESENTATION  OF THE

SURVEY  AND  ALL  CORNERS  WILL  BE MARKED  AS INDICATED

Erin D. G License No. 19710

48

Item 4.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Planning and Zoning Commission 

 FROM: Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD), City Planner I 

  Luke Andreasen, PE, Principal Engineer 

 DATE: April 6, 2022 

 SUBJECT: RP District Site Plan for the Cove at Spruce Hills Townhomes (SP21-013) 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
RP Site Plan of the Cove at Spruce Hills Townhomes  

PETITIONER: Brian Wingert (Developer); The Cove at Spruce Hills LLC (Owner);  
Snyder & Associates, INC. (Engineer)  
 

LOCATION: 
 

The 6.95-acre property is located north of Greenhill Road and east of Spruce 
Hills Drive 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The developer is proposing to build 30, 2-story townhome units within six buildings (four (4) five-
unit townhome buildings, one (1) four-unit townhome building, and one (1) six-unit townhome 
building) on the last remaining undeveloped area of Heritage Hills Estates 2nd Addition 
subdivision. The proposed development will be on Tract F of Heritage Hills Estates 2nd Addition 
subdivision, which was reserved for multi-family development as per the approved RP Master 
Plan for the area. The six proposed buildings will have access through a private street, Spruce 
Needle Lane extending east and Spruce Creek Drive running north-south, which would also be 
private. As per the subdivision code, Tract F can only be developed if the tract is re-platted to 
create a lot. The minor plat to establish the new lot for development will also be reviewed 
alongside the site plan. City staff notes the proposed site plan cannot be approved before the 
approval of the minor plat. 
 
BACKGROUND 
In the summer of 2004, the entire property of 19.12 acres (“Heritage Hills Estates Second 
Addition Subdivision”) was rezoned to RP, Planned Residence District, for the construction of 
one and two-family residences, multifamily dwellings, and condominiums with a density not to 
exceed 4.47 dwelling units per acre. In the winter of 2014, the RP plan (see next page and 
attached) was amended to change the area shown for multi-family dwellings to single-family 
dwellings. This RP Master Plan reflected the proposed final subdivision plat and also 
established other proposed uses on the remaining acreage (i.e. multi-family and a commercial 
area). The amendment stated the multifamily area will have a density ratio of no more than 6.30 
units per acre. Also, a clause stating the commercial area may be converted to multifamily at a 

49

Item 5.



later date if the commercial use proves to not be viable. 
 
The preliminary plat for the Heritage Hills Estates Second Addition was approved by the 

Planning and Zoning Commission on June 24, 2015 and by the City Council on July 6, 2015.  
 
In 2017, a final plat was approved which included the development of 17 lots, Tract A (Melendy 
Lane) Tract B, C, D, the expansion of Spruce Hills Drive eastward and the expansion of Prairie 
Parkway northward.  
 
Last year, a plan for Lot 17 of Heritage Hills Estates Second Addition was approved for the 
construction of three duplex residential structures, which was consistent with RP Plan. Now the 
last parcel, Tract F, is proposed for development. If the subject townhome project is approved 
and constructed on Tract F of Heritage Hills Estates Second Addition, the subdivision will be 
fully built out.  
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Zoning: 
As noted above, the subject property is zoned RP, Planned Residential District with a portion of 
the property also in the Highway Corridor and Greenbelt Overlay Districts. RP Districts are 
established with a comprehensive development plan. The RP District is a “mixed-use” type of 
zoning classification which allows the establishment of a mixture of residential types as well as 
some commercial uses to create a more diverse neighborhood. The proposed site plan of multi-
unit residential townhomes matches the RP master plan for the area.  

 

50

Item 5.



 
Land Use and Density: 
As stated above, the subject parcel, Tract F, has an allowed residential density of no more than 
6.30 units per acre or 44 dwelling units. The proposal of 30 residential townhome units within six 
multi-unit buildings meets both the land use and density requirements as specified in the 
developmental procedures agreement, which was developed with the RP Master plan for the 
area. 
 
Proposed Layout of the Development: 
The RP Planned Residence District provides flexibility in establishing lot sizes, setbacks and 
general layout of the development which then must be approved through the site plan review 
process.  In this case, the development is proposed as a condominium regime with 30 units on 
one lot. All the streets and infrastructure will be private and maintained by a Homeowner’s 
Association. The site layout is arranged with garages and pedestrian entries accessed from the 
private streets and finished façades with doors leading to rear porches/patios which face 
Greenhill Road and neighboring properties. This design provides two facades – one facing the 
private street and one facing the public street and neighboring properties.  
 
The proposed site plan illustrates 25 foot front yard setbacks from the private street easement 
for all buildings along the Spruce Needle Lane and Spruce Creek Drive. The proposed six 
buildings are spaced a minimum of 20 feet apart, which provides adequate open space between 
the buildings for privacy and provides breaks in the facades.  The buildings will be setback a 
minimum of 30 feet from the lot line along Prairie Parkway to be consistent with the approved 
setback shown on the final plat of Heritage Hills Estates Second Addition and will meet the 30-
foot required perimeter setback for the RP district. All the minimum required setbacks are 
provided. 
 
All infrastructure will be private and is delineated with private easements on the site plan and will 
be recorded with the plat.  A 45-foot easement will be established for the private streets (Spruce 
Needle Lane and Spruce Creek Drive), which will narrow from the 60-foot public street right-of-
way of Spruce Hills Drive at the entrance of the development.  An easement for public and 
emergency vehicle access will need to be established over the private streets with the plat. 
Other private easements will be delineated for the private storm sewer and sanitary sewer. CFU 
will require an easement for the water main which will be extended to serve this development.   
There is an existing 50-foot Electric easement along E. Greenhill Road. In addition, the 
proposed site plan shows 10-foot public utility easements where required.  
 
Site Access: 
The proposed development will be accessed through private streets, which will include an 
easterly extension of the Spruce Hills Drive, which will be known as Spruce Needle Lane (a 
private drive running west-east) and Spruce Creek Drive (a private drive running north-
south).The private streets are proposed to be 24 feet in width with six parking stalls 
perpendicular to the roadway along Spruce Creek Drive to facilitate guest parking on the site 
since there the narrow street width and multiple driveways will limit available on-street parking. 
The proposed site plan includes sidewalks, which will need to meet ADA requirements, along 
the edge of the private streets to allow pedestrian movement throughout the development. In 
addition, sidewalks meeting City standards will be required along all public street frontages, 
including Spruce Hills Drive, Melendy Lane, and Prairie Parkway.  
 
 

51

Item 5.



City staff notes private streets are discouraged as per the city’s subdivision code for the 
following reasons:  

 Private streets are often proposed in order to save space and cost associated with 
pavement depths and rights-of-way and street widths which do not meet City street 
standards.  As a consequence, the City does not accept private streets as public 
improvements and all future maintenance cost falls to future owners/residents of the 
development and possibly adding a significant financial burden once the pavement needs 
to be replaced or reconstructed. If a homeowners association (HOA) hasn’t been set up 
to collect funds over time for future maintenance costs, these areas may experience 
disinvestment in the future and homeowners often turn to the City for assistance if that 
occurs.  

 Secondly, since the private streets are not dedicated to the City, the property owners or 
the HOA will be responsible for services, such as garbage pick-up and snow removal.   
 

Staff has noted these issues to the developer and indicated the deed of dedication and owners 
declaration of covenants will need to be carefully drafted to ensure future buyers are aware of 
these costs and responsibilities.  The documents will be reviewed with the minor plat and 
provided these issues are clearly addressed in the subdivision documents, staff is accepting of 
the private streets in this particular case due to the unique site constraints: 1) the parcel is 
bounded by wetlands and floodplain to the north and east and, 2) no street connection will be 
allowed to Greenhill Road, which is an arterial street.  As a consequence, the proposed streets 
will be dead end and only serve this development and not function for neighborhood traffic 
circulation. The developers are responding to the community market for townhomes instead of 
larger multi-family buildings, and therefore, it is more challenging to provide a connected street 
layout, such as a loop street.    
 
As per code, cul-de-sacs or dead-end streets are also discouraged, but if allowed they do not 
exceed 600 feet in length and are designed to meet Fire Code regulations for emergency 
vehicle access and turn around.  The City’s Fire Division has reviewed the proposed 
development and finds it acceptable.  
 
Landscaping: 
HCG Highway Corridor and Greenbelt Overlay Zoning District require the incorporation of 
landscaping standards to provide continuity of developments within the HCG overlay district. 
Required landscape areas shall be 65 percent of the lot exclusive of buildings and the yard area 
shall be planted with a combination of trees and shrubs to achieve a minimum of 0.05 points per 
square foot of landscaped area. Additionally, a minimum of 0.75 points per linear foot of street 
frontage must be achieved in the right-of-way area to meet street tree planting requirement and 
screening is required along the lot line adjacent boundary to screen the development from major 
arterial roads. Following is the table which summarizes required and proposed landscaping 
improvements as per code. 
 

Site Landscaping 

Overall Lot area 302,756  sq. ft. 

Total area of Building footprint on lot  31,350 sq. ft. 

Total area exclusive of building footprint 271,406 sq. ft. 

Min. landscaping points required  8,820 points (271,406 * 0.65 * 0.05)  

Landscaping points proposed  8,820 points (4,480 points – overstory trees, 
2400 points – evergreen trees, 1,020 points  – 

52

Item 5.



understory trees, and 920 points – shrubs) 

Street Tree Planting 

Min, street tree planting points required 0.75 points per linear foot of street frontage 

Required street tree planting points 447.75 points (597 ft * 0.75 points) 

Street tree planting points proposed 480 points (6 trees) 

Parking lot screening (provided in the proposed site plan) 

 
The proposed landscaping plan meets the minimum landscaping points requirement as per 
code.  
 
Building Elevations: 
The proposed site plan includes six townhome buildings; four containing five units, one four-unit 
building, and one six-unit building. All the townhomes look identical to one another. The rear 
elevation snapshot below will be visible from peripheral areas of the site, including from 
Greenhill Road, and the front elevation snapshot below will be visible from the private drives in 
the development. Building materials include the use of cultured stone (minimal), three shades of 
lap siding, three shades of wood shakes and asphalt roofing shingles. The shades of wood 
shakes and lap sidings are nicely balanced and complement each other. 

 
 
Implications for future residents: 
The proposed project for multi-family residential development on private drives means the city 
will not undertake and provide any maintenance of the private drives and sidewalks. Also, the 
city will not provide services, such as snow removal and garbage pick-up for the area. The cost 
of the maintenance of streets, sidewalks, garbage removal and snow removal will be the 
responsibility of a homeowner’s association, which will be established at the time of 
development. These items of responsibility must be stated in the Owner’s declaration of 
covenants and the deed of dedication.    

53

Item 5.



 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, has the following technical comments 
on the proposed site plan.  
 

 All basic utility services are available to the site. The developer is responsible for the 
construction of a properly sized, privately owned and maintained water system beginning 
at the existing 12-inch water main at the east end of the Spruce Hills Drive. Water main 
sizing and fire hydrant and valve placement locations will need to be modified. This will 
be done as a part of the construction plan review. The developer is currently working with 
CFU personnel to address the comments. CFU also notes the trees and other 
landscaping features proposed on the landscaping plan are within the utility easement 
area. And removal and replacement of the trees or any other landscaping located within 
these areas may be disturbed by utility maintenance, repair, or replacement is the 
responsibility of the property owner. 

 

 The City Engineering Division staff members have reviewed the plans and have found 
them acceptable. Since the roads, storm sewer, sanitary sewer, and most of the 
sidewalks are private infrastructure, engineering staff has minimal input on the 
construction plans. Due to the proximity of the project site to the floodplain, the detention 
was designed for stormwater runoff quality control purposes and not designed for full 
storage. The City will not be responsible for any maintenance on the private infrastructure 
including snow removal. The sidewalks which are located in the public right-of-way must 
meet city standards including ADA compliance. The landowner will be responsible for 
clearing snow and maintaining the public sidewalk adjacent to the property, as is the 
requirement for all public sidewalks throughout the city.  

 

 Staff notes the proposed project site will need to be platted to execute the proposed site 
plan since the property is shown as “Tract F” of Heritage Hills Estates 2nd Addition 
subdivision. As per subdivision code, tracts can only be developed if the tract area is re-
platted to create a developable parcel, i.e. a lot. Once the minor plat is approved, the site 
plan can be approved concurrently. City staff notes there will be no street lighting in the 
proposed development. The developer is proposing exterior garage lights which will all be 
controlled by photocells to provide street lighting in the development. City staff 
recommends adding street lighting at least on the street intersection (standards followed 
in any residential development on the public street). City staff is working with the 
applicant on the deed of dedication/owner’s statements, which outlines a number of 
items, will be shared among the future residents, such as the maintenance responsibility 
of common shared areas, private utilities and private streets.  

 
A courtesy notice about proposed site plan development was provided to the surrounding 
residents within 200 feet of the proposed project site was sent out on March 1st, 2022.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION  
City staff recommends approval of the proposed site plan for the Cove at Spruce Hills 
Townhomes with the following stipulations: 

1) Any Comments or direction specified by the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
2) Conformance to all city staff recommendations and technical comments. 

Staff notes the site plan cannot be approved prior to approval of the minor plat.  
 

54

Item 5.



PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Introduction 
& 
Discussion  
3/9/2022 

Chair Leeper introduced the item and Mr. Atodaria provided background information. He  
discussed a rezoning in 2004 and an RP Plan amendment in 2014 and the changes  
made. He explained that in 2017 a final plat was approved and the proposed project will  
be the last development in the subdivision. It is proposed to build 30 units of 2-story  
townhomes within six buildings that would include four (4) five-unit townhome buildings,  
one (1) four-unit townhome building and one (1) six-unit townhome building. He  
discussed the proposed site plan layout with regard to garage and pedestrian access,  
facades and infrastructure. He noted that all infrastructure, including the internal streets  
and sidewalks would be private. He noted staff concerns about private streets and that  
long term maintenance and provision of services would fall to future homeowners. Mr.  
Atodaria spoke about the setbacks, easements, site access, stormwater management,  
landscaping and building elevations. It is noted that the sidewalks in the public right-of- 
way must meet city standards, including ADA compliance. The homeowners will be  
responsible for clearing snow, garbage removal and maintaining both the public and  
private sidewalks (installed within property boundary). He described the outstanding  
issues that included the need for lighting plan, approval of the minor plat prior to the site  
plan, and submission of the Deed of Dedication addressing responsibilities of  
maintenance of shared areas. He explained that future residents should note that the  
City will not provide any maintenance of private streets or sidewalks, or provide services  
such as snow removal and garbage pickup and the cost of such things will be the  
responsibility of the Home Owners Association or the developer.   
  
Brian Wingert, 2110 Flynn Drive, spoke regarding the project as the developer. He  
discussed the density issues and the compromise to reduce it. He also explained that  
there will be a lot of landscaping and beautification done in the area. He also noted that  
an on-site manager has been hired to be available for any issues in the neighborhood.  
Mr. Wingert explained that the units are at a sale point of $250,000 and discussed  
affordable housing. 
 
Ms. Saul feels it is a good use of space. Ms. Lynch stated her appreciation for not  
removing the forest area behind the properties. The item was continued to the next  
meeting. 
 

Discussion  
&  
Vote 
4/13/2022 

55

Item 5.



Pinnacle Prairie Trai l

Greenhill Trail

â

â

â

Bluegrass Ct

Prairie Pkw y

Heritage Rd

Stanwood Dr

Spruce Hills Dr

Ea
stp

ark
 Rd

Melendy Ln

Ste
wa

rt L
n

Maucker Rd

Bluegrass Cir

E Greenhill Rd

Prairie Pkwy

R-2

R-2
RP

MU

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission
April 13, 2022

R-P Site Plan Review for
the Cove at Spruce Hills Townhomes
(SP21-013)

W Viking
Industrial Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University AveOrchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Hu
ds

on
Rd S M

ain
 St

Cen ter St

R ainbow Dr

Ma
in

St

E Greenhill Rd

W 12th St

W 1st St

E V i kin

gRd

Gree n h il
lR

d

W Ridgeway Ave

W Viking Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

Wa
ver

ly R
d

W 27th St

W Airline Hwy

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ver

see
Rd

E 1st St

W Dunkerton Rd

®¬57

®¬58

®¬27

£¤63

£¤218

^

Location
Map

56

Item 5.



SITE PLAN
FOR

THE COVE AT SPRUCE HILLS TOWNHOMES
MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA

VICINITY MAP

PROJECT LOCATION

SCALE 1"=500'

BY
DA

TE
R

EV
IS

IO
N

M
AR

K
Sc

al
e:

Te
ch

ni
ci

an
:

T-
R

-S
:

SN
YD

ER
 & 

AS
SO

CIA
TE

S, 
INC

. 
|

C
he

ck
ed

 B
y:

En
gi

ne
er

:

D
at

e:

1"
 =

Pr
oj

ec
t N

o:
Sh

ee
t

Project No:

Sheet

27
27

 S
.W

. S
N

YD
ER

 B
LV

D
AN

KE
N

Y,
 IO

W
A 

50
02

3
51

5-
96

4-
20

20
 | 

w
w

w
.s

ny
de

r-a
ss

oc
ia

te
s.

co
m

ED
C

JW
M

ED
C

09
-2

7-
21

N
A

12
1.

08
80

.0
1

C
10

0

121.0880.01

C100

TH
E 

C
O

VE
 A

T 
SP

R
U

C
E 

H
IL

LS
TI

TL
E 

SH
EE

T
C

ED
A

R
 F

A
LL

S,
 IA

R
EV

IS
ED

 A
S 

PE
R

 O
W

N
ER

R
EV

IS
ED

 A
S 

PE
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
EN

TS
R

EV
IS

ED
 A

S 
PE

R
 C

IT
Y 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 

1-
21

-2
2

 2
-8

-2
2

 3
-3

0-
22

 

JW
M

 J
FS

 J
FS 

123 

TT
N

-R
R

W
-S

S

V:
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

20
21

\1
21

.0
88

0.
01

\C
AD

D
\S

P_
12

10
88

0_
TS

H
.d

w
g 

JU
ST

IN
 S

TR
O

M
, T

IT
LE

 S
H

EE
T,

 2
02

2/
03

/3
1,

 7
:4

6 
AM

, A
N

SI
 F

U
LL

 B
LE

ED
 D

 (3
4.

00
 X

 2
2.

00
 IN

C
H

ES
)

OWNER
THE COVE AT SPRUCE HILLS LLC
201 WASHINGTON ST
CEDAR FALLS, IA 5013

DEVELOPER
BRIAN WINGERT
2021 MAIN STREET, SUITE A
CEDAR FALLS, IA

ENGINEER
SNYDER & ASSOCIATES
2727 SW SNYDER BLVD
ANKENY, IA 50023
CONTACT:  ERIC CANNON

INDEX OF SHEETS

C100 TITLE SHEET
C200 PROJECT INFORMATION
C300 DIMENSION PLAN
C400 UTILITY PLAN
C500 GRADING AND EROSION CONTROL PLAN
C600 PLANTING PLAN
C601 PLANTING PLAN GENERAL NOTES

I hereby certify that this engineering document
was prepared by me or under my direct personal
supervision and that I am a duly licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the
State of Iowa.

Eric D. Cannon, P.E. Date 

License Number P18954
My License Renewal Date is December 31, 2023

Pages or sheets covered by this seal:

ERIC D.
CANNON
P18954

D

PROFE

L
NS

E
IC

E

IONAL ENGINEER

AIOW

SS

C-100 THRU C601

57

Item 5.



NOTES

1. NOTIFY UTILITY PROVIDERS PRIOR TO BEGINNING ANY CONSTRUCTION
ACTIVITIES AND COORDINATE WITH UTILITY PROVIDERS AS NECESSARY
DURING CONSTRUCTION.  CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR
DETERMINING EXISTENCE, EXACT LOCATION, AND DEPTH OF ALL
UTILITIES.  PROTECT ALL UTILITY LINES AND STRUCTURES NOT SHOWN
FOR REMOVAL OR MODIFICATION.  ANY DAMAGES TO UTILITY ITEMS NOT
SHOWN FOR REMOVAL OR MODIFICATION SHALL BE REPAIRED TO THE
UTILITY OWNER'S SPECIFICATIONS AT THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.

2. CONSTRUCTION OF ALL STREET AND UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS SHALL
CONFORM TO THE URBAN STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC
IMPROVEMENTS AND THE SOILS REPORTS PREPARED BY OTHERS.

3. LENGTH OF UTILITIES SHOWN ON PLANS ARE DIMENSIONED FROM
CENTERLINE OF STRUCTURE TO CENTERLINE OF STRUCTURE.

4. ALL TRAFFIC CONTROL SHALL BE PROVIDED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
REQUIREMENTS SET FORTH IN THE MANUAL ON UNIFORM TRAFFIC
CONTROL DEVICES (MUTCD).  WHEN CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES
OBSTRUCT PORTIONS OF THE ROADWAY, FLAGGERS SHALL BE
PROVIDED. FLAGGERS SHALL CONFORM TO THE MUTCD IN
APPEARANCE, EQUIPMENT AND ACTIONS.

5. NOTIFY OWNER, ENGINEER,CITY OF CEDAR FALLS AND CEDAR FALLS
UTILITY AT LEAST 48 HOURS PRIOR TO BEGINNING WORK.

6. CONSTRUCT MANHOLES AND APPURTENANCES AS WORK PROGRESSES.
BACKFILL WITH SUITABLE MATERIAL AND COMPACT TO 95% MAXIMUM
DENSITY.

7. IN THE EVENT OF A DISCREPANCY BETWEEN THE QUANTITY ESTIMATES
AND THE DETAILED PLANS, THE DETAILED PLANS SHALL GOVERN.

8. ALL FIELD TILES ENCOUNTERED DURING CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE
RECONNECTED AND NOTED ACCORDINGLY ON THE AS-BUILT
DOCUMENTS.

9. DIMENSIONS, BUILDING LOCATION, UTILITIES AND GRADING OF THIS SITE
ARE BASED ON AVAILABLE INFORMATION AT THE TIME OF DESIGN.
DEVIATIONS MAY BE NECESSARY IN THE FIELD.  ANY SUCH CHANGES OR
CONFLICTS BETWEEN THIS PLAN AND FIELD CONDITIONS ARE TO BE
REPORTED TO THE ARCHITECT/ENGINEER PRIOR TO STARTING
CONSTRUCTION.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR
LAYOUT VERIFICATION OF ALL SITE IMPROVEMENTS PRIOR TO
CONSTRUCTION.

10. CONTRACTOR TO LOAD AND TRANSPORT ALL MATERIALS CONSIDERED
TO BE UNDESIRABLE TO BE INCORPORATED INTO THE PROJECT TO AN
APPROVED OFF-SITE WASTE SITE.

11. CONTRACTOR TO STRIP AND STOCKPILE TOPSOIL FROM ALL AREAS TO
BE CUT OR FILLED.  RESPREAD TO MINIMUM 6" DEPTH TO FINISH
GRADES.

12. ALL PROPOSED CONTOURS AND SPOT ELEVATIONS SHOWN ARE
FINISHED GRADES AND/OR TOP OF PAVING SLAB (GUTTER), UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED.

13. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR CLEANING DIRT AND DEBRIS
FROM NEIGHBORING STREETS, DRIVEWAYS, AND SIDEWALKS CAUSED
BY CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES IN A TIMELY MANNER.

14. THE ADJUSTMENT OF ANY EXISTING UTILITY APPURTENANCES TO FINAL
GRADE IS CONSIDERED INCIDENTAL TO THE SITE WORK.

15. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR INSTALLING EROSION
CONTROL MEASURES AS NECESSARY.  CONTRACTOR SHALL ALSO BE
RESPONSIBLE FOR MAINTAINING ANY EXISTING EROSION CONTROL
MEASURES ON SITE AT THE TIME OF CONSTRUCTION.  GRADING AND
SOIL EROSION CONTROL CODE REQUIREMENTS SHALL BE MET BY
CONTRACTOR.  A GRADING PERMIT IS REQUIRED FOR THIS PROJECT.

16. CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE NATURAL GAS, ELECTRICAL, TELEPHONE
AND ANY OTHER FRANCHISE UTILITY SERVICES WITH UTILITY SERVICE
PROVIDER, POLK COUNTY, AND THE OWNER PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

17. CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY ALL UTILITY CROSSINGS AND MAINTAIN
MINIMUM 18" VERTICAL AND HORIZONTAL CLEARANCE BETWEEN
UTILITIES. CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE UTILITY ROUTING TO BUILDING
AND VERIFY CONNECTION LOCATIONS AND INVERTS PRIOR TO
CONSTRUCTION.

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION
TRACT "F", HERITAGE HILLS ESTATES SECOND ADDITION, AN OFFICIAL PLAT IN
THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA.

PROPERTY ADDRESS
CORNER OF SPRUCE HILLS DRIVE/PRAIRIE PARKWAY AND GREENHILL ROAD

ZONING
RP - PLANNED RESIDENTIAL

BULK REGULATIONS
25' FRONT YARD (ALONG SPRUCE HILLS DRIVE/PRAIRIE PARKWAY)
30' BACK YARD (PERIMETER SETBACK ALL OTHER SIDES)

PARKING REQUIREMENTS
PARKING REQUIRED

1 GUEST PARKING SPACE PER EVERY 5 UNITS = 6 SPACES

PARKING PROVIDED
OPEN STALLS = 6 SPACES

ADDITIONAL PARKING PROVIDED
GARAGE STALL = 60 STALLS (2 PER UNIT)
DRIVEWAY STALLS = 30 (1 PER UNIT)

TOTAL PARKING PROVIDED
96 STALLS

BY
DA

TE
R

EV
IS

IO
N

M
AR

K
Sc

al
e:

Te
ch

ni
ci

an
:

T-
R

-S
:

SN
YD

ER
 & 

AS
SO

CIA
TE

S, 
INC

. 
|

C
he

ck
ed

 B
y:

En
gi

ne
er

:

D
at

e:

1"
 =

Pr
oj

ec
t N

o:
Sh

ee
t

Project No:

Sheet

27
27

 S
.W

. S
N

YD
ER

 B
LV

D
AN

KE
N

Y,
 IO

W
A 

50
02

3
51

5-
96

4-
20

20
 | 

w
w

w
.s

ny
de

r-a
ss

oc
ia

te
s.

co
m

ED
C

JW
M

ED
C

09
-2

7-
21

N
A

12
1.

08
80

.0
1

C
20

0

121.0880.01

C200

TH
E 

C
O

VE
 A

T 
SP

R
U

C
E 

H
IL

LS
PR

O
JE

C
T 

IN
FO

R
M

A
TI

O
N

C
ED

A
R

 F
A

LL
S,

 IA
R

EV
IS

ED
 A

S 
PE

R
 O

W
N

ER
R

EV
IS

ED
 A

S 
PE

R
 C

IT
Y 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

R
EV

IS
ED

 A
S 

PE
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
EN

TS
 

1-
21

-2
2

 2
-8

-2
2

 3
-3

0-
22

 

JW
M

 J
FS

 J
FS 

123 

TT
N

-R
R

W
-S

S

NOTES

1. BUILDING LINES AND CORNERS ARE FOR USE IN PREPARING CIVIL SITE
PLAN DOCUMENTS.  BUILDING CORNERS AND BUILDING LINES SHOULD
BE SPECIFICALLY  VERIFIED, AS NECESSARY, PRIOR TO DESIGN FOR
CONSTRUCTION OF ANY PROPOSED EXPANSION OR CONNECTION OF
BUILDING COMPONENTS.

2. FOR CLARITY PURPOSES, SURVEY SPOT ELEVATIONS ARE NOT SHOWN
ON THIS SURVEY, BUT ARE CONTAINED WITHIN THE DIGITAL CADD FILES.

3. FOR THE PURPOSE OF THIS SURVEY, STORM SEWER, SANITARY SEWER
AND WATER MAIN LINES ARE ASSUMED TO FOLLOW A STRAIGHT LINE
FROM STRUCTURE TO STRUCTURE.

4. UTILITY SERVICE LINES TO BUILDINGS ARE APPROXIMATE ONLY.  AN
INTERNAL BUILDING INVESTIGATION, EXCAVATION AND/OR SUBSURFACE
LOCATING/DESIGNATING WOULD NEED TO BE PERFORMED TO
DETERMINE THE LOCATION OF SERVICES ENTERING THE BUILDING.

5. UNDERGROUND PIPE MATERIALS AND SIZES ARE BASED UPON VISIBLE
EVIDENCE VIEWED FROM ACCESS MANHOLES/STRUCTURES.  DUE TO
THE CONFIGURATION AND/OR CONSTRUCTION OF THE STRUCTURE, IT
MAY BE DIFFICULT TO ACCURATELY DETERMINE THE PIPE MATERIAL
AND/OR SIZE.  THE SURVEYOR WILL USE THEIR JUDGMENT AND
EXPERIENCE TO ATTEMPT TO DETERMINE, BUT COMPLETE ACCURACY
CANNOT BE GUARANTEED.

6. BOUNDARY LINES SHOWN ON THE EXISTING SITE SURVEY ARE TO
FACILITATE DESIGN OR CONCEPT NEEDS AND ENABLE CREATION OF
SAID CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS. THESE LINES DO NOT CONSTITUTE A
CERTIFIED BOUNDARY SURVEY AND MISSING MONUMENTS WILL NOT BE
SET.

V:
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

20
21

\1
21

.0
88

0.
01

\C
AD

D
\S

P_
12

10
88

0_
TS

H
.d

w
g 

JU
ST

IN
 S

TR
O

M
, P

R
O

JE
C

T 
IN

FO
R

M
AT

IO
N

, 2
02

2/
03

/3
1,

 7
:4

6 
AM

, A
N

SI
 F

U
LL

 B
LE

ED
 D

 (3
4.

00
 X

 2
2.

00
 IN

C
H

ES
)

UTILITY QUALITY SERVICE LEVELS

QUALITY LEVELS OF UTILITIES ARE SHOWN IN THE PARENTHESES WITH THE UTILITY
TYPE AND WHEN APPLICABLE, SIZE.  THE QUALITY LEVELS ARE BASED ON THE CI /
ASCE 38-02 STANDARD.
QUALITY LEVEL (D) INFORMATION IS DERIVED FROM EXISTING UTILITY RECORDS OR
ORAL RECOLLECTIONS.
QUALITY LEVEL (C) INFORMATION IS OBTAINED BY SURVEYING AND PLOTTING
VISIBLE ABOVE-GROUND UTILITY FEATURES AND USING PROFESSIONAL JUDGMENT
IN CORRELATING THIS INFORMATION WITH
QUALITY D INFORMATION.
QUALITY LEVEL (B) INFORMATION IS OBTAINED THROUGH THE APPLICATION OF
APPROPRIATE SURFACE GEOPHYSICAL METHODS TO DETERMINE THE EXISTENCE
AND APPROXIMATE HORIZONTAL POSITION OF SUBSURFACE UTILITIES.
QUALITY LEVEL (A) IS HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL POSITION OF UNDERGROUND
UTILITIES OBTAINED BY ACTUAL EXPOSURE OR VERIFICATION OF PREVIOUSLY
EXPOSED SUBSURFACE UTILITIES, AS WELL AS THE TYPE, SIZE, CONDITION,
MATERIAL, AND OTHER CHARACTERISTICS.

UTILITY WARNING

THE UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE BEEN LOCATED FROM FIELD SURVEY
INFORMATION AND/OR RECORDS OBTAINED.  THE SURVEYOR MAKES NO
GUARANTEE THAT THE UTILITIES OR  SUBSURFACE FEATURES SHOWN
COMPRISE ALL SUCH ITEMS IN THE AREA, EITHER IN  SERVICE OR ABANDONED.
THE SURVEYOR FURTHER DOES NOT WARRANT THAT THE UTILITIES OR
SUBSURFACE FEATURES SHOWN ARE IN THE EXACT LOCATION INDICATED
EXCEPT WHERE NOTED AS QUALITY LEVEL A.

FEATURES EXISTING PROPOSED

Spot Elevation
Contour Elevation
Fence (Barbed, Field, Hog)
Fence (Chain Link)
Fence (Wood)
Fence (Silt)
Tree Line
Tree Stump

Deciduous Tree \\ Shrub

Coniferous Tree \\ Shrub

Communication
Overhead Communication
Fiber Optic
Underground Electric
Overhead Electric
Gas Main with Size
High Pressure Gas Main with Size
Water Main with Size
Sanitary Sewer with Size
Duct Bank
Test Hole Location for SUE w/ID

(*) Denotes the survey quality service level for utilities

Sanitary Manhole

Storm Sewer with Size
Storm Manhole
Single Storm Sewer Intake
Double Storm Sewer Intake
Fire Hydrant
Fire Hydrant on Building
Water Main Valve
Water Service Valve
Well
Utility Pole
Guy Anchor
Utility Pole with Light
Utility Pole with Transformer
Street Light
Yard Light
Electric Box
Electric Transformer
Traffic Sign
Communication Pedestal
Communication Manhole
Communication Handhole
Fiber Optic Manhole
Fiber Optic Handhole
Gas Valve
Gas Manhole
Gas Apparatus
Fence Post or Guard Post
Underground Storage Tank
Above Ground Storage Tank
Sign
Satellite Dish
Mailbox
Sprinkler Head
Irrigation Control Valve

LEGEND

○

1225
X    1225.25

●

X1225
    1225.25

FEATURES FOUND    SET
Section Corner
1/2" Rebar, Cap # 11579

(Unless Otherwise Noted)
ROW Marker
ROW Rail
Control Point
Bench Mark
Platted Distance P
Measured Bearing & Distance M
Recorded As R
Deed Distance D
Calculated Distance C
Minimum Protection Elevation MPE
Centerline
Section Line
1/4 Section Line
1/4 1/4 Section Line
Easement Line

UTILITY CONTACT INFORMATION
UTILITY CONTACT FOR MAPPING INFORMATION SHOWN AS RECEIVED FROM
THE IOWA ONE CALL DESIGN REQUEST SYSTEM, TICKET NUMBER 551903014.

G1-GAS MAIN CEDAR FALLS UTILITIES
FO1-FIBER OPTIC JERALD LUKENSMEYER
W1-WATER MAIN 319-268-5330
OE1-OVERHEAD ELECTRIC JERALD.LUKENSMEYER@CFUNET.NET
UE1-UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC
CO1-COMMUNICATION

S1-SANITARY CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
ST1-STORM TYLER GRIFFIN

319-273-8600
TYLER.GRIFFIN@CEDARFALLS.COM

CONTROL POINTS
IOWA REGIONAL COORDINATE SYSTEM ZONE 5 (WATERLOO)
NAD83(2011)(EPOCH 2010.00) IARTN DERIVED - US SURVEY FEET

CP100 N=8845220.04 E=15449012.26 Z=909.72
SET CUT "X" TOP CURB EAST OF 725 MELENDY LANE, EAST SIDE
ROAD, WEST OF HYDRANT, NW CORNER SITE. (AS SHOWN ON 
SURVEY)

CP101 N=8844857.76 E=15449204.29 Z=923.24
SET CUT "X" NORTH NOSE OF ISLAND OF PRAIRIE PARKWAY, 
NORTH OF GREENHILL ROAD. (AS SHOWN ON SURVEY)

CP102 N=8844882.76 E=15449851.30 Z=908.39
FOUND CUT "X" TOP CURB, SW CORNER OF TOWN HOME DRIVE
LANE, SE CORNER SITE. (AS SHOWN ON SURVEY)

CP103 N=8845264.81 E=15449871.15 Z=900.26
SET CUT "X" CENTERLINE CONCRETE FLUME NE CORNER SITE 
+-10' EAST OF WEST END FLUME. (AS SHOWN ON SURVEY)

BENCHMARKS
NORTH AMERICAN VERTICAL DATUM OF 1988 (NAVD88 - GEOID12A)
IARTN DERIVED - US SURVEY FEET

BM500 ELEV=910.70
BURY BOLT ON HYDRANT EAST OF 725 MELENDY LANE. (AS
SHOWN ON SURVEY)

BM501 ELEV=918.65
ARROW ON HYDRANT LOCATED AT SE QUADRANT SPRUCE
HILLS DRIVE AND PRAIRIE PARKWAY. (AS SHOWN ON 
SURVEY)

DATE OF SURVEY
SEPTEMBER 10TH, 2021

POLLUTION PREVENTION NOTES
A. POLLUTION PREVENTION AND EROSION PROTECTION

1.   CODE COMPLIANCE: THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR COMPLIANCE WITH ALL
POTENTIAL POLLUTION AND SOIL EROSION CONTROL REQUIREMENTS OF THE IOWA CODE,
THE IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (IDNR) NPDES PERMIT, THE U.S. CLEAN
WATER ACT AND ANY LOCAL ORDINANCES. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL TAKE ALL NECESSARY
STEPS TO PROTECT AGAINST EROSION AND POLLUTION FROM THIS PROJECT SITE AND ALL
OFF-SITE BORROW OR DEPOSIT AREAS DURING PERFORMANCE OR AS A RESULT OF
PERFORMANCE.

2. DAMAGE CLAIMS: THE CONTRACTOR WILL HOLD THE OWNER AND ARCHITECT / ENGINEER
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL CLAIMS OF ANY TYPE WHATSOEVER RESULTING FROM
DAMAGES TO ADJOINING PUBLIC OR PRIVATE PROPERTY, INCLUDING REASONABLE
ATTORNEY FEES INCURRED TO OWNER. FURTHER, IF THE CONTRACTOR FAILS TO TAKE
NECESSARY STEPS TO PROMPTLY REMOVE EARTH SEDIMENTATION OR DEBRIS WHICH
COMES ONTO ADJOINING PUBLIC OR PRIVATE PROPERTY, THE OWNER MAY, BUT NEED NOT,
REMOVE SUCH ITEMS AND DEDUCT THE COST THEREOF FROM AMOUNTS DUE TO THE
CONTRACTOR.

B. STORM WATER DISCHARGE PERMIT

1.   THIS PROJECT REQUIRES COVERAGE UNDER THE NPDES GENERAL PERMIT NO. 2 FOR
STORM WATER DISCHARGES ASSOCIATED WITH CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES FROM THE IDNR,
AS REQUIRED BY THE ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY (EPA). THE GENERAL
CONTRACTOR AND ALL SUBCONTRACTORS ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR COMPLIANCE WITH AND
FULFILLMENT OF ALL REQUIREMENTS OF THE NPDES GENERAL PERMIT NO. 2 AS SPECIFIED IN
THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.

2. ALL DOCUMENTS RELATED TO THE STORM WATER DISCHARGE PERMIT, INCLUDING, BUT NOT
LIMITED TO, THE NOTICE OF INTENT, PROOF OF PUBLICATIONS, DISCHARGE AUTHORIZATION
LETTER, CURRENT SWPPP, SITE INSPECTION LOG, AND OTHER ITEMS, SHALL BE KEPT ON SITE
AT ALL TIMES AND MUST BE PRESENTED TO ANY JURISDICTIONAL AGENCIES UPON REQUEST.
FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THE NPDES PERMIT REQUIREMENTS IS A VIOLATION OF THE CLEAN
WATER ACT AND THE CODE OF IOWA.

3. A "NOTICE OF DISCONTINUATION" MUST BE FILED WITH THE IDNR UPON FINAL STABILIZATION
OF THE DISTURBED SITE AND REMOVAL OF ALL TEMPORARY EROSION CONTROL MEASURES.
ALL PLANS, INSPECTION REPORTS, AND OTHER DOCUMENTS MUST BE RETAINED FOR A
PERIOD OF THREE YEARS AFTER PROJECT COMPLETION. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL RETAIN A
RECORD COPY AND PROVIDE THE ORIGINAL DOCUMENTS TO THE OWNER UPON PROJECT
ACCEPTANCE AND/OR SUBMITTAL OF THE NOTICE OF DISCONTINUATION.

C. POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN

1.   THE STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP) IS A SEPARATE DOCUMENT IN
ADDITION TO THESE PLAN DRAWINGS.  THE CONTRACTOR SHOULD REFER TO THE SWPPP
FOR ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AND MODIFICATIONS TO THE POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN
MADE DURING CONSTRUCTION.

2. THE SWPPP ILLUSTRATES GENERAL MEASURES AND BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (BMP)
FOR COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROJECT'S NPDES PERMIT COVERAGE.  ALL BMP'S AND EROSION
CONTROL MEASURES REQUIRED AS A RESULT OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES ARE THE
RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO IDENTIFY, NOTE AND IMPLEMENT. ADDITIONAL
BMP'S FROM THOSE SHOWN ON THE PLAN MAY BE REQUIRED.

3. THE SWPPP AND SITE MAP SHOULD BE EXPEDITIOUSLY REVISED TO REFLECT CONSTRUCTION
PROGRESS AND CHANGES AT THE PROJECT SITE.

4. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR COMPLIANCE WITH ALL REQUIREMENTS OF THE
GENERAL PERMIT AND SWPPP, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE FOLLOWING BMP'S
UNLESS INFEASIBLE OR NOT APPLICABLE:

a. UTILIZE OUTLET STRUCTURES THAT WITHDRAW WATER FROM THE SURFACE WHEN
DISCHARGING FROM BASINS, PROVIDE AND MAINTAIN NATURAL BUFFERS AROUND
SURFACE WATERS, DIRECT STORM WATER TO VEGETATED AREAS TO INCREASE SEDIMENT
REMOVAL AND MAXIMIZE STORM WATER INFILTRATION, AND MINIMIZE SOIL COMPACTION.

b. INSTALL PERIMETER AND FINAL SEDIMENT CONTROL MEASURES SUCH AS SILT BARRIERS,
DITCH CHECKS, DIVERSION BERMS, OR SEDIMENTATION BASINS DOWNSTREAM OF SOIL
DISTURBING ACTIVITIES PRIOR TO SITE CLEARING AND GRADING OPERATIONS.

c. PRESERVE EXISTING VEGETATION IN AREAS NOT NEEDED FOR CONSTRUCTION AND LIMIT
TO A MINIMUM THE TOTAL AREA DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS AT ANY TIME.

d. MAINTAIN ALL TEMPORARY AND PERMANENT EROSION CONTROL MEASURES IN WORKING
ORDER, INCLUDING CLEANING, REPAIRING, REPLACEMENT, AND SEDIMENT REMOVAL
THROUGHOUT THE PERMIT PERIOD. CLEAN OR REPLACE SILT CONTROL DEVICES WHEN
THE MEASURES HAVE LOST 50% OF THEIR ORIGINAL CAPACITY.

e. INSPECT THE PROJECT AREA AND CONTROL DEVICES (BY QUALIFIED PERSONNEL
ASSIGNED BY THE CONTRACTOR) EVERY SEVEN CALENDAR DAYS. RECORD THE FINDINGS
OF THESE INSPECTIONS AND ANY RESULTING ACTIONS IN THE SWPPP WITH A COPY
SUBMITTED WEEKLY TO THE OWNER OR ENGINEER DURING CONSTRUCTION. REVISE THE
SWPPP AND IMPLEMENT ANY RECOMMENDED MEASURES WITHIN 7 DAYS.

f. PREVENT ACCUMULATION OF EARTH AND DEBRIS FROM CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES ON
ADJOINING PUBLIC OR PRIVATE PROPERTIES, INCLUDING STREETS, DRIVEWAYS,
SIDEWALKS, DRAINAGEWAYS, OR UNDERGROUND SEWERS. REMOVE ANY ACCUMULATION
OF EARTH OR DEBRIS IMMEDIATELY AND TAKE REMEDIAL ACTIONS FOR FUTURE
PREVENTION.

g. INSTALL NECESSARY CONTROL MEASURES SUCH AS SILT BARRIERS, EROSION CONTROL
MATS, MULCH, DITCH CHECKS OR RIPRAP AS SOON AS AREAS REACH THEIR FINAL GRADES
AND AS CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS PROGRESS TO ENSURE CONTINUOUS RUNOFF
CONTROL. PROVIDE INLET AND OUTLET CONTROL MEASURES AS SOON AS STORM
SEWERS ARE INSTALLED.

h. RESPREAD A MINIMUM OF 6 INCHES OF TOPSOIL (INCLUDING TOPSOIL FOUND IN SOD) ON
ALL DISTURBED AREAS, EXCEPT WHERE PAVEMENT, BUILDINGS OR OTHER
IMPROVEMENTS ARE LOCATED.

i. STABILIZE UNDEVELOPED, DISTURBED AREAS WITH MULCH, TEMPORARY SEED MIX,
PERMANENT SEED MIX, SOD, OR PAVEMENT IMMEDIATELY AS SOON AS POSSIBLE UPON
COMPLETION OR DELAY OF GRADING OPERATIONS.  INITIATE STABILIZATION MEASURES
IMMEDIATELY AFTER CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY IS FINALLY COMPLETED OR TEMPORARILY
CEASED ON ANY PORTION OF THE SITE AND WHICH WILL NOT RESUME FOR A PERIOD
EXCEEDING 14 CALENDAR DAYS.

j. COORDINATE LOCATIONS OF STAGING AREAS WITH THE OWNER AND RECORD IN THE
SWPPP. UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE, STAGING AREAS SHOULD CONTAIN THE FOLLOWING:
JOB TRAILERS, FUELING / VEHICLE MAINTENANCE AREA, TEMPORARY SANITARY
FACILITIES, MATERIALS STORAGE, AND CONCRETE WASHOUT FACILITY. CONTROL RUNOFF
FROM STAGING AREAS WITH DIVERSION BERMS AND/OR SILT BARRIERS AND DIRECT TO A
SEDIMENT BASIN OR OTHER CONTROL DEVICE WHERE POSSIBLE.  CONCRETE WASHOUT
MUST BE CONTAINED ONSITE.

k. REMOVE ALL TEMPORARY EROSION CONTROL MEASURES AND SITE WASTE PRIOR TO
FILING OF THE "NOTICE OF DISCONTINUATION".

58

Item 5.



21

22
23

17

18
19

20

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11
12

13

14

15

16

25
26

2728
29

30

24

BM500

BM501

   100

   101

   102

   103

Concrete

Spruce Hill Dr.

C
on

cr
et

e

Sp
ru

ce
 H

ill 
D

r.

Concrete
Parking
Area

Concrete
Parking
Area

Building

Concrete
Flume

Sidewalk

Edge
Vegetation

Field Tile
Intake=905.87
At Ground
Elevation

Sanitary
Cleanout=907.86

Field Tile
Intake=900.79
At Ground
Elevation

20.0'

18.0'TYP

18.0'
TYPR25.0'

20.0'

20.0'

25
.0

'

32.0' TYP

27
.0

' T
YP

31
.0

' B
/B

2.0'

2A

2A

2A

2B

2B

5.0' 1.0'

2E2F

2E

2E

2E

2H 2G

2C

2B

2C

2C

25
.0

' T
YP

3A

1A

1B

1C

1B

2I
TYP

2I
TYP

2I
TYP

2I
TYP

1B

1B

4A

PRIVATE STORM
 W

ATER

FACILITIES EASEM
ENT

2I
TYP

2C
2E

18.0'TYP

27
.0

' T
YP

2I
TYP

25
.0

' T
YP

25
.0

' T
YP

18.0'TYP

27
.0

' T
YP

25
.0

' T
YP

27
.0

' T
YP

18.0'TYP

5.
0'

5.
0'

5.
0'

18
.0

'

9.0'

30.0' TYP

25.0' TYP

27.0' TYP18.0'
TYP

4.0'
1.0'

4.
0'

1.
0'

45' PRIVATE INGRESS/EGRESS,
PUBLIC EMERGENCY VEHICLE ACCESS

PRIVATE STORM, SANITARY & WATER MAIN
EASEMENT 10' P.U.E.

10' P.U.E.10' PRIVATE STORM SEWER EASEMENT

10' P.U.E.

45' PRIVATE INGRESS/EGRESS,
PUBLIC EMERGENCY VEHICLE ACCESS

PRIVATE STORM, SANITARY & WATER MAIN
EASEMENT

10' P.U.E.

2G

2B

PRIVATE STORM SEWER
EASEMENT AREA

PRIVATE WATER MAIN
EASEMENT

30' PRIVATE SANITARY
SEWER EASEMENT

10' PRIVATE STORM
SEWER EASEMENT

2C

2C
2E

10' P.U.E.

5.0'
25.0'

5.0'2B

2D

2D

R
112.5'

1B

1B 1B

1B

R28.0'

R28.0'

R25.0'

R25.0'

R112.5'

R87.5'

R5.0'

R
5.0'

R
87.5'

10.0'

SPRUCE NEEDLE LANE

SPRUCE CREEK DRIVE

5A

N
00

°1
4'

42
"E

   
52

.5
1'

N53°56'20"E   4
48.32'

S43°19'05"E   61.13'

S54°55'31"E   82.46'

N63°40'32"W   111.14'

N69°13'52"W   177.21'

N77°25'10"E   80.57'

S0
0°

15
'4

7"
W

   
38

0.
69

'

N89°36'59"W   596.68'

N
05

°2
5'

30
"W

   
10

1.
13

'
S0

0°
24

'0
4"

W
   

12
9.

73
'

S89°37'53"E   194.04'

302,756 SF
6.95 AC

LOT 1

30' B.S.L

30
' B

.S
.L

30' B.S.L

25' B.S.L

25
' B

.S
.L

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 1

0'
 P

.U
.E

EXISTING 10' P.U.E

30' B.S.L

50' ELECTRIC EASEMENT

30' EX SANITARY
EASEMENT

DIMENSION PLAN CONSTRUCTION NOTES
1. EXISTING FEATURES, PROTECT THE FOLLOWING:

A. PAVEMENTS TO REMAIN.
B. PROTECT EXISTING UTILITIES.
C. REMOVE SIGN.

2.   PAVEMENTS, PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING:
A. DRIVES AND PARKING , 7" DEPTH PAVEMENT WITH 12" DEPTH PREPARED SUBGRADE COMPACTED TO 95% STANDARD PROCTOR.
B. PCC SIDEWALKS, 4" DEPTH PAVEMENT ON 6" PREPARED SUBGRADE.
C. INTEGRAL SIDEWALK, 5" DEPTH PCC ON 6" PREPARED SUBGRADE. SEE DETAIL.
D. 6" PCC STANDARD CURB.
E. 3" PCC ROLL CURB.
F. TAPER CURB FROM 3" ROLL CURB TO 6" STANDARD CURB
G. PEDESTRIAN RAMP WITH A MAXIMUM SLOPE OF 8.33%. INSTALL DETECTABLE WARNINGS.
H. DRIVEWAY CONNECTION WITH SUDAS TYPE B CONNECTION (7030.102). SAWCUT TO FULL DEPTH EXISTING PAVEMENT AND MACH

EXISTING GRADE.
I. 8" PCC DRIVEWAY.

3. PAVEMENT MARKINGS, PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING:
A. 4" WIDE PAINTED PARKING STALL LINES.

4.   SIGNS, PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING:
A. PROVIDE STOP SIGN PER ADAGG REQUIREMENTS. DEVELOPER TO INSTALL.

5. SITE AMENITIES, PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING:
A. 8" PCC CLUSTER MAIL BOX PAD. (SEE DETAIL THIS SHEET)

BY
DA

TE
R

EV
IS

IO
N

M
AR

K
Sc

al
e:

Te
ch

ni
ci

an
:

T-
R

-S
:

SN
YD

ER
 & 

AS
SO

CIA
TE

S, 
INC

. 
|

C
he

ck
ed

 B
y:

En
gi

ne
er

:

D
at

e:

1"
 =

Pr
oj

ec
t N

o:
Sh

ee
t

Project No:

Sheet

27
27

 S
.W

. S
N

YD
ER

 B
LV

D
AN

KE
N

Y,
 IO

W
A 

50
02

3
51

5-
96

4-
20

20
 | 

w
w

w
.s

ny
de

r-a
ss

oc
ia

te
s.

co
m

ED
C

JW
M

ED
C

09
-2

7-
21

30

12
1.

08
80

.0
1

C
30

0

121.0880.01

C300

TH
E 

C
O

VE
 A

T 
SP

R
U

C
E 

H
IL

LS
D

IM
EN

SI
O

N
 P

LA
N

C
ED

A
R

 F
A

LL
S,

 IA
R

EV
IS

ED
 A

S 
PE

R
 O

W
N

ER
R

EV
IS

ED
 A

S 
PE

R
 C

IT
Y 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

R
EV

IS
ED

 A
S 

PE
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
EN

TS
 

1-
21

-2
2

 2
-8

-2
2

 3
-3

0-
22

 

JW
M

 J
FS

 J
FS 

123 

TT
N

-R
R

W
-S

S

V:
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

20
21

\1
21

.0
88

0.
01

\C
AD

D
\S

P_
12

10
88

0_
D

IM
.d

w
g 

JU
ST

IN
 S

TR
O

M
, D

IM
EN

SI
O

N
 P

LA
N

, 2
02

2/
03

/3
1,

 7
:4

6 
AM

, A
N

SI
 F

U
LL

 B
LE

ED
 D

 (3
4.

00
 X

 2
2.

00
 IN

C
H

ES
)

FEET

0 30

PRIVATE DRIVE

TYPICAL STREET CROSS SECTION1
C300

25' B/B

Street
CenterlineL-1

L-1

2% Typ.
Varies 1.5% Varies

7" PCC C-4 Mix

6.25'6.25'

5' Sidewalk

Prepared Subgrade
(2-6" Lifts)(95% Compaction)
(-1% to +4% of Optimum Moisture Content)
(Proof Roll)NOTE:

A Geotechnical Engineer Shall Inspect the Subgrade Prior to
Concrete Placement to Verify Subgrade Compaction, Moisture
Content and Depth.

NO SCALE

PCC STANDARD CURB2
C300

2"R

1"R

7.5"
4.5"

VA
R

IE
S

6"

NO SCALE

3" PCC ROLLED CURB3
C300

2"R
1"R

.7'
.2'

VA
R

IE
S

.2
'

NOT TO SCALE

2%
 M

AX

CLUSTER MAILBOX PAD DETAIL4
C300

BACK OF CURB

5'x5' MAILBOX PAD
8" PCC

SIDEWALKFRONT FACE OF
MAILBOX CLUSTER

NOTES:
1. CLUSTER MAILBOX TO BE LOCATED ON THE NO

PARKING/STREET LIGHT SIDE OF THE STREET
2. DON NOT LOCATE AT INTERSECTION
3. LOCATE NEAR SHARED PROPERTY LINE PER

APPROVED PLAN.

59

Item 5.



21

22
23

17

18
19

20

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11
12

13

14

15

16

25
26

2728
29

30

24

BM500

BM501

   100

   101

   102

   103

Concrete

Spruce Hill Dr.

Rim=909.26
F.L.=904.76 15" RCP W

Rim=912.33
F.L.=907.53 15" RCP W
F.L.=907.43 15" RCP S
F.L.=907.48 15" CPP E

Rim=912.21
F.L.=907.86 15" RCP N

Rim=914.72
F.L.=905.17 8" PVC W

Rim=916.05
15" RCP E
15" RCP N

Unable To Stick
Structure

Rim=916.15
W 15" RCP
Unable To Stick
Structure

Rim=915.78
F.L.=910.33 15" CPP S

F.L.=910.18 15" CPP W

C
on

cr
et

e

Sp
ru

ce
 H

ill 
D

r.

Concrete
Parking
Area

Concrete
Parking
Area

Building

Concrete
Flume

Sidewalk

F.L.=900.34
15" RCP N

F.L.=900.93
42" RCP SW

Edge
Vegetation

Field Tile
Intake=905.87
At Ground
Elevation

Sanitary
Cleanout=907.86

Field Tile
Intake=900.79
At Ground
Elevation

Rim=901.10
F.L.=892.15 8" PVC N
F.L.=892.25 8" PVC S

F.L.=891.67 8" PVC W

R200.0' HYDRANT COVERAGE

R200.0' HYDRANT CO
VERAG

E

R200.0' HYDRANT COVERAGE

R200.0' HYDRANT COVERAGE

MH NO.4, SW-301
RIM: 914.42
INV: 904.60 (OUT E)

MH NO.5, SW-301
RIM: 909.57
INV: 897.87 (IN W)
INV: 899.19 (OUT NE)

MH NO.1, SW-301
RIM: 909.45
INV: 898.02 (OUT NW)

MH NO.2, SW-301
RIM: 904.81
INV: 895.14 (IN SE)
INV: 895.14 (IN SW)
INV: 895.04 (OUT NW)

MH NO.3, SW-301
RIM: 903.20

INV: 893.39 (IN SE)
INV: 893.29 (OUT N)

EX MANHOLE, SW-301
RIM: 901.10
INV: 892.25 (IN S)
INV: 892.15 (OUT N)

288 LF OF 8" SANITARY SEWER @ 1.00%

165 LF OF 8" SANITARY SEWER @ 1.00%

104 LF OF 8" SANITARY SEWER @ 1.00%

192 LF OF 8" SANITARY SEWER @ 3.50%

10
1 

LF
 O

F 
8"

 S
AN

IT
AR

Y 
SE

W
ER

 @
 4

.0
0%

66 LF OF 24" RCP @ 0.40%

S-7, SW-502, Circular Single Grate Intake
T/C: 902.51
INV: 898.83 (IN SE)
INV: 898.73 (OUT NW)

131 LF OF 24" RCP @ 0.50%

S-4, SW-502, Circular Single Grate Intake
T/C: 903.63
INV: 899.58 (IN SE)
INV: 899.58 (IN SW)
INV: 899.48 (OUT NW)

151 LF OF 18" RCP @ 0.76%

S-3, SW-502, Circular Single Grate Intake
T/C: 904.36
INV: 900.82 (IN SE)
INV: 900.72 (OUT NW)

89 LF OF 15" RCP @ 1.10%

S-2A, SW-401, Circular Storm Sewer Manhole
RIM: 904.81
INV: 901.90 (IN SW)
INV: 901.80 (OUT NW)

S-2, SW-505, Double Grate Intake
T/C: 906.02
INV: 902.66 (IN SW)
INV: 902.56 (OUT NE)

S-6, SW-505, Double Grate Intake
T/C: 905.98

INV: 901.03 (IN SW)
INV: 900.93 (OUT NE)

81 LF OF 15" R
CP @

 6.00%S-5, SW-505, Double Grate Intake
T/C: 908.35

INV: 905.92 (OUT NE)

65 LF OF 12" N12 HDPE @ 1.00%

79 LF OF 12" N12 HDPE @ 1.10%

S-1A, 12in Nyloplast Drainage Structure
WITH SOLID LID

RIM: 907.79
INV: 903.41 (IN NW)

INV: 903.31 (OUT NE)

S-8, 30'' FES
INV: 898.47

S-1, 12in Nyloplast Drainage Structure
WITH DOMED GRATE

RIM: 907.32
INV: 904.28 (OUT SE)

S-10, 24 IN DIA CMP APRON
INV: 896.40

S-9, SW-513 (36in X 36in)
SW-513, Open-Sided Area Intake, Open 1 Side, INLET: 901.2

RIM: 901.95
INV: 896.60 (OUT N)

INV: 896.70 (OUT SE)
25 LF OF 3" HDPE CORRUGATED @ 0.50%

1A

1A1A

1A

1B
1C

1C

1D
TYP

1E

2C

2B
TYP

66
 L

F 
O

F 
15

" R
CP

 @
 1

.0
0%

39 LF OF 24" N12 HDPE @ 0.50%

45 LF OF 15" RCP @ 3.00%

1C 1B

3E

3F

1D

2B

TYP

TYP

1D

2B

TYP

TYP

1D

2B
TYP

TYP

1D2B
TYP

TYP

1D
2B
TYP

TYP

100 LF OF 3" H
DPE CORRUGATED @ 0.50%

1B

1B

3D

SPRUCE NEEDLE LANE

SPRUCE CREEK DRIVE

N
00

°1
4'

42
"E

   
52

.5
1'

N53°56'20"E   4
48.32'

S43°19'05"E   61.13'

S54°55'31"E   82.46'

N63°40'32"W   111.14'

N69°13'52"W   177.21'

N77°25'10"E   80.57'

S0
0°

15
'4

7"
W

   
38

0.
69

'

N89°36'59"W   596.68'

N
05

°2
5'

30
"W

   
10

1.
13

'
S0

0°
24

'0
4"

W
   

12
9.

73
'

S89°37'53"E   194.04'

302,756 SF
6.95 AC

LOT 1

30' B.S.L

30
' B

.S
.L

30' B.S.L

25' B.S.L

25
' B

.S
.L

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 1

0'
 P

.U
.E

EXISTING 10' P.U.E

30' B.S.L

50' ELECTRIC EASEMENT

30' EX SANITARY
EASEMENT

UTILITY PLAN CONSTRUCTION NOTE

1.   WATER SERVICES, PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING:
A. PRIVATE 8" WATER SERVICE LINE.
B. HYDRANT ASSEMBLY PER CFU STANDARDS.
C. 8" VALVE.
D. 1" WATER SERVICE AND CURB STOP TO UNIT.
E. CONNECT 8" WATER SERVICE TO 8" PUBLIC WATER MAIN.

2.   SANITARY SEWER SERVICES; PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING:
A. 8" SANITARY SEWER SERVICE LINE AT MINIMUM 1.0%.
B. 4" SANITARY SEWER SERVICE TO UNIT.
C. CORE DRILL AND CONNECT TO EXISTING SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE WITH CONCRETE COLLAR.

3.  STORM SEWER, PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING:
A. PROVIDE STORM SEWER IMPROVEMENTS AS SHOWN AS PER 2020 STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC

IMPROVEMENTS AND THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS.
B. ALL STORM SEWER PIPE LENGTHS ARE MEASURED FROM CENTER OF STRUCTURE TO CENTER OF STRUCTURE AND INCLUDE FLARED

END SECTION.
C. ALL FOOTINGS FOR STORM SEWER STRUCTURES SHALL BE A MINIMUM 42 INCHES GELOW FINIHSED GRADE.  CONCRETE FILLET

INSIDE INTAKES AS NECESSARY TO FLOW LINES.
D. PROVIDE GASKETED RCPT STORM SEWER WITHIN 10' OF WATER MAIN.
E. INSTALL WATER QUALITY BASIN AS SHOWN.
F. INSTALL SUBDRAIN IN BOTTOM OF BASIN AS SHOWN IN DETAIL ON THIS SHEET.
G. ALL STORM SEWER GRATE STRUCTURES WITHIN PRIVATE STREET TO BE INSTALLED WITH MOUNTABLE CURB BOX ACCOMODATING

DRIVE CURB.

4.   CRITICAL CROSSING: CONTRACTOR TO MAINTAIN 18" MINIMUM SEPARATION BETWEEN UTILITIES. VERIFY SEPARATION PRIOR TO
CONSTRUCTION. AT CRITICAL  CROSSINGS, WHEN THE WATER MAIN IS LOCATED BELOW THE STORM SEWER, PROVIDE GASKETED JOINTS
FOR RCP LOCATED WITHIN 10 FEET OF CROSSINGS, PROVIDE C900 PVC WATER MAIN PIPE FOR THE 8" STORM SEWER PIPE LOCATED WITHIN
10 FEET OF THE CROSSING.

BY
DA

TE
R

EV
IS

IO
N

M
AR

K
Sc

al
e:

Te
ch

ni
ci

an
:

T-
R

-S
:

SN
YD

ER
 & 

AS
SO

CIA
TE

S, 
INC

. 
|

C
he

ck
ed

 B
y:

En
gi

ne
er

:

D
at

e:

1"
 =

Pr
oj

ec
t N

o:
Sh

ee
t

Project No:

Sheet

27
27

 S
.W

. S
N

YD
ER

 B
LV

D
AN

KE
N

Y,
 IO

W
A 

50
02

3
51

5-
96

4-
20

20
 | 

w
w

w
.s

ny
de

r-a
ss

oc
ia

te
s.

co
m

ED
C

JW
M

ED
C

09
-2

7-
21

30

12
1.

08
80

.0
1

C
40

0

121.0880.01

C400

TH
E 

C
O

VE
 A

T 
SP

R
U

C
E 

H
IL

LS
U

TI
LI

TY
 P

LA
N

C
ED

A
R

 F
A

LL
S,

 IA
R

EV
IS

ED
 A

S 
PE

R
 O

W
N

ER
R

EV
IS

ED
 A

S 
PE

R
 C

IT
Y 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

R
EV

IS
ED

 A
S 

PE
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
EN

TS
 

1-
21

-2
2

 2
-8

-2
2

 3
-3

0-
22

 

JW
M

 J
FS

 J
FS 

123 

TT
N

-R
R

W
-S

S

V:
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

20
21

\1
21

.0
88

0.
01

\C
AD

D
\S

P_
12

10
88

0_
U

TI
L.

dw
g 

JU
ST

IN
 S

TR
O

M
, U

TI
LI

TY
 P

LA
N

, 2
02

2/
03

/3
1,

 7
:4

7 
AM

, A
N

SI
 F

U
LL

 B
LE

ED
 D

 (3
4.

00
 X

 2
2.

00
 IN

C
H

ES
)

FEET

0 30

NOTES:
1   BACKFILL ALL SUBDRAIN WITH

POROUS BACKFILL (SUDAS 3010,
2.10).

2  PLACE PERFORATIONS DOWN
FOR ALL INSTRUCTIONS.
3  3" PERFORATED POLYETHYLENE
CORRUGATED TUBING.

3
2

1

6"
 E

AR
TH

BA
C

KF
IL

L

1.
5'

 D
EP

TH
 T

O
 F

L,
 O

R
 A

S
N

O
TE

D
 O

N
C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
 P

LA
N

S

2" M
IN

12" MIN

3" PIPE

FILTER SOCK

60

Item 5.



21

22
23

17

18
19

20

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11
12

13

14

15

16

25
26

2728
29

30

24

BM500

BM501

   100

   101

   102

   103

Concrete

Spruce Hill Dr.

C
on

cr
et

e

Sp
ru

ce
 H

ill 
D

r.

Concrete
Parking
Area

Concrete
Parking
Area

Building

Concrete
Flume

Sidewalk

Edge
Vegetation

Field Tile
Intake=905.87
At Ground
Elevation

Sanitary
Cleanout=907.86

Field Tile
Intake=900.79
At Ground
Elevation

911

912

914

914915

913

915

918

916
917

918
919

920
921922

917 916
914 913 912 911

90
9

90
6

90
5

911913

915

908

902

902

901

899

898

905

904

903

901

900

91
4

928

927
926 925 924 923

922

921

920

919
918 917 916 915

914

913

912

911

923

922

921

920

919

917

916

915914

913

912

911

90
9 90

8 90
7

90
6 90

5 90
4 90

3 90
2 90
1

900

89
9

89
8

898

899

900

901

902

897
897

896
896

895

895

894

894

89
3

89
2

89
1

893

894

895

896

897

898

899

900

901

902

903

90
4

90
5

90
6

90
7

GFE=914.70

GFE=905.10

GFE=906.60

GFE=908.10

GFE=908.70

GFE=908.30

GFE=915.15

914.49

91
4.4

4

913.98

914.71CL

914.04CL

914.78

906.39

91
1.1

1

906.85

905.42

904.07

904.61

903.55

906.46

903.60

906.08

907.04

907.80

Rim=904.81

903.09

904.14

904.95

911.57

914.09

913.63

915.11

905.84CL

915.20

Rim=909.57

907.79

-2
.0

0%

4.
89

%

905.90CL

906.58

1.00%

915.44

-2.00%

-2.00%

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●

●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●
●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●●

●

●

●

914

914

915

918919

910

909

91
0

908

908
907

90
5

90
8

908

90
6

90
5 905

902
901

903

914

910 909

908
907
906

905
904

903

909

907

908

90
8

91
3 91

2 91
1 91

0 90
9 908

907

906

910 90
9

90
8

912

91
3

91
4

91
5

911

910

909

908

907

906

912
913

914

904

905

906

907

905

906

908908

907

904.43

904.97

905.04

904.58

904.59

907.34

907.56

908.01

907.20

907.01

907.13

907.31

1.00%

1.00%

1.00%

1.00%

-0
.7

0%

906.54

906.08

Rim=906.98

Rim=907.69

906.60
907.31

Rim=914.42

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●●●●●●●●●●●

●
●

●

●
●

●
●

●●●●●●

●

●
●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●
●

●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●●

●

●

●

6.
75

%

1.
50

%

6.
71

%

10
.0

0%

1.
48

%

6.
76

%

1.
51

%

3.
68

%

10
.1

1%

1.
47

%

1.
51

%

10
.0

8%

898.32

898.82

SPRUCE NEEDLE LANE

SPRUCE CREEK DRIVE

N
00

°1
4'

42
"E

   
52

.5
1'

N53°56'20"E   4
48.32'

S43°19'05"E   61.13'

S54°55'31"E   82.46'

N63°40'32"W   111.14'

N69°13'52"W   177.21'

N77°25'10"E   80.57'

S0
0°

15
'4

7"
W

   
38

0.
69

'

N89°36'59"W   596.68'

N
05

°2
5'

30
"W

   
10

1.
13

'
S0

0°
24

'0
4"

W
   

12
9.

73
'

S89°37'53"E   194.04'

302,756 SF
6.95 AC

LOT 1

30' B.S.L

30
' B

.S
.L

30' B.S.L

25' B.S.L

25
' B

.S
.L

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 1

0'
 P

.U
.E

EXISTING 10' P.U.E

30' B.S.L

50' ELECTRIC EASEMENT

30' EX SANITARY
EASEMENT

BY
DA

TE
R

EV
IS

IO
N

M
AR

K
Sc

al
e:

Te
ch

ni
ci

an
:

T-
R

-S
:

SN
YD

ER
 & 

AS
SO

CIA
TE

S, 
INC

. 
|

C
he

ck
ed

 B
y:

En
gi

ne
er

:

D
at

e:

1"
 =

Pr
oj

ec
t N

o:
Sh

ee
t

Project No:

Sheet

27
27

 S
.W

. S
N

YD
ER

 B
LV

D
AN

KE
N

Y,
 IO

W
A 

50
02

3
51

5-
96

4-
20

20
 | 

w
w

w
.s

ny
de

r-a
ss

oc
ia

te
s.

co
m

ED
C

JW
M

ED
C

09
-2

7-
21

30

12
1.

08
80

.0
1

C
50

0

121.0880.01

C500

TH
E 

C
O

VE
 A

T 
SP

R
U

C
E 

H
IL

LS
G

R
A

D
IN

G
 A

N
D

 E
R

O
SI

O
N

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

PL
A

N
C

ED
A

R
 F

A
LL

S,
 IA

R
EV

IS
ED

 A
S 

PE
R

 O
W

N
ER

R
EV

IS
ED

 A
S 

PE
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
EN

TS
R

EV
IS

ED
 A

S 
PE

R
 C

IT
Y 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 

1-
21

-2
2

 2
-8

-2
2

 3
-3

0-
22

 

JW
M

 J
FS

 J
FS 

123 

TT
N

-R
R

W
-S

S

V:
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

20
21

\1
21

.0
88

0.
01

\C
AD

D
\S

P_
12

10
88

0_
G

R
D

.d
w

g 
JU

ST
IN

 S
TR

O
M

, G
R

AD
IN

G
 A

N
D

 E
R

O
SI

O
N

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

PL
AN

, 2
02

2/
03

/3
1,

 7
:4

7 
AM

, A
N

SI
 F

U
LL

 B
LE

ED
 D

 (3
4.

00
 X

 2
2.

00
 IN

C
H

ES
)

FEET

0 30

A. UTILITY WARNING: THE UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE BEEN LOCATED FROM FIELD
SURVEY INFORMATION AND/ OR RECORDS OBTAINED. THE SURVEYOR
MAKES NO GUARANTEE THAT THE UTILITIES SHOWN COMPRISE ALL SUCH
UTILITIES IN THE AREA, EITHER IN SERVICE OR ABANDONED. THE SURVEY
FURTHER DOES NOT WARRANT THAT THE UTILITIES SHOWN ARE IN THE
EXACT LOCATION INDICATED.

B. PROTECT EXISTING UTILITIES FROM CONSTRUCTION DAMAGE. ANY DAMAGE
THAT OCCURS SHALL BE REPAIRED BY THE CONTRACTOR TO THE OWNERS
SPECIFICATIONS WITHOUT ADDITIONAL COMPENSATION.

C. PRIOR TO GRADING, THE OWNER/ CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN A GRADING
PERMIT.

D. GRADES SHOWN ARE FINISHED GRADE AND/OR TOP OF PAVING SLAB
(GUTTER), UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

E. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE SILT FENCE AROUND ALL STORM INTAKES
AND WHERE SHOWN ON THE PLAN. SILT FENCE AROUND STORM INTAKES
SHALL BE MAINTAINED UNTIL PAVING AND SEEDING/ SODDING ARE
COMPLETE.

F. INSTALL CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE AT PRIVATE DRIVE CONNECTION.

G.  THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFICATION AND
COORDINATION OF ALL SITE UTILITIES AND IMPROVEMENTS WITH THE
ARCHITECTURAL MECHANICAL/ ELECTRICAL/ PLUMBING SYSTEMS
INCLUDING ROUTING, CRITICAL DIMENSIONS, CONNECTIONS, AND INVERT
ELEVATIONS.

H. CONTRACTOR TO STRIP AND STOCKPILE TOPSOIL FROM ALL AREAS TO BE
CUT OR FILLED. RESPREAD TO MINIMUM 6" DEPTH TO FINISH GRADES.

I. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR CLEANING DIRT AND DEBRIS FROM
NEIGHBORING STREETS, DRIVEWAYS, AND SIDEWALKS CAUSED BY
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES.

J. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE BELOW GRADE INLET PROTECTION IN ALL
STORM SEWER STRUCTURES.

K. G.F.E = GARAGE FLOOR ELEVATION.

GRADING NOTES

Post Spacing
(5'-0" max.)

Post Spacing
(5'-0" max.)

 

 

 

Variable (20'-0" for a normal 10'-0" wide ditch.)

TYPICAL SILT FENCE DITCH CHECK

Foreslope Backs
lope

1

2" min.

20" min.

ATTACHMENT TO POST

Fabric

Post

Wire or
Cable Ties

Insert 12 inches of fabric a minimum
of 6 inches deep (fabric may be
folded below the ground line).

Reduce post spacing to 5'-0" at water
concentration areas, or as required
to adequately support fence.

1

2

 

24"
36"

8'-0" Spacing

DETAILS OF SILT FENCE ON LONGITUDINAL SLOPES

1

2
Ground Line Fabric

 

See plans for spacing.

(Profile View)
TYPICAL SILT FENCE INSTALLATION ON LONGITUDINAL SLOPES

1

1

'T' Steel
Fence Post
4'-0" min.

Ground line

Fabric

Flow

SILT FENCE

200'-0" max. length per section
(600'-0" if slope is flatter than 5%)

(Plan View)
TYPICAL SILT FENCE INSTALLATION ON LONGITUDINAL SLOPES

Ground ContoursInstall parallel to
ground contour.

Install "J-hook" at each end of an
individual section of silt fence.

SILT FENCE (TYP)

SILT FENCE (TYP)

SILT FENCE (TYP)

SEDIMENT BASKET (TYP)

INLET PROTECTION (TYP)

FILTER SOCK (TYP)

FILTER SOCK (TYP)

SEDIMENT BASKET (TYP)

SEDIMENT BASKET (TYP)

100 YR FLOOD
PLAIN

SILT FENCE (TYP)

SEDIMENT BASKET (TYP)

SEDIMENT BASKET (TYP)

SEDIMENT BASKET (TYP)

SILT FENCE (TYP)

FILTER SOCK (TYP)

SILT FENCE (TYP)

SEDIMENT BASKET (TYP) FILTER SOCK (TYP)

10' WIDE EMERGENCY SPILLWAY,
TOP OF BERM @ 902.70, SPILLWAY @

901.95. 30 TON EROSION STONE 10'
WIDEx2'DEEP TO DITCH

61

Item 5.



21

22
23

17

18
19

20

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11
12

13

14

15

16

25
26

2728
29

30

24

BM500

BM501

   100

   101

   102

   103

Concrete

Spruce Hill Dr.

Grass
Median

C
on

cr
et

e

Sp
ru

ce
 H

ill 
D

r.

Sidewalk
Edge

Concrete
Parking
Area

Concrete
Parking
Area

Building

Concrete
Flume

Sidewalk

Edge
Vegetation

Field Tile
Intake=905.87
At Ground
Elevation

Sanitary
Cleanout=907.86

Field Tile
Intake=900.79
At Ground
Elevation

Bench

TYP.

TYP.

TYP.

TYP.

TYP.

TYP.

TYP.

TYP.

1-CO 4-QR

1-GT

1-GT

1-GT

1-GB

3-AF

3-CK

3-AF

1-TA

1-GB

1-GB

1-GB

1-GB

1-CO

1-AF

3-UM

7-HF 4-PM

4-PM

J

E

E

E

E

J

J

J

F

1-TA

1-CO

H

3-PC

1-PA

1-PA 1-QR 1-QR

1-QR

1-QR

1-AF

1-QR

1-QR

2-UM

1-GB

3-PP
3-PP

3-PP

3-PC

3-PP 3-PP 3-PC

3-PC

3-PP

3-QB

2-MJ

2-MJ

2-MA 2-MA2-MA 2-MA

TYP.E

3-SR 3-SR

3-VL

3-VL

1-CK

1-CK

1-CK

3-PA

1-AF

1-AF
1-CO

1-CK

1-VL

1-VL

1-AG

1-AG

1-AG

1-AG

1-AG

1-AG

5-JM

1-CO

1-CO

1-CO

1-CO

1-TA

1-TA

1-TA

1-SR

1-SR

5-JM

2-HF

5-JM

2-HF

5-JM

2-HF

5-JM

2-HF

2-HF

5-JM

7-JL
2-VD

5-PM
2-VR

7-JL
2-VD

7-JL
2-VD

5-PM
2-VR

5-JC

5-JC

5-JC

5-JC

5-JM

7-PM

2-VR

2-VR

5-PM

9-PF

7-PF

9-PJ

7-PJ

7-ST

7-ST

2-VR

5-JL

5-JL

2-VD

2-VD

E

E TYP.

E TYP.

E
TYP.

E
TYP.

SPRUCE NEEDLE LANE

SPRUCE CREEK DRIVE

N
00

°1
4'

42
"E

   
52

.5
1'

N53°56'20"E   4
48.32'

S54°55'31"E   82.46'

N63°40'32"W   111.14'

N69°13'52"W   177.21'

N77°25'10"E   80.57'

S0
0°

15
'4

7"
W

   
38

0.
69

'

N89°36'59"W   596.68'

N
05

°2
5'

30
"W

   
10

1.
13

'
S0

0°
24

'0
4"

W
   

12
9.

73
'

S89°37'53"E   194.04'

302,756 SF
6.95 AC

LOT 1

30' B.S.L

30
' B

.S
.L

30' B.S.L

25' B.S.L

25
' B

.S
.L

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 1

0'
 P

.U
.E

EXISTING 10' P.U.E

30' B.S.L

50' ELECTRIC EASEMENT

30' EX SANITARY
EASEMENT

BY
DA

TE
R

EV
IS

IO
N

M
AR

K
Sc

al
e:

Te
ch

ni
ci

an
:

T-
R

-S
:

SN
YD

ER
 & 

AS
SO

CIA
TE

S, 
INC

. 
|

C
he

ck
ed

 B
y:

En
gi

ne
er

:

D
at

e:

1"
 =

Pr
oj

ec
t N

o:
Sh

ee
t

Project No:

Sheet

27
27

 S
.W

. S
N

YD
ER

 B
LV

D
AN

KE
N

Y,
 IO

W
A 

50
02

3
51

5-
96

4-
20

20
 | 

w
w

w
.s

ny
de

r-a
ss

oc
ia

te
s.

co
m

ED
C

JW
M

ED
C

09
-2

7-
21

30

12
1.

08
80

.0
1

C
60

0

121.0880.01

C600

TH
E 

C
O

VE
 A

T 
SP

R
U

C
E 

H
IL

LS
PL

A
N

TI
N

G
 P

LA
N

C
ED

A
R

 F
A

LL
S,

 IA
R

EV
IS

ED
 A

S 
PE

R
 O

W
N

ER
R

EV
IS

ED
 A

S 
PE

R
 C

IT
Y 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

R
EV

IS
ED

 A
S 

PE
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
EN

TS
 

1-
21

-2
2

 2
-8

-2
2

 3
-3

0-
22

 

JW
M

 J
FS

 J
FS 

123 

TT
N

-R
R

W
-S

S

V:
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

20
21

\1
21

.0
88

0.
01

\C
AD

D
\S

P_
12

10
88

0_
LN

D
.d

w
g 

JU
ST

IN
 S

TR
O

M
, P

LA
N

TI
N

G
 P

LA
N

, 2
02

2/
03

/3
1,

 7
:4

7 
AM

, A
N

SI
 F

U
LL

 B
LE

ED
 D

 (3
4.

00
 X

 2
2.

00
 IN

C
H

ES
)

FEET

0 30

62

Item 5.



BY
DA

TE
R

EV
IS

IO
N

M
AR

K
Sc

al
e:

Te
ch

ni
ci

an
:

T-
R

-S
:

SN
YD

ER
 & 

AS
SO

CIA
TE

S, 
INC

. 
|

C
he

ck
ed

 B
y:

En
gi

ne
er

:

D
at

e:

1"
 =

Pr
oj

ec
t N

o:
Sh

ee
t

Project No:

Sheet

50
10

 V
O

G
ES

 R
O

AD
M

AD
IS

O
N

. W
IS

C
O

N
SI

N
 5

37
18

60
8-

83
8-

04
44

 | 
w

w
w

.s
ny

de
r-a

ss
oc

ia
te

s.
co

m

ED
C

JW
M

ED
C

09
-2

7-
21

N
A

12
1.

08
80

.0
1

C
60

1

121.0880.01

C601

TH
E 

C
O

VE
 A

T 
SP

R
U

C
E 

H
IL

LS
PL

A
N

TI
N

G
 P

LA
N

 G
EN

ER
A

L 
N

O
TE

S
C

ED
A

R
 F

A
LL

S,
 IA

R
EV

IS
ED

 A
S 

PE
R

 O
W

N
ER

R
EV

IS
ED

 A
S 

PE
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
EN

TS
R

EV
IS

ED
 A

S 
PE

R
 C

IT
Y 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 

1-
21

-2
2

 2
-8

-2
2

 3
-3

0-
22

 

JW
M

 J
FS

 J
FS 

123 

TT
N

-R
R

W
-S

S

V:
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

20
21

\1
21

.0
88

0.
01

\C
AD

D
\S

P_
12

10
88

0_
LN

D
.d

w
g 

JU
ST

IN
 S

TR
O

M
, P

LA
N

TI
N

G
 P

LA
N

 G
EN

ER
AL

 N
O

TE
S,

 2
02

2/
03

/3
1,

 7
:4

7 
AM

, A
N

SI
 F

U
LL

 B
LE

ED
 D

 (3
4.

00
 X

 2
2.

00
 IN

C
H

ES
)

FEET

0 20

PLANTING PLAN GENERAL NOTES
A. UTILITY WARNING:

THE UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE BEEN LOCATED FROM FIELD SURVEY INFORMATION
AND/OR RECORDS OBTAINED.  THE SURVEYOR MAKES NO GUARANTEE THAT THE
UTILITIES SHOWN COMPRISE ALL SUCH UTILITIES IN THE AREA, EITHER IN
SERVICE OR ABANDONED.  THE SURVEY FURTHER DOES NOT WARRANT THAT THE
UTILITIES SHOWN ARE IN THE EXACT LOCATION INDICATED.

B. NOTIFY UTILITY OWNERS PRIOR TO BEGINNING ANY CONSTRUCTION.
CONTRACTOR IS  RESPONSIBLE FOR DETERMINING EXISTENCE, EXACT LOCATION
AND DEPTH OF ALL UTILITIES.  AVOID DAMAGE TO UTILITIES AND SERVICES
DURING CONSTRUCTION.  ANY DAMAGE DUE TO THE CONTRACTOR'S
CARELESSNESS SHALL BE CORRECTED AT THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.
COORDINATE AND COOPERATE WITH UTILITY COMPANIES DURING
CONSTRUCTION.

C. ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL AT LEAST MEET MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS SHOWN IN
THE "AMERICAN STANDARDS FOR NURSERY STOCK" (ANSI Z60.1-LATEST EDITION).

D. CONTRACTOR SHALL GUARANTEE ALL PLANT MATERIAL FOR A PERIOD OF ONE
YEAR FROM DATE OF INSTALLATION.

E. PROVIDE A MIN 3-FOOT PERIMETER RING OF SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH
AROUND ALL TREES AND PLANTINGS BEDS TO A DEPTH OF 3 INCHES. PROVIDE
VERTICAL CUT NATURAL EDGE TO A DEPTH OF 4-INCHES.

F. PROVIDE 2-INCH RIVER GRAVEL PLACED TO A DEPTH OF 4-INCHES WITH WEED
BARRIER FABRIC UNDERLAYMENT IN PLANT BED AREAS SHOWN ON PLAN.

G. SEED ALL AREAS DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION WITH TYPE 1 SUDAS
PERMANENT LAWN SEED MIX, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

H. FURNISH AND INSTALL STORM DETENTION BASIN SEED MIX BY PRAIRIE MOON
NURSERY. WWW.PRAIRIEMOON.COM, 32115 PRAIRIE LANE, WINONA, MN 55987, OR
APPROVED EQUAL. SEEDING RATE: 11.48 LBS/ACRE.  INSTALL AS PER SUDAS
SPECIFICATIONS 9010 SEEDING.

FURNISH AND INSTALL REGREEN, Tricitum aestivum, SHORT-LIVED STERILE
PERENNIAL WHEAT/WHEAT GRASS HYBRID OR APPROVED EQUAL AS A COVER
CROP, TO BE INSTALLED AT THE SAME TIME WITH THE STORM DETENTION BASIN
SEED MIX. APPLY AT 30 LBS/ACRE.

J. PROVIDE MECHANICALLY BONDED FIBER MATRIX(MBFM) IMMEDIATELY
FOLLOWING SEED APPLICATION ON ALL AREAS SEEDED WITH A SLOPE OF 6:1 OR
GREATER. ACCEPTABLE PRODUCTS AND MANUFACTURERS:

PROFILE PRODUCTS LLC., 750 LAKE COOK ROAD - SUITE 400
BUFFALO GROVE, IL 60089
TEL: 1-800-366-1180
WWW.PROFILEPRODUCTS.COM OR APPROVED EQUAL.

SEE PLANTING PIT
DETAILS

GARDEN
HOSE FLAGGING

MATERIAL

1

STAKING PLAN
(TREES 2 1/2" DIA OR SMALLER)

STAKING PLAN
(TREES LARGER THAN 2 1/2" DIA)

1  WRAP TRUNK FROM GROUND TO FIRST BRANCH.

1 2 T
O

 2 3 T
R

EE
 H

EI
G

H
T

(4
'-0

" M
IN

)

1
4 TO 13

TREE HEIGHT
(2'-0" MIN)

6"

PLACE ON STAKE
TO SOUTHWEST

PLACE ON STAKE
TO SOUTHWEST

TYPICAL PLANTING PIT DETAIL

SLOPE PLANTING PIT DETAIL

SET ROOT COLLAR AND ROOT
FLARE 2" ABOVE FINISH GRADE.

DO NOT PLACE MULCH WITHIN
2" OF TRUNK. ROOT COLLAR IS
NOT ALWAYS LOCATED AT TOP

OF ROOTBALL

MINIMUM 6' DIAMETER,
3" DEPTH MULCH RING

3" HEIGHT WATER RETENTION
BERM BEYOND EDGE OF ROOT BALL
FINISH GRADE

SCARIFY SIDES OF PIT
REMOVE ALL NON-BIODEGRADABLE MATERIAL,
CONTAINERS OR OTHER MATERIAL THAT WILL
IMPEDE THE GROWTH OF THE PLANT MATERIAL.
REMOVE ALL TWINE. FOR BALLED AND BURLAP
(B&B) PLANTS REMOVE MINIMUM TOP 12 OF BURLAP
AND WIRE BASKET MINIMUM.
PLACE ROOT BALL ON UNDISTURBED SOIL

3X ROOTBALL
MINIMUM FOR TREES

2X ROOTBAL
MINIMUM FOR SHRUBS

D
EP

TH
 O

F
R

O
O

T 
BA

LL
O

R
 C

O
N

TA
IN

ER
R

O
O

T 
SY

ST
EM

3X ROOTBALL
MINIMUM FOR TREES

2X ROOTBAL
MINIMUM FOR SHRUBS

D
EP

TH
 O

F
R

O
O

T 
BA

LL
O

R
 C

O
N

TA
IN

ER
R

O
O

T 
SY

ST
EM

2:1 MAXIMUM
TRANSITION SLOPE.
BEGIN TRANSITION

AT EDGE OF
ROOT BALL

EXISTING
SLOPE

TREE OR SHRUB

SCARIFY SIDES OF PIT
REMOVE ALL NON-BIODEGRADABLE MATERIAL,
CONTAINERS OR OTHER MATERIAL THAT WILL
IMPEDE THE GROWTH OF THE PLANT MATERIAL.
REMOVE ALL TWINE. FOR BALLED AND BURLAP
(B&B) PLANTS REMOVE MINIMUM TOP 12 OF BURLAP
AND WIRE BASKET MINIMUM.
PLACE ROOT BALL ON UNDISTURBED SOIL

FINISH GRADE

3" HEIGHT WATER RETENTION
BERM BEYOND EDGE OF ROOT BALL

MINIMUM 6' DIAMETER,
3" DEPTH MULCH RING

SET ROOT COLLAR AND ROOT FLARE 2" ABOVE
FINISH GRADE. DO NOT PLACE MULCH WITHIN
2" OF TRUNK. ROOT COLLAR IS NOT ALWAYS
LOCATED AT TOP OF ROOT BALL

FINISH GRADE

SEE PLANTING PIT DETAIL
ENGINEERING FABRIC

IMPERVIOUS SOIL

SEPTIC GRAVEL

1  PERVIOUS SOIL
(IF PRESENT)

1  IF PERVIOUS SOIL IS ENCOUNTERED AT A
DEPTH LESS THAN 6-FEET, THE DRAINAGE
WELL MAY BE TERMINATED WHERE THE
WELL EXTENDS A MINIMUM OF 12-INCHES
INTO THE PERVIOUS SOIL LAYER.

NOTE:
TREE DRAINAGE WELL ONLY REQUIRED IF
IMPERVIOUS SOILS ARE FOUND DURING
INSTALLATION AS PER SPECIFICATIONS
AND AS APPROVED BY ENGINEER.

1

C601

DECIDUOUS TREE STAKING DETAIL
NO SCALE

2

C601

TREE DRAINAGE WELL  DETAIL
NO SCALE

3

C601

PLANTING PIT DETAILS
NO SCALE

PLANTING PLAN REQUIREMENTS:
LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS AND CALCULATIONS:
(AS PER CITY OF CEDAR FALLS CODE AND ORDINANCES SEC. 26-180 - HCG HIGHWAY CORRIDOR
AND GREENBELT OVERLAY ZONING DISTRICT)

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS FOR DESIGNATED RESIDENTIAL ZONES:
302,692 SF (6.95 AC.) OVERALL LOT AREA
1,045 SF TOWNHOME UNIT X 30 TOTAL UNITS = 31,350 SF
302,692 (LOT AREA SF) - 31,350 (BUILDINGS SF) = 271,342 SF
271,325 x 0.65 (65% OF LOT EXCLUSIVE OF BUILDINGS) = 176,373
176,373 x 0.05 (0.05 POINTS PER SF OF LANDSCAPED AREA) = 8,819 POINTS

---- OVERSTORY TREES 2" CAL. AT 80 POINTS x (56) = 4,480 POINTS

---- EVERGREEN TREES 6' HT. AT 80 POINTS x (30) = 2,400 POINTS

---- UNDERSTORY TREES 1 12" CAL. AT 30 POINTS x (34) = 1,020 POINTS

---- SHRUBS (2 GAL. CONT.) AT 5 POINTS x (184) = 920 POINTS

TOTAL POINTS REQUIRED (8,819), TOTAL POINTS PROVIDED (8,820)

VEHICULAR USE PARKING AREA

PARKING AREA ON SITE OF LESS THAN 6,000 SF.
A COMBINATION OF TREES AND SHRUBS HAVE BEEN PROVIDED AROUND THE PERIMETER OF THE
PARKING AREA TO MEET THIS REQUIREMENT (2 TREES AND 15 SHRUBS). TREES WITHIN 50 FT OF
EACH PARKING SPACE.

STREET TREE PLANTING
0.75 POINTS PER LINEAR FOOT OF STREET FRONTAGE MUST BE ACHIEVED IN THE CITY PARKING
AREA (RIGHT-OF-WAY).

597 LINEAR FEET OF STREET FRONTAGE ALONG GREENHILL ROAD
597 x 0.75 = 447.75 POINTS REQUIRED

---- 6 TREES AT 80 POINTS EACH = 480 POINTS PROVIDED

PLANT SCHEDULE

QTY KEY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME INSTALL SIZE COMMENTS

CANOPY TREES

10 AF Acer x freemanii 'Jeffersred' AUTUMN BLAZE AUTUMN BLAZE MAPLE 2" Cal. B&B

7 CK Cladrastis kentukea YELLOWWOOD 2" Cal. B&B

8 CO Celtis occidentalis 'Prairie Pride' PRAIRIE PRIDE HACKBERRY 2" Cal. B&B

6 GB Ginkgo biloba 'Autumn Gold' AUTUMN GOLD GINKGO 2" Cal.  MALE ONLY, B&B

3 GT Gleditsia  triacanthos f. inermis 'Shademaster' SHADEMASTER HONEYLOCUST 2" Cal. B&B

5 PA Platanus x acerifolia 'Morton Circle' EXCLAMATION PLANETREE 2" Cal. B&B

5 TA Tilia americana 'Frontyard' FRONTYARD LINDEN 2" Cal. B&B

3 QB Quercus bicolor SWAMP WHITE OAK 2" Cal. B&B

10 QR Quercus rubra NORTHERN RED OAK 2" Cal. B&B

5 UM Ulmus 'Morton Stalwart' COMMENDATION ELM 2" Cal. B&B

EVERGREEN TREES

12 PC Pinus cembra BLUE TOWER SWISS STONE PINE 6' HT. B&B

18 PP Picea pungens f. glauca 'Fat Albert' FAT ALBERT COLORADO SPRUCE 6' HT. B&B

ORNAMENTAL TREES

6 AG Amelanchier x grandiflora 'Autumn Brilliance' AUTUMN BRILLIANCE SERVICEBERRY 1 12" Cal. B&B, MULTI-STEM, 6' HT.

8 MA Malis 'Adirondack' ADIRONDACK CRABAPPLE 1 12" Cal. B&B, 6' HT.

4 MJ Malus 'Jarmin' ROYAL RAINDROPS CRABAPPLE 1 12" Cal. B&B, 6' HT.

8 SR Syringa retifulata JAPANESE TREE LILAC 1 12" Cal. B&B, 6' HT.

8 VL Viburnum lentago NANNYBERRY TREE VIBURNUM 1 12" Cal. B&B, MULTI-STEM, 6' HT.

DECIDUOUS SHRUBS & ORNAMENTAL GRASSES

17 HF Hydrangea paniculata 'Fire Light' FIRE LIGHT PANICLE HYDRANGEA 36" Ht. 3 GAL. CONT (9' O.C.).

16 PF Physocarpus opulifolius 'Fireside' FIRESIDE NINEBARK 36" Ht. 3 GAL. CONT (4' O.C.).

16 PJ Physocarpus opulifolius 'Jefam' AMBER JUBILEE AMBER JUBILEE NINEBARK 24" Ht. 3 GAL. CONT (4' O.C.).

14 ST Spiraea betulifolia 'Tor Gold' GLOW GIRL SPIREA 18"-24" Ht. 3 GAL. CONT (4' O.C.).

10 VD Viburnum dentatum ARROWWOOD VIBURNUM 36" Ht. 3 GAL. CONT (9' O.C.).

10 VR Viburnum trilobum 'Redwing' REDWING AMERICAN CRANBERRYBUSH 36" Ht. 3 GAL. CONT (9' O.C.).

EVERGREEN SHRUBS

20 JC Juniperus chinensis 'Sea Green' SEA GREEN JUNIPER 24" Ht. 3 GAL. CONT (5' O.C.).

31 JL Juniperus chinensis 'Gold Lace' GOLD LACE JUNIPER 24" Ht. 3 GAL. CONT (5' O.C.).

35 JM Juniperus chinensis 'Maney' MANEY JUNIPER 24" Ht. 3 GAL. CONT (5' O.C.).

30 PM Pinus mugo 'White Bud' WHITE BUD DWARF MUGO PINE 24" Ht. 3 GAL. CONT (5' O.C.).

NOTE: QUANTITIES SHOWN ARE APPROXIMATE. CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY PLANT MATERIAL PRIOR
           TO BIDDING. IN THE CASE OF A DISCREPANCY, THE PLAN QUANTITY SHALL GOVERN.

63

Item 5.



1ST FLOOR

0"

2ND FLOOR

10' - 3 7/8"

TRUSS BRG.

18' - 5"

FIRST FLOOR T.O.W.

9' - 1 1/8"

3

A301

8x8 POST

8x8 POST

2ND HEADER
HGT. 7"-0"

S4

S3
S1

S1 S1 S1

S4 S4

S5

S2

CS CS CS CS CS

S1 S1 S1

R1
R1R1

S4 S4

CSCS

S3 S2 S2 S3
R1 R1 R1

R1 R1

S1

1ST FLOOR

0"

2ND FLOOR

10' - 3 7/8"

TRUSS BRG.

18' - 5"

FIRST FLOOR T.O.W.

9' - 1 1/8"

2ND HEADER
HGT. 7"-0"

1

A301

S1

S1

S3 S1 S2

S1

S1 S2 S3 S1

R1 R1

1ST FLOOR

0"

2ND FLOOR

10' - 3 7/8"

TRUSS BRG.

18' - 5"

FIRST FLOOR T.O.W.

9' - 1 1/8"

2ND HEADER
HGT. 7"-0"

8x8 POST

S4

S1

S1

CS

S3

R1

1ST FLOOR

0"

2ND FLOOR

10' - 3 7/8"

TRUSS BRG.

18' - 5"

FIRST FLOOR T.O.W.

9' - 1 1/8"

2ND HEADER
HGT. 7"-0"

8x8 POST

S4

S1 S3

S3

S1

S2 S3

R1

S1

CS

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"1
Front Elevation

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"4
Rear Elevation

R
O

C
K

 E
Q

U
IT

Y
 

H
O

L
D

IN
G

S
, 

L
L

C

CONTENTS:

SHEET NO:

PROJECT NO:

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

:

1

REVISIONS:

3

2

A201

20-009

V
il

la
g

e
 a

t 
A

s
p

e
n

 R
id

g
e
 E

s
ta

te
s

01 / 05 / 2021

Elevations

A
n

k
e
n

y
, 
IA

 5
0
0

2
3

P
la

t 
3
: 

4
 P

le
x
 -

L
o

ts
 6

-9
, 
1
0

-1
3

, 
1

4
-1

7
, 

1
8

-2
1

, 
4
4

-4
7

, 
4

8
-5

1
, 

5
7
-6

0

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"2
Right Elevation

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"3
Left Elevation

MATERIAL SCHEDULE

CS CULTURED STONE

R1 ASPHALT ROOFING SHINGLE

S1 7" LAP - WHITE

S2 7" LAP - GRAY

S3 7" LAP - CHARCOAL

S4 SHAKES - GRAY

S5 SHAKES - CHARCOAL

H
er

ita
ge

 H
ill

s 
T

ow
nh

om
es

C
ed

ar
 F

al
ls

, I
A

 5
06

13

64

Item 5.



1ST FLOOR

0"

2ND FLOOR

10' - 3 7/8"

TRUSS BRG.

18' - 5"

FIRST FLOOR T.O.W.

9' - 1 1/8"

3

A301

8x8 POST

8x8 POST

2ND HEADER
HGT. 7"-0"

S4

S3
S1

S1 S1 S1

S4 S4

S5

S2

CS CS CS CS CS CS

S1 S1 S1
S3

S4

CS

S1

R1
R1R1

S4 S4

CSCS

S3 S2 S2 S3 S3
R1 R1 R1 R1

R1 R1

S1

1ST FLOOR

0"

2ND FLOOR

10' - 3 7/8"

TRUSS BRG.

18' - 5"

FIRST FLOOR T.O.W.

9' - 1 1/8"

2ND HEADER
HGT. 7"-0"

1

A301

S1

S1 S3 S1

S1

S3 S1 S2

S1

S1 S2 S3 S1

R1 R1

S1 S1

1ST FLOOR

0"

2ND FLOOR

10' - 3 7/8"

TRUSS BRG.

18' - 5"

FIRST FLOOR T.O.W.

9' - 1 1/8"

2ND HEADER
HGT. 7"-0"

8x8 POST

S4

S1

S1

CS

S3

S3

S3

S3

R1

1ST FLOOR

0"

2ND FLOOR

10' - 3 7/8"

TRUSS BRG.

18' - 5"

FIRST FLOOR T.O.W.

9' - 1 1/8"

2ND HEADER
HGT. 7"-0"

8x8 POST

S4

S1 S3

S3

S1

S2 S3

R1

S1

CS

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"1
Front Elevation

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"4
Rear Elevation

R
O

C
K

 E
Q

U
IT

Y
 

H
O

L
D

IN
G

S
, 

L
L

C

CONTENTS:

SHEET NO:

PROJECT NO:

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

:

1

REVISIONS:

3

2

A201

20-009

V
il

la
g

e
 a

t 
A

s
p

e
n

 R
id

g
e
 E

s
ta

te
s

01 / 05 / 2021

Elevations

A
n

k
e
n

y
, 
IA

 5
0
0

2
3

P
la

t 
3
: 

5
 P

le
x

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"2
Right Elevation

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"3
Left Elevation

MATERIAL SCHEDULE

CS CULTURED STONE

R1 ASPHALT ROOFING SHINGLE

S1 7" LAP - WHITE

S2 7" LAP - GRAY

S3 7" LAP - CHARCOAL

S4 SHAKES - GRAY

S5 SHAKES - CHARCOAL

H
er

ita
ge

 H
ill

s 
T

ow
nh

om
es

C
ed

ar
 F

al
ls

, I
A

 5
06

13

65

Item 5.



1ST FLOOR

0"

2ND FLOOR

10' - 3 7/8"

TRUSS BRG.
18' - 5"

FIRST FLOOR T.O.W.

9' - 1 1/8"

3

A301

8x8 POST

8x8 POST

S4

S3S1

S1 S1 S1

S4 S4

S5

S2

CS CS CS CS CS CS

S1 S1 S1
S3

S4

CS

S1 S1 S1

S4 S4

R1 R1

R1
R1

R1R1

S4 S4

CSCS

S3 S2 S2 S3 S3 S2
R1R1 R1 R1 R1

R1 R1

S1

1ST FLOOR

0"

2ND FLOOR

10' - 3 7/8"

TRUSS BRG.

18' - 5"

1

A301

S1

S1 S2 S1 S3 S1

S1

S3 S1 S2

S1

S1 S2 S3 S1

R1 R1 R1

1ST FLOOR

0"

2ND FLOOR

10' - 3 7/8"

TRUSS BRG.

18' - 5"

8x8 POST

S4

S1

S1S2

S2

CS

S4

S2

S2

1ST FLOOR

0"

2ND FLOOR

10' - 3 7/8"

TRUSS BRG.

18' - 5"

8x8 POST

S4

S1 S3

S3

S1

S2 S3

R1

S1

CS

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"1
Front Elevation

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"4
Rear Elevation

R
O

C
K

 E
Q

U
IT

Y
 

H
O

L
D

IN
G

S
, 

L
L

C

CONTENTS:

SHEET NO:

PROJECT NO:

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

:

1

REVISIONS:

3

2

A201

20-009

V
il

la
g

e
 a

t 
A

s
p

e
n

 R
id

g
e
 E

s
ta

te
s

01 / 05 / 2021

Elevations

A
n

k
e
n

y
, 
IA

 5
0
0

2
3

P
la

t 
3
: 

6
 P

le
x
 -

L
o

ts
 3

2
-3

7
, 

3
8
-4

3

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"2
Right Elevation

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"3
Left Elevation

MATERIAL SCHEDULE

CS CULTURED STONE

R1 ASPHALT ROOFING SHINGLE

S1 7" LAP - WHITE

S2 7" LAP - GRAY

S3 7" LAP - CHARCOAL

S4 SHAKES - GRAY

S5 SHAKES - CHARCOAL

H
er

ita
ge

 H
ill

s 
T

ow
nh

om
es

C
ed

ar
 F

al
ls

, I
A

 5
06

13

66

Item 5.



67

Item 5.



68

Item 5.



69

Item 5.



70

Item 5.



71

Item 5.



72

Item 5.


	Top
	Item 1.	March 23 Minutes
	03-23-2022 P and Z Minutes

	Item 2.	Cedar Falls Bicycle Plan Update
	1. Memo.PZ. CF Bicycle Plan Update
	2. 2022.02.14 Prelim Network Map - Distro

	Item 3.	Wild Horse Ridge Fifth Addition Final Plat (Case #FP22-001)
	1 PC memo Wild Horse 5th additionf
	2 ZoningLocationMap
	3 Final Plat Sheet 1
	4 Final Plat Sheet 2
	5 Final Plat Sheet 3
	6 Final Plat Sheet 4
	7 DOD
	8  Subdivision Name Approval

	Item 4.	Minor Plat for the Cove at Spruce Hills (MP22-001)
	01  PZ Staff report for Spruce Hills Minor Plat
	02 ZoningLocationMap MP
	03 1210880_FPLTF
	04 Deed of Dedication-Cove at Spruce Hills version2 clean 4 4 2022
	05 Soils & Topo Map
	06 Survey Cert Signed

	Item 5.	RP Site Plan for the Cove at Spruce Hills (SP21-013)
	01 PZ staff report for Heritage Hills Townhomes Site Plan
	02 ZoningLocationMap sp
	03 SP_1210880F
	04 Townhome Elevation Views
	05 Heritage Hills original RP Plan
	06 Heritage Hills revised RP Plan
	07 FINAL PLAT (8-22-17) 11X17

	Bottom

